
Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: November 8, 2011 

Prepared By/Phone Number: David A. Salazar 854-4107 

Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Sherri E. Fleming, 
County Executive for Health and Human Services and Veterans Service 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Approve Resolution Recognizing November 11, 2011, as Veterans' Day in 
Travis County. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Please see attached draft resolution. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommendation approval of this resolution 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
Please see attached draft. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
This item will not increase the County Budget. 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, CheryI,Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Item 2
Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: November 8, 2011 

Prepared By/Phone Number: David A. Salazar 854-4107 

Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Sherri E. Fleming, 
County Executive for Health and Human Services and Veterans Service 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Receive Update from Texas AgriLife Travis County on Travis County 4-H 
Program. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Texas Agrilife Travis County has historically operated Travis County 4-H as 
part of a community of young people across America who learn leadership, 
citizenship and life skills. The County's partners at Texas AgriLife have 
asked to present their annual report to the Court to highlight recent 
programs and successes over the past year. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
N/A 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
This presentation provides an opportunity for the Court to be updated 
regarding its investment in Youth Development. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
This item will not increase the County Budget. 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, CheryI.Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Item 4
Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



\ 
\ 

Meeting Date: November 8, 2011 ~ 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Norman McRee/854-48 " Pn (f~J /lJL.:, 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Leroy Nellis, ting Co1 nty "'-7 

Executive, Planning & Budget 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Sam Biscoe, County Judge 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 

Review and approve the immediate release of reimbursement payment to United Health 
Care for claims paid for participants in the Travis County Employee Health Care Fund 
for payment of $417,495.82, for the period of October 21 to October 27, 2011. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 

See attached. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The Director or Risk Manager has reviewed the reimbursement submitted and concurs 
with the findings of the audits by the Financial Analyst and the Benefits Contract 
Administrator and therefore recommends reimbursement of $417,495.82. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

See attached. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

Employee Health Benefit Fund (526) - $417,495.82 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Dan Mansour, 854-9499 
Diane Blankenship, 854-9170 
Leroy Nellis, 854-9106 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, CheryI.Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Item 5
Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Item 6
Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Item 7
Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Item 8
Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m.
for the next week's meeting.

Meeting Date: November 8, 2011
Prepared By/Phone Number: Nancy Barchus, 512-854-9764
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe

APPROVE MODIFICATION NO. 2, AN ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT 
NO. 10T00108DR, FROM SOUTHWEST KEY MAINTENANCE, LLC TO 
SOUTHWEST KEY GREEN ENERGY AND CONSTRUCTION, LLC.

Ø Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes.

This contract provides Residential Roof Repair services for Travis 
County Housing Services on an as needed basis.

Modification No. 1, approved by the Purchasing Agent on January 25, 
2011, extended the contract from February 9, 2011 through February 8, 
2012.

Modification No. 2 will approve assignment of contract to Southwest Key 
Green Energy and Construction, LLC from Southwest Key Maintenance, 
LLC.  Southwest Key Green Energy and Construction, LLC will assume 
all rights and responsibilities in regards to contract No. 10T00108DR.

Ø Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $123,390.66 has 
been spent against this contract.

Ø Contract-Related Information:

Award Amount: N/A
Contract Type: Term
Contract Period: February 9, 2011 through February 8, 2012

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request

Item 9
Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m.
for the next week's meeting.

Ø Contract Modification Information:

Modification Amount: N/A
Modification Type: Assignment of Contract  
Modification Period: N/A

Ø Funding Information:
 Purchase Requisition in H.T.E.: 
 Funding Account(s): 001-5857-611-6277/6278 - General Fund

131-5857-611-6277/6278 – DOE
149-5857-611-6277/6278 – LIHEAP
141-5854-611-6277/6278 - CEAP

 Comments:

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 1OTOO1O8DR Residential Roof Repair

PACE I OF2PAGES

ISSUED BY: PURCHASING OFFICE PURCHASING AGENT ASST: Nancy Barchus DATE PREPARED:
700 LAVACA SUITE 800 TEL. NO: (512) 854-9700 Sept, 1, 2011
AUSTIN, TX 78701 FAX NO: (512) 854-9185

ISSUED TO: EXECUTED DATE OF

Southwest Key Maintenance MODIFICATION NO.: 2 ORIGINAL CONTRACT:

Attn: Mr. Juan J. Sanchez February 9, 2010

6002 Jam Lane
Austin,_TX_78721

ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES: CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES:
February 9, 2010 through February 8.2011 February 9,2011 through February 8. 2012

FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY:

Original Contract Amount: $ N/A Current Modified Amount
$____________________

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES:

Effective September 20, 201 1, the Contractor’s name on Contract No. 1 OTOO I O8DR is changed as follows:

From: Southwest Key Maintenance, LLC To: Southwest Key Green Energy and Construction, LLC
6002 Jam Lane 6002 Jam Lane
Austin, Texas 78721 Austin, Texas 78721

Note to Vendor:

I x 1 Complete and execute (sign) your portion of the signature block section below for all copies and return all signed copies to Travis County.

I 1 00 NOT execute and return to Travis County. Retain for your records.

Li_C.
D DBA

D
CORPORA
TION

0 OTHER

TITLE: ‘o--a DATE:

ITS DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT /w
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS DATE:

BY:__________________________________________________
CYD V. GRIMES, C.P.M., TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS DATE:

BY:_____________________________________________________________________________
SAMUE[. T. BISCOE. TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE

PRINT NAME

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT

The parties to this Agreement are, Southwest Key Maintenance, LLC, Tax ID 260139649, a limited liability

company (the Assignor) under the laws of the state of Texas, and, Southwest Key Green Energy and Construction,

LLC. Tax ID 272310750, a limited liability company (the Assignee) under the laws of the state of Texas.

RECITALS:

A. Travis County and Southwest Key Maintenance, LLC entered into a written Contract for
providing Residential Roof Repair (Contract No. IOTOOIO8DR) dated February 9, 2010, a copy of
which is attached to this assignment and incorporated in it by referenced (the “Contract”).

B. Assignor desires by this Agreement all of its right, title and interest in and to the Contract to
Assignee subject to the terms of the Contract and this Agreement.

TERMS:

In consideration of the mutual agreements in this assignment, the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. Assignor assigns to Assignee all of its right, title and interest in Contract Number 1OTOOIO8DR,

attached to this assignment, as of September 20. 2011.

2. Assignee assumes and is bound by and must perfonn all terms, conditions, covenants,
obligations, and duties of Assignor under the Contract accruing on or after September 20.2011.

3. This assignment of contract is intended to assign not only obligations but also benefits of Contract
Number IOTOOIO8DR after September 20, 2011, including benefits accruing as a result of work
commenced.

4. Assignor and Assignee acknowledge that nothing in this Agreement waives or modifies any of the

provisions of the Contract.

5. The provisions of this Agreement are binding on and inure to the benefit of the heirs,
representatives, successors and assigns of the parties.

SOUTHWEST KEY MAINTENANCE, LLC SOUThWEST KEY GREEN ENERGY AND
CONST C ON, LLC

By: 47/
4

Printed Name: 0. 4&v-.ea... Printed Name:

___________________

Title & Date: (b C_\-.s R/o (t Title & Date: Leqa Cuiicc,
Attest:

________________________________________________

Attest:

________________________________________

Date:

____________________________________________

Date:

____________________________________

Travis County consents to this assignment of the Contract from Southwest Key Maintenance, LLC. to Southwest

Key Green Energy and Construction, LLC.

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

By:

___________________________

Sam Biscoe, County Judge

Date:

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



P1655101 TRAVIS COUNTY 10/26/11
Account Balance Inquiry 15:49:30

Fiscal Year : 2012
Account number : 1-5857-611.62—77

: 001 GENERAL FUND
: 58 HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES
: 57 HOUSING SERVICES
: 61 HEALTH—HUM SVCS (HUM SVC)

1

HUMAN SERVICES
: 62 HUMAN SERVICES
: 77 CONTRACTED SERVCS-HOUSING

193,743
88,700.09

.00
6,666.28—

82, 033. 81
111,709.19

Fund
Department
Division .

Basic activity
Sub activity
Element . .

Object . .

Budget
Encumbered amount
Pre-encumbered amount
Expenditures . . .

Total expenditures .

Balance

Press Enter to continue.

F3=Exit Fl2Cancel

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



P1655101

Fiscal Year
Account number
Fund
Department
Division
Basic activity
Sub activity
Element .

Object .

Budget
Encumbered amount
Pre—encuinbered amount
Expenditures

Total expenditures
Balance

Press Enter to continue.

TRAVIS COUNTY
Account Balance Inquiry

88,201
6,073.78
9,737.70
1,815.94—

13, 995.54
74,205.46

10/26/11
15: 49: 45

: 2012
: 1—5857—611.62—78
: 001 GENERAL FUND
: 58 HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES
: 57 HOUSING SERVICES
: 61 HEALTH-HUM SVCS (HUM SVC)
: 1 HUMAN SERVICES
: 62 HUMAN SERVICES
: 78 SUPPLIES — HOUSING GRANT

F3=Exit F12=Cancel

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



P1655101

Fiscal Year
Account number
Fund
Department
Division
Basic activity
Sub activity
Element .

Object .

: 2012
: 1—5858—611.62—77
: 001 GENERAL FUND
: 58 HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES
: 58 CoA Weatherization
: 61 HEALTH—HUM SVCS (HUM SVC)
: 1 HUMAN SERVICES
: 62 HUMAN SERVICES
: 77 CONTRACTED SERVCS-HOUSING

10/26/11
15: 50: 02

Budget
Encumbered amount
Pre-encumbered amount
Expenditures . .

Total expenditures
Balance

Press Enter to continue.

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

TRAVIS COUNTY
Account Balance Inquiry

0

F3Exit F12=Cancel

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



P1655101 TRAVIS COUNTY 10/26/11
Account Balance Inquiry 15:50:15

Fiscal Year : 2012
Account number : 1—5858—611.62-78
Fund 001 GENERAL FUND
Department : 58 HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES
Division 58 CoA Weatherization
Basic activity : 61 HEALTH-HUM SVCS (HUM SVC)
Sub activity 1 HUMAN SERVICES
Element : 62 HUMAN SERVICES
Object . . . . 78 SUPPLIES - HOUSING GRANT

Budget 0
Encumbered amount . . . 00
Pre—encumbered amount . : . 00
Expenditures : . 00

Total expenditures : .00
Balance .00

Press Enter to continue.

F3Exit Fl2Cancel

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



P1655101

Fiscal Year
Account number
Fund
Department
Division
Basic activity
Sub activity
Element .

Object .

Budget
Encumbered amount
Pre-encumbered amount
Expenditures

Total expenditures

Press Enter to continue.

TRAVIS COUNTY
Account Balance Inquiry

• • • : 2,674,672
• • : 1,456,775.54
• . : 76,390.10
• . : 1,424.66—
• . : 1,531,740.98

1,142,931.02

10/26/11
15:50:31

2012
131—5857—611.62—77

: 131 HOUSING
: 58 HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES
: 57 HOUSING SERVICES
: 61 HEALTH-HUM SVCS (HUM SVC)
: 1 HUMAN SERVICES
: 62 HUMAN SERVICES
: 77 CONTRACTED SERVCS—HOUSING

Balance

F3=Exit F12=Cancel

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Fiscal Year
Account number
Fund
Department
Division
Basic activity
Sub activity
Element .

Object .

2012

: 131—5857—611.62—78
131 HOUSING

: 58 HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES

57

HOUSING SERVICES
: 61 HEALTH-HUM SVCS (HUM SVC)

1

HUMAN SERVICES
: 62 HUMAN SERVICES

78

SUPPLIES - HOUSING GRANT

10/26/11
15: 50: 45

Encumbered amount
Pre-encumbered amount
Expenditures . .

Total expenditures
Balance

Press Enter to continue.

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

P1655101 TRAVIS COUNTY
Account Balance Inquiry

Budget 0

F3Exit Fl2Cancel

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Fiscal Year
Account number
Fund
Department
Division
Basic activity
Sub activity
Element .

Object .

10/26/11
15:51:04

Budget
Encumbered amount
Pre—encurnbered amount
Expenditures .

Total expenditures
Balance

Press Enter to continue.

117, 103
46,712.94

.00
794.70—

45, 918.24
71, 184.76

P1655101 TRAVIS COUNTY
Account Balance Inquiry

2012
149—5857—611.62—77

149

HOUSING
: 58 HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES
: 57 HOUSING SERVICES
: 61 HEALTH-HUM SVCS (HUM SVC)

1

HUMAN SERVICES
: 62 HUMAN SERVICES
: 77 CONTRACTED SERVCS-HOUSING

F3Exit F12=Cancel

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



2012
• : 149—5857—611.62—78

: 149 HOUSING
: 58 HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES
: 57 HOUSING SERVICES
: 61 HEALTH-HUM SVCS (HUM SVC)

1

HUMAN SERVICES
: 62 HUMAN SERVICES
: 78 SUPPLIES — HOUSING GRANT

10 /2 6/11
15: 51: 27

TRAVIS COUNTY
Account Balance Inquiry

P1655101

Fiscal Year
Account number
Fund
Department
Division .

Basic activity
Sub activity
Element . .

Object . .

Budget
Encumbered amount . .

Pre-encunibered amount
Expenditures

Total expenditures . .

Balance

Press Enter to continue.

93,223
106,812.36
16,440.64
61, 106.84—
62, 146.16
31, 076.84

F3Exit Fl2Cancel

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



2012
• : 141—5854—611.62—77

• 141 CEAP (COMP ENGRY ASST PR)
: 58 HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES
: 54 FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES
: 61 HEALTH-HUM SVCS (HUM SVC)
: 1 HUMAN SERVICES
: 62 HUMAN SERVICES
: 77 CONTRACTED SERVCS-HOUSING

P1655101 TRAVIS COUNTY
Account Balance Inquiry

Fiscal Year
Account number
Fund
Department
Division .

Basic activity
Sub activity
Element . .

Object . •

10/26/11
15: 51: 41

Budget
Encumbered amount
Pre-encumbered amount
Expenditures . .

Total expenditures
Balance

Press Enter to continue.

69,220
56, 919.71

225.00
965.66—

56, 179.05
13,040.95

F3=Exit F12=Cancel

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m.
for the next week's meeting.

Meeting Date: November 8, 2011
Prepared By/Phone Number: Michael Long/854 4850; Marvin Brice/854 
9765
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe

Agenda Language:  Approve award of Contract No. PS120029ML to 
Workforce Solutions-Capital Area Workforce Board for the Rapid 
Employment Model Program Expansion.

Ø Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes.

Through this contract, Workforce Solutions will provide a pilot expansion to 
the Rapid Employment Model (REM).  
Workforce Solutions proposes that Travis County expand our investment to 
enhance and expand the REM project.  The proposed enhancements will:

• Increase the number of job seekers served by 50% (from 80 to 120)
• Incorporate training to earn Work Readiness Certification, and
• Diversify the training opportunities available to job seekers to include 

on-the-job training opportunities.

To make this possible, the Workforce Solutions Career Centers will add two 
full-time staff dedicated to the REM project.  The REM project has been 
subject to independent evaluation by the Ray Marshall Center at the 
University of Texas; they have found consistently high employment rates 
and earnings that exceed initial targets for those that successfully complete 
the training portion of the program.

Travis County staff worked with Workforce Solutions to develop the REM 
project and have been the primary funder of the project from its inception.  
Overall, the employment rate for all participants after services is more than 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request

Item 10
Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m.
for the next week's meeting.

double the employment rate before services.  Earnings after services are 
35% higher after services.  With a history of success going back to 2006, 
HHS&VS believes that building on the REM model is an appropriate 
strategy.

Ø Contract Expenditures: N/A

Ø Contract-Related Information:

Award Amount: $125,000
Contract Type: Professional Services
Contract Period: October 1, 2011 – December 31, 2012

Ø Contract Modification Information:

Modification Amount: N/A
Modification Type:  N/A
Modification Period: N/A

Ø Solicitation-Related Information:

Solicitations Sent: N/A Responses Received: N/A
HUB Information: N/A % HUB Subcontractor: N/A

Ø Special Contract Considerations:  

 Award has been protested
 Award is not to the lowest bidder
 Comments:  

Ø Funding Information:
 Purchase Requisition in H.T.E.: 540475
 Funding Account(s): 001 589 1611 6294
 Comments:

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 

 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  
CONTRACT 

 
BETWEEN 

 

TRAVIS COUNTY 
 

AND 
 

WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS- 
CAPITAL AREA WORKFORCE BOARD 

 
FOR 

 

SOCIAL SERVICES  
 

 

CONTRACT NO. PS120029ML 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Travis County Purchasing Office 
 
 
 

 

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.

Longm1
Typewritten Text



 
 

 

1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

CONTRACT FOR  
SOCIAL SERVICES 

BETWEEN TRAVIS COUNTY AND 
WORKSOURCE dba 

WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS - CAPITAL AREA WORKFORCE BOARD 
FOR ENHANCED RAPID EMPLOYMENT MODEL 

 
 
 I.  PARTIES 
 

This Contract ("Contract") 
is entered into by the following Parties: 

 
Travis County, a political subdivision of Texas ("County") and 

WorkSource, dba Workforce Solutions - Capital Area Workforce Board ("Contractor") 
 
 
 II.  RECITALS 
 
 
County has the authority to provide for the care of indigents and other qualified recipients (TEX. LOC. GOV'T. CODE, 
Section 81.027, and other statutes); and County has the authority to provide for public health education and information 
services (TEX. HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE, Chapters 121 and 122, and other statutes); and provision of the 
above services constitutes a public purpose. 
 
Travis County Health, Human Services and Veterans' Services has the authority to perform all public health functions 
that County can perform through TEX. HEALTH & SAFETY CODE ANN., Section 121.032. 
 
Commissioners Court of County may exempt personal and professional services from complying with the competitive 
procurement process under TEX. LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE ANN., § 262 et seq. and has issued or hereby 
issues such an order of exemption for the services provided under the terms of this Contract. 
 
Pursuant to the terms of this Contract, Contractor will provide personal and professional services for the care of 
indigents and other qualified recipients and/or for public health education and information, thus providing services 
which will further the achievement of a public purpose. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these agreements, covenants, and payments, the amount and sufficiency of 
which are acknowledged, County and Contractor agree to the terms and conditions stated in this Contract. 
 
 
 

PS120029ML 
1 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.

Longm1
Typewritten Text

Longm1
Typewritten Text

Longm1
Typewritten Text

Longm1
Typewritten Text



 
 

 

2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 III.  DEFINITIONS 
 
1.0   In this Contract, 
 
 1.1 "CAN" means the Community Action Network. 
 
 1.2 "Commissioners Court" means the Travis County Commissioners Court. 
  
 1.3 "Contract Funds" means all funds paid by County to Contractor pursuant to Sections 6.0 - 8.0, and 
other applicable provisions of this Contract.  
 
 1.4 "Contract Term" means the Initial Term and/or any Renewal Term, or any other period of time 
designated in writing as a Contract Term by the Parties. 
 
 1.5 "County Auditor" means Susan Spataro, the Travis County Auditor, or her successor. 
 
 1.6 "County Department," "Department" and/or "TCHHSVS" mean the office of Travis County Health, 
Human Services and Veterans' Services. 
 
 1.7 "County Purchasing Agent" means Cyd Grimes, the Travis County Purchasing Agent, or her 
successor. 
 
 1.8 "Day(s)" means calendar day(s), unless otherwise specifically noted in any individual provision.  
 
 1.9   "Eligible Client" means a person who is: 
 
  (a) a person in a particular program as designated by County who meets any specific eligibility 

criteria described in this Contract.  
  
AND 
 
  (b) a person who meets statutory and/or Contract requirements necessary to receive services 

under this Contract.   
 
 
 1.10 "County Executive" means Sherri Fleming, Executive Manager of Travis County Health, Human 
Services and Veterans' Services, or her successor or designated representative. 
 
 1.11 "Fiscal Year" means the County Fiscal Year, which is that twelve-month time period between any 
October 1 and the next following September 30.  
 

PS120029ML 
2 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 1.12 "Is doing business" and "has done business" mean: 
 
  1.12.1 Paying or receiving in any calendar year any money or valuable thing which is worth more 

than $250 in the aggregate in exchange for personal services or for purchase of any property or property 
interest, either real or personal, either legal or equitable; or 

 
  1.12.2 Loaning or receiving a loan of money, or goods or otherwise creating or having in existence 

any legal obligation or debt with a value of more than $250 in the aggregate in a calendar year; 
 
  1.12.3 but does not include: 
 

  1.12.3.1 Any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a Key Contracting Person at a 
 posted, published, or marked price available to the general public. 

 
  1.12.3.2 any financial services product sold to a Key Contracting Person for personal, 
 family or household purposes in accordance with pricing guidelines applicable to similarly situated 
 individuals with similar risks as determined by Contractor in the ordinary course of its business; and 

 
  1.12.3.3 a transaction for a financial service or insurance coverage made on behalf of 
 Contractor if Contractor is a national or multinational corporation by an agent, employee or other 
 representative of Contractor who does not know and is not in a position that he or she should have 
 known about the Contract. 

 
 1.13 "Key Contracting Person" means any person or business listed in Exhibit A to the Affidavit attached 
to this Contract and marked Attachment G. 
 
 1.14 "Parties" and "Party" means the County and/or Contractor. 
 
 1.15 "Poverty Income Guidelines" means the guidelines established by the United States Office of Health 
and Human Services for the current Fiscal Year of the federal government. 
 
 1.17 "Reimbursable," "Allowable," or "Authorized Costs" means those amounts authorized to be paid by 
County to Contractor under the terms of this Contract with Contract Funds. 
 
 1.18 "Subcontract" means any agreement between Contractor and another party to fulfill, either directly or 
indirectly, any of the requirements of this Contract, in whole or in part.  
 
 1.19 "Subcontractor" means any party providing services required or allowed under this Contract to an 
Eligible Client or to Contractor under an agreement between Contractor and that party, including contractor(s), 
subcontractor(s), and other subrecipient(s) of Contractor, and any party or parties providing services for Contractor 
which will be paid for using Contract Funds committed by County to be paid to Contractor under this Contract.  
 

PS120029ML 
3 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 IV. KEY PROVISIONS 
 
2.0   CONTRACT TERM 
 
 2.1 Initial Term.  The Parties agree that this Contract shall continue in full force for the Initial Term 
which begins October 1, 2011, and terminates December 31, 2012, unless earlier terminated by the Parties pursuant to 
the terms of this Contact.   
 
 2.2   Renewal Term(s)   
 
  2.2.1 Written Renewal.  Unless sooner terminated in compliance with the provisions of this 

Contract, this Contract may only be renewed by action evidenced in writing and executed by County and 
Contractor.  

 
  2.2.2 Renewal Provisions.  Unless sooner terminated pursuant to the terms of this Contract, and 

conditioned upon the approval by the Commissioners Court of continued funding during the budget process 
related to the Renewal Term, and within the limits of that budgetary approval, this Contract may be renewed 
under Section 2.2 by written agreement signed by County and Contractor for up to six (6) additional one-year 
periods, or for whatever time period is agreed to in writing by County and Contractor.  The exercise of any 
option to renew under this provision shall be with the understanding that all terms and conditions, including 
the negotiated rates, remain unchanged and in full force and effect, unless this Contract is specifically 
amended pursuant to Section 4.0 of this Contract to make any changes in those terms.  Non-competitive 
renewal shall be based upon the Contractor's positive performance and County's continuing need for the 
services as determined by County. 

 
3.0 CONTRACT FUNDS 
 
 3.1 Contract Funds Amount.  Subject to Sections 6.0 - 8.0, and other applicable provisions, during the 
Initial Term, County shall make available for payment to Contractor for services provided pursuant to the terms of this 
Contract, funds in an amount not to exceed: 
 
     $  125,000.00 
 
 
 
4.0   AMENDMENTS, CHANGES OR MODIFICATIONS  
 
 4.1   Written.  Unless specifically provided otherwise in this Contract, any amendment, change or 
modification ("Amendment") to the terms of this Contract or any attachments to it shall be made in writing and signed 
by both Parties.  No Amendment concerning this Contract shall be of any force or effect unless entered into pursuant to 
this Section 4.0. 
 
 4.2.  Authority to Change. CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT NO OFFICER, AGENT, 
EMPLOYEE OR REPRESENTATIVE OF COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY TO CHANGE THE TERMS 

PS120029ML 
4 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OF THIS CONTRACT OR ANY ATTACHMENTS TO IT UNLESS EXPRESSLY GRANTED THAT 
AUTHORITY BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT UNDER A SPECIFIC PROVISION OF THIS 
CONTRACT OR BY SEPARATE ACTION BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT.   
 
 4.3 Non-Compliance.  Contractor agrees that any action taken by Contractor which does not comply 
with the terms of this Contract and which has not been approved under the terms of the Contract or written amendment 
thereto (pursuant to this Section 4.0) subjects Contractor to disallowance of payments related to such actions and 
possible termination of this Contract. Verbal discussion or other indications of changes to this Contract will NOT be 
effective. 
 
 4.4    Submission.  Contractor shall submit all requests for all Amendments (including all changes, 
modifications, alterations, additions or deletions) of the terms of this Contract or any attachment to it to the Travis 
County Purchasing Agent with a copy to the Executive Manager.  Upon agreement by the County Department, the 
request will be presented by the Purchasing Agent to the Commissioners Court for consideration.  No changes will be 
effective as to County until approved in writing by Commissioners Court (or Purchasing agent under Section 4.5). 
 
 4.5 Purchasing Agent Authority.  Contractor understands and agrees that the Purchasing Agent has 
certain authority to approve an Amendment subject to applicable law (specifically the County Purchasing Act, TEX. 
LOC. GOV'T CODE, Chapter 262, and other applicable law) and County policy, as approved by the Commissioners 
Court.  Within that authority, the Purchasing Agent may approve Amendment requests under this Contract.   The 
Purchasing Agent will advise Contractor as to such authority upon submission of a request for Amendment; at any 
time, the Purchasing Agent may submit any request to the Commissioners Court for approval, regardless of the 
authority of the Purchasing Agent to sign the Amendment. 
 
5.0   ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 
 5.1   All Agreements.  All oral and written agreements between the Parties to this Contract relating to the 
subject matter of this Contract that were made prior to the execution of this Contract, including the applicable terms of 
the Contract, have been reduced to writing and are contained in this Contract. 
 
 5.2   Attachments.  The attachments enumerated and denominated below are hereby made a part of this 
Contract, and constitute promised performances by Contractor in accordance with all terms of this Contract. 
  

   5.2.1 Attachment A   Program Cover Page - Form # 2 
   5.2.2 Attachment B  Program Work Statement - Form # 3 
   5.2.3 Attachment C Special Conditions (if applicable) 
   5.2.4 Attachment D Program Budget  - Form # 4 
   5.2.5 Attachment E Program Budget Narrative - Form # 5 
   5.2.6 Attachment F Total Program Staff Positions and Time - Form # 6 
 `  5.2.7 Attachment G Total Program Funding Summary - Form # 7 
   5.2.8 Attachment H Subcontracted Expense Form - Form # 8 
   5.2.9 Attachment I Performance Report Definition Tool - Form # 9 

  5.2.10 Attachment J Insurance Requirements 
  5.2.11 Attachment K Ethics Affidavit  

PS120029ML 
5 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
V. FINANCIAL PROVISIONS 

 
6.0 CONTRACT FUNDS 
 
 6.1 Maximum Funds.  Subject to the requirements of this Section 6.0 and other applicable provisions 
of this Contract, in consideration of full and satisfactory performance of the services and activities provided by 
Contractor under the terms of this Contract, as determined by County, County shall provide Contract Funds not to 
exceed the following amount during the Initial Contract Term: 
 
    $  $125,000.00 
 
 6.2 Fiscal Year Limitations.   
 
  6.2.1 County Budget.  Contract Funds will be provided as further set forth in Attachment C, 

"Budget," of this Contract.  Contractor agrees that the sum stated in Sections 3.0 and Section 6.1 is the 
maximum amount to be paid by County to Contractor during the Initial Contract Term unless Sections 3.0 
and 6.1 are changed pursuant to Section 4.0, "Amendment," and that the total costs of this Contract shall in 
no event exceed the amount included in the County's budget and designated for this purpose for this 
Contract unless or until an increase in the County budget is approved by the Commissioners Court.  If this 
Contract is renewed under Section 2.2, it is understood and agreed that the amount set forth in the "Budget" 
will be amended, as necessary, for each Renewal Term to reflect those amounts approved by the 
Commissioners Court in its budget process for that Contract Term. 

 
  6.2.2 Fiscal Year Division.  Contractor expressly agrees that County funding obligations can 

ONLY be incurred for the portion of any Contract Term corresponding to a time period included in the 
approved budget for any one Fiscal Year.  As a result, of the total set forth in Section 6.1, Contractor 
cannot invoice, and will not be paid for expenditures during the following designated periods which are 
greater than the following amounts:  

 
  (a) October 1, 2011 - September 30, 2012  (80% of Total) 
     $ 100,000.00 
  
  (b) October 1, 2012 - December 31, 2012  (20% of Total) 
     $    25,000l00 
 
  6.2.3 Subsequent Fiscal Year Funding.  Contractor agrees that Contractor cannot invoice and 

will not be paid for services provided between October 1, 2011, and September 30, 2012, from designated 
under Section 6.2.1(b).  Contractor agrees that funds set out in Section 6.2.1(b) are contingent upon 
approval of such funding for the Contract by the Commissioners Court in the budget process related to the 
Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2012; and that the amount set forth under Section 6.2.1(b) may be 
decreased or eliminated by the Commissioners Court during that budget process without liability of County 
to Contractor.  This Section 6.2 will apply to any future Contract Term(s) within the Fiscal Year dates 
applicable to that Contract Term(s). 

PS120029ML 
6 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  6.2.4 Budget Period Limits.  In no event shall any provision of this Contract or any agreement 

subject to this Contract be interpreted to obligate the County beyond the funds approved by the 
Commissioners Court for any Fiscal Year/budget period.  Payments by County during the Initial Term or 
any Contract Term shall be subject to the Fiscal Year limitations applicable to this Contract.  

 
7.0 INVOICING AND PAYMENT 
 
 7.1 Request for Payments. 
 
  7.1.1 Monthly Request.  Each month during any Contract or Renewal Term, Contractor shall 

file, within the time limits set forth in this Section 7.0, and pursuant to applicable requirements of this 
Contract, the complete and correct (as determined by County Department) Request for Payment form(s) 
(Attachment E) and complete backup documentation.  Contractor agrees that additional documentation 
supporting Contract expenses, such as signed timesheets, invoices, receipts, purchase orders or other 
information, will be reviewed by County during monitoring visit(s), and that additional reporting 
requirements may be implemented by County at any time that such monitoring or review reveals a need for 
such, as determined by County.   

 
  7.1.2 Timely Filing of Request.   
 

  a) Filing.  The Request for Payment form(s) shall be filed with the TCHHSVS 
 within fifteen (15) days of the end of the month for which services are provided.  Any delay by 
 Contractor in the filing of the complete and correct Request for Payment form(s) may impact the 
 ultimate receipt of payment by Contractor.  County shall pay Contractor for authorized 
 expenditures, as determined and approved by the County Department reported in that Request for 
 Payment within thirty (30) days of receipt by TCHHSVS of that complete and correct (as defined 
 in this Contract) Request for Payment in accordance with the Prompt Payment Act (TEX. GOVT'. 
 CODE, Chapter 2251). 
 
  (b) Request Limitation. County shall not be liable to Contractor for any costs incurred 
 and paid by Contractor in the performance of this Contract which are not billed to County under the 
 applicable terms of this Contract within sixty (60) days following the provision of the service or sixty 
 (60) days following the termination of this Initial Contract Term (or any Contract Term, as applicable 
 to the term in which the services were provided),whichever occurs first. Costs billed by Contractor 
on  or after the 61st day following provision of services or the termination of any Contract Term 
 (whichever applies) shall be considered disallowed and may not be paid by County. 

 
  7.1.3 Content.   Billing detail must include, at a minimum, that information set forth in Section 

18.2, and other applicable provisions, of this Contract.  Contractor may only request payment for actual 
costs incurred and paid by Contractor pursuant to the terms of this Contract. 

 
  7.1.4 Complete and Correct Request.  Contractor understands and agrees that the payment by 

County of the Request for Payment amount will only be made where a complete and correct Request for 

PS120029ML 
7 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Payment is determined by County to have been filed.   
 

  7.1.5 Contractor Corrections.  If County determines that corrections and/or changes to the 
Request for Payment are necessary, the Request for Payment will be returned to Contractor and those 
corrections or changes must be made by Contractor prior to the Request for Payment being certified by 
County for Payment as complete and correct.  If the completion of those corrections and/or changes by 
Contractor and subsequent re-submission to TCHHSVS result in the delay of the certification of a Request 
for Payment (or "invoice") by County, Contractor understands and agrees that the time for payment under 
the Prompt Payment Act (TEX. GOV'T. CODE, Chapter 2251) will not begin to run until that invoice has 
been corrected so that it is, as determined by County Department, correct and complete as necessary for 
certification by County.  The time for payment under the Prompt Payment Act (TEX. GOV'T. CODE, 
Chapter 2251) will only begin at the receipt of the Request for Payment by TCHHSVS of what is 
determined, pursuant to this Subsection 7.1.5 and other applicable provisions, to be a complete and correct 
Request for Payment. 

 
  7.1.6 County Correction.  At any time that County discovers a discrepancy in an invoice that 

would result in Contractor receiving up to Five Dollars ($5.00) less than the amount invoiced,  County may 
contact Contractor for written permission (via email or fax) to adjust the invoice according to the County's 
determination.  Upon receipt of such written permission, County may adjust the invoice as agreed to by 
Contractor, and Contractor agrees to accept the resulting payment as payment in full; no further accounting 
will be made nor will any future payments be adjusted related to the amount so waived by Contractor under 
this provision. Contractor understands and agrees that consent under this Subsection 7.1.6 constitutes a 
complete and total waiver of the amount deducted from the total invoiced amount.  This provision allowing for 
correction by County of a Request for Payment will ONLY apply where the County's determination of money 
to be paid to Contractor is less than the total amount shown on the Request for Payment; at any time that the 
discrepancy involves and increase in the amount to be paid, the Request for Payment will be returned to 
Contractor for correction.   

 
8.0 CONTRACT FUNDS RESTRICTIONS 
 
 8.1 County Payment.  
   
  8.1.1 Reimbursement Only.  Contractor agrees that, unless otherwise specifically provided for 

in this Contract, payment by County under the terms of this Contract is made on a reimbursement basis 
only; Contractor must have incurred and paid costs prior to those costs being invoiced and considered 
allowable under this Contract and subject to payment by County.   

 
  8.1.2 Department Determination.  County and Contractor also agree that determination of 

allowable expenses and payment of Contract Funds will be directed by County Department. 
 
  8.1.3 Pre/Post-Term Debts.  County shall not be liable for costs incurred or performances 

rendered by Contractor before or after the Contract Term; for expenses not billed to County within the 
applicable time frames set forth in this Contract; for any payment for services or activities not provided 
pursuant to the terms of this Contract.  

PS120029ML 
8 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 8.2 Maintenance of Funds.  The Contractor shall deposit and maintain all monies received under this 
Contract in either a separate numbered bank account or in a general operating account, either of which shall be 
supported with the maintenance of a separate accounting fund or a general fund with a specific chart of accounts which 
reflect and identifies revenues and expenditures for the monies received under this Contract from County. Contractor 
agrees to provide County with copies of specific chart(s) of account(s) maintained under this Section 8.2 upon request 
of County. 
 
 8.3 Allowable Costs - Direct Performance.  References to reimbursable costs in this Contract refer 
only to those costs or expenses authorized to be paid by County to Contractor under the terms of this Contract by 
Contract Funds. Costs shall be considered allowable only if, as determined by County, those costs are: 
 
  (a)  incurred and paid by Contractor directly and specifically in the performance of this Contract; and  
 
  (b)  incurred and paid by Contractor pursuant to all requirements of this Contract; and  
 
  (c)  incurred and paid by Contractor in conformance with budget documents attached hereto and in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.   
 
  (e)  included and identifiable in Contractor's budget document attached to this Contract as required in 

this Contract. 
 
  (f)  incurred and paid as set forth in Section 8.1.1, and other applicable provisions. 
 
 8.4 Indirect Costs.  Indirect Costs, as defined by generally accepted accounting principles, are not 
considered to be allowable costs under this Contract.  
 
 8.5   Specific Prior Authorization- Items NOT in Contractor's Budget.  Section 8.3 
notwithstanding, if the following are NOT in Contractor's specific budget documents (specific inclusion in the 
budget document will be considered approval), County's prior written authorization, through County Department, 
by the Executive Manager, is required in order for the following to be considered allowable costs, and therefore 
reimbursable under this Contract: 

 
  8.5.1  Non-Expendable Capital Acquisition.  Purchases of any non-expendable Capital Acquisition 

Property which meets the following criteria: 
 

  (a)   The following if with a value of more than $500.00:  Fax machines, stereo 
systems,  cameras, video recorder/players, microcomputers, software, printers, microscopes, oscilloscopes, 
 centrifuges, balances and incubators. 

  
  (b) any other tangible non-expendable property with a value of more than $5,000.00. 

 
   8.5.2   Facilities.  Alteration or relocation of facilities.  

 

PS120029ML 
9 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  8.5.3 Professional Services.  The acquisition of all consultant or professional services, as may be 
approved under the terms of this Contract.  All consultant or professional services must be documented 
utilizing the appropriate County form. 

 
  8.5.4 Out Of Town Travel.  Out of town travel shall be approved/reimbursed pursuant to Section 

8.6. 
 
  8.5.5   Notification.  Contractor shall provide County, through TCHHSVS, written notification of 

any change in vendor or subcontractor (including consultants) which has been identified in Contractor's 
budget prior to submission of a Request for Payment related to such vendor or subcontractor in order to ensure 
timely payment.   

 
  8.5.6   Failure to Obtain Approval.  Any costs which are described by this Subsection 8.5 which 

are incurred by Contractor without the required approval may be considered disallowed; and may not be paid 
by County; or payment may be delayed. 

 
 8.6 Out of Town Travel Expenses.  
 
  8.6.1 Allowable Travel.  In order to be considered a reimbursable expense under this Contract, all 

travel must be for a purpose directly related to the provision of services under this Contract (with supporting 
documentation available for review by County).  Individual(s) included in travel must either be employees or 
volunteers who must participate in such travel in order to further the provision of services provided under this 
Contract.  Final determination of such relationship shall be made solely by County and Contractor understands 
and agrees that, if Contractor is in doubt about the relationship of the travel or participants to County services, 
it is the Contractor's obligation to secure written County determination prior to incurring the travel cost, or risk 
such costs being disallowed by County. 

 
  8.6.2 Budget.  Travel will be considered approved only if the expense of such travel is included in 

Contractor's budget and the details of the travel have been provided according to the Out Of Town Travel 
Form ("Travel Form") attached to this Contract as Attachment E(v).  If that Travel Form has not be completed 
and included in this Contract, then the Travel Form must be completed and submitted to County through the 
County Department for written approval by the Executive Manager or his designated representative prior to 
the travel taking place.  Contractor agrees to provide such information within a timeframe that will allow 
sufficient time for review and approval by County Department prior to incurring such expense.  Expenses set 
out in the Travel Form must meet the requirements in Section 8.6.4 below and must fall within the amount set 
forth in Contractor's budget for travel. 

 
  8.6.3 Failure to Obtain Approval.  Any costs incurred related to travel without the approval 

required under this Section 8.6 may be considered disallowed; and may not be paid by County; or payment 
may be delayed. 

 
  8.6.4 County Policies.  Expenses for travel and attendance to destinations outside the City of 

Austin/Travis County are NOT considered an allowable expense and will not be reimbursable under this 
Contract unless those expenses meet the following criteria (and documentation is provided/made available 

PS120029ML 
10 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

supporting compliance with these requirements) and all requirements of this Section 8.6: 
  
   (a) Mileage -  
 - Reimbursed at the annual standard rate set by the Internal Revenue Services. 

- Starts from the employee's regular work place on business workdays and from the employee's home on 
non-work days and holidays. 
- Travel out of county greater than 1000 miles round-trip - transportation expenses are reimbursed in an 
amount not to exceed the cost of round-trip coach airfare in effect at the time of the travel encumbrance. 
- Transportation expenses include lodging, meals and mileage incurred as a result of driving rather than 
flying. 

 
  (b) Air Fare - 

- Not to exceed the rate of a non-refundable coach fare in effect at the time of the travel encumbrance 
 
  (c) Accommodations -  

- Based on rates, plus taxes, quoted by the lodging place if government rates are not available. 
 - Supporting documentation of lodging place and quoted rates must be provided 
 
  (d) Meals - 
 - $39.00 per day including gratuities without receipts 
  OR 
 - Up to $50.00 per day for meals and gratuities up to 15% if receipts are submitted 
 - Only if required to be away from home overnight 
 - No reimbursement for alcoholic beverages 
 
  (e) Incidental Expenses - 
 - Actual costs of car rentals, taxi fares, parking fees, and bus fares if receipts are attached 
 - Mileage for two round trips to airport if choose to get a ride instead of parking 
 
 - Cab fare to and from airport 

- No reimbursement for extracurricular activities such as golf, tennis, entertainment, movies, tours or sport 
events 
- No payment for fines for violation of the law such as parking tickets, speeding tickets, etc. 

 - No payment for food and/or beverages provided at meetings or in-house training 
 
  (f) Alternate Travel -  

- May be reimbursed for alternate travel arrangements (transportation mode, accommodations, or schedule) 
provided that the cost is not greater than the least expensive alternative if pre-approved 

 
Out of town travel expenses under this Section 8.6 which do not meet the specified County criteria cannot be approved 
by the Executive Manager, but would have to be taken to the Commissioners Court for approval PRIOR to travel.  All 
out-of-town travel expenses must be included in Contractor's budget.   
 
 8.7 Overtime Compensation.  Contractor may use any Contract Funds to pay overtime and/or the 

PS120029ML 
11 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

associated fringe benefits on such overtime if the overtime meets the following requirements: 
 
  (a)  Amount is included in the Contractor's budget; and 

 
 (b) Amount is actually incurred by a Contractor employee who holds a position which is 
included in the budget for reimbursement by County Funds (as documented by a signed timesheet); and 
 
 (c) Amount is incurred as a necessity in the provision of direct services provided under this 
Contract; and 
 
 (d) Contractor maintains and implements a written policy concerning overtime compensation 
which manages and controls the use of overtime to minimize the need for overtime compensation. 

 
 8.8 Non-Allowable Costs.  The following are not reimbursable costs, whether incurred directly or 
indirectly in performance of this Contract and may not be included in Contractor's budget: 
 
  (a) Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) for employees whether or not those costs are for 

current year benefits, prior year benefits, or future year benefits. 
 
  (b) Employee recognition, rewards, or awards other than performance pay pursuant to 

compensation schedules. 
 
  (c) Entertainment and gifts, including meals or beverages, even if related to a business purpose. 

 This subsection (c) notwithstanding, the Contract will pay for an employee's own meal and beverage expenses 
incurred during out-of-town trips or conferences related to services provided under this Contract if properly 
budgeted and if incurred according to the Contractor's travel policy as approved by County. 

 
  (d) Legislative consultant services. 
 
  (e) Donations to non-profit or private organizations. 
 
  (f) Legal services provided to Contractor. 
 
  (g) General consulting services that are not directly provided as a specific program service. 
 
9.0  RETURN OF CONTRACT FUNDS 
 
 9.1  Contractor Liability.  Contractor shall be liable to County and refund money paid and/or 
advanced to Contractor upon a determination by County that payment or advance: 
 
   9.1.1  has resulted in overpayment 
   9.1.2    has not been spent strictly in accordance with Contract terms 
   9.1.3 exceeds the total expenditures actually reported by Contractor 
   9.1.4  is to be disallowed pursuant to financial, performance and/or compliance audit(s) 

PS120029ML 
12 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   9.1.5 was inappropriately transferred according to Section 11.0 
 
  9.2  Return of Funds.  Return of funds under this Section 9.0 shall be made by Contractor to County 
within thirty (30) days of request by County.  County may offset the amount of any funds owed under this Section 
against the next advance or payment to Contractor under this or any subsequent contract if the return of funds is not 
made within that thirty (30) day period. 
 
10.0   AUDIT 
 
 10.1   Annual Audit.  Unless otherwise authorized by County, through TCHHSVS, under the terms of this 
Contract, Contractor shall arrange for the performance of an annual (at least one time during each consecutive 365-day 
period) financial audit of Contract Funds to be performed within 180 days of the Contractor's fiscal year end, subject to 
the following conditions and limitations:  

  
   10.1.1  Single Audit. 
 

  a.  Single Audit Act Application.  For each Fiscal Year included within a Contract period 
 specified in Section 2.0 ("Contract Term") of this Contract in which Contractor expends a total of 
 $500,000 or more in Federal awards from all sources, Contractor shall have an audit conducted in 
 accordance with the Single Audit Act of 1984, 31 U.S.C., Section 7501 et seq., and OMB Circular 
 No. A-133, "Audits of States, Local Government and other Non-Profit Organizations." 
 
  b.  No Single Audit Act Application.  Contractors not subject to the Single Audit Act, and 
 expending $500,000 or more during the Contractor's fiscal year must have a full financial audit 
 performed.  If less than $500,000 is expended, then a financial review is acceptable, pursuant to the 
 requirements of this Contract. 

 
    c.  Performance Requirements.  The audit or review must be:         
                                                                                 

    (i)  performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant ("CPA"), recognized 
  by the regulatory authority of the State of Texas and a member in good standing of the  
  American Institute of Certified Public Accountants; and 

 
    (ii)  made in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and 

procedures   for a non-profit organization and auditing standards (including a Statement of 
Functional    Expenses) as stated in the "American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants Industry    Audit Guide - Audits of Voluntary Health and Welfare 
Organization;" and  

 
    (iii)  provided for any/each of Contractor's Fiscal Years in which County Funds are 

   provided. 
  

  10.1.2  Entire Operations Option.  At the option of Contractor, each audit or review required by this 
Section 10.0 may cover either Contractor's entire operations or each department, agency, or establishment of 

PS120029ML 
13 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contractor which received, expended, or otherwise administered Contract Funds.  
 
  10.1.3  Financial Records.  Contractor must maintain records which adequately identify the source 

and application of funds provided for those services purchased with Contract Funds.  These records must 
contain information pertaining to authorizations, obligations, un-obligated balances, assets, liabilities, outlays 
or expenditures and income related to Contract Funds. 

 
  10.1.4  Copies.  Contractor shall provide two (2) copies of  its most recent report of the complete 

financial audit and the auditor's opinion and management letters, or the review, to County through TCHHSVS 
 within 180 days of the end of the Contractor's fiscal year end, unless County approves alternative 
arrangements in writing.  In any event, such copies shall be provided no later than September 30 of each year 
in which County funds are received under this Contract. County Department will complete final review of 
such reports within a reasonable time after September 30 of each year upon receipt of such reports.   Copies of 
the report shall also include the auditor's opinion and letters to management. Reviews and audits performed 
under Section 10.1 are subject to consideration and resolution by County or its authorized representative.  
Failure to provide such copies in a timely manner may result in delay of payment, suspension or termination of 
the Contract by County. 

 
  10.1.5  Continued Obligation.  The expiration or termination of this Contract shall in no way relieve  

Contractor of the obligation to meet the requirements of this Section 10.0 in the manner or format prescribed 
by County. 

 
  10.1.6  Cost of Audit.  Contractor understands and agrees that all or a portion of the cost of the 

annual audit as required under this Section 10.0 may be considered an allowable cost and reimbursable under 
this Contract if the following requirements are met: 

 
  (a)  cost is included in Contractor's budget, with the Subcontractor providing such services 
 correctly identified; and  

 
  (b)  the cost billed to County is no greater than the percentage relationship of County 
 Contract Funds to Contractor's total annual budget, with the cost of the audit being a reasonable cost 
 for such services as agreed to by County.  For example, if the total amount of County Contract Funds 
 provided under this Contract is ten percent (10%) of the total Contractor annual budget, then County 
 Contract Funds may be used to reimburse up to ten percent (10%) of the total cost of the annual 
audit. 

 
  10.2   County Audit.  Notwithstanding Section 10.1, County reserves the right to conduct an annual 
financial, compliance, and/or performance audit of the Contract.  Contractor agrees to permit County or its authorized 
representative, to audit Contractor's records and to obtain any documents, materials, or information necessary to 
facilitate such audit. 
 
 10.3   Facilitation.  Contractor shall take whatever action is appropriate to facilitate the performance of any 
audits conducted pursuant to Section 10.0 that County may reasonably require of Contractor.  Such action shall include 
provision of access to Contractor's facilities during Contractor's regular business hours for County to conduct an audit, 

PS120029ML 
14 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

15 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

and the County shall consider reasonable times and places to review records or interview individuals.  Adequate and 
appropriate workspace shall be made available to County or their designees, and all requested records shall be made 
readily available.   
 
 10.4 Contractor Audit Records.   
 
  10.4.1 Content.  Records of Contractor, its subsidiaries, Subcontractors and affiliates subject to 

audit shall include, but not be limited to accounting records, written policies and procedures, subsidiary 
records, correspondence, and any other records which are pertinent to revenue and related costs and expenses 
of this Contract.  This includes, to the extent such detail will properly identify all revenues, all costs, including 
direct and indirect costs of labor, material, equipment, supplies and services and all other costs of expenses of 
whatever nature relating to this Contract (all the foregoing to be referred to as "Records"). 

 
  10.4.2 Subcontractors.  Contractor shall require all Subcontractors, sub-consultants, insurance 

agents, contractors, and suppliers related to this Contract to comply with the provisions of this Section 10.0, 
and any other provisions so designated within this Contract, by inserting the requirements in this Section 10.0 
in any written contract agreements executed between the Contractor and other related parties. 

 
11.0 TRANSFER OF FUNDS.  Notwithstanding Section 4.0, and as specifically applicable, Contractor may 
transfer funds without a written amendment to this Contract ONLY if ALL of the following requirements are met: 
 
 11.1 the transfer moves funds ONLY between line items within the SAME funding source (as set forth in 
Section 6.0) and program ("Program").  IF Contractor is uncertain as to the definition of "line item" and "program" as 
used in this provision, Contractor is responsible for contacting TCHHSVS for a determination as to the applicability of 
this requirement to the Contractor's request for transfer; and 
 
 11.2   the cumulative amount of the transfers between direct budget categories (Personnel, Operating 
Expenses, Direct Assistance and/or Equipment/Capital Outlay) is  not more than ten percent (10%) of the Contract total 
for that Program shown in Section 6.1; and 
 
 11.3   the transfer will not change the scope or objective of the programs funded  under this Contract, solely 
as determined by County through TCHHSVS prior to transfer; and 
 
 11.4   Contractor submits a budget revision form to the County through TCHHSVS prior to, or simulta-
neously with, the submission of the Contractor's first monthly billing to the County following the transfer which shall 
reflect such changes. 
 
 11.5 Contractor agrees that failure to meet the requirements of Section 11.1 - 11.4 may result in any 
transfer of funds being disallowed; as such, the disallowed amount may not be paid by County.  If County determines 
that payment has been made incorrectly for expenses in violation of this Section 11.0, Contractor agrees to refund such 
payment in full to County within twenty (20) days of written request by County for such refund.   
 
12.0 FORMS 
 

PS120029ML 
15 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

16 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 12.1   W-9 Taxpayer Identification Form.  Contractor shall provide the County Purchasing Agent with 
an Internal Revenue Service Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification that is completed 
in compliance with the Internal Revenue Code and its rules and regulations, and a statement of entity status in a form 
satisfactory to the County Auditor.  Contractor understands that this W-9 Form must be provided to the County 
Purchasing Agent before any Contract Funds are payable.  If there are any changes in the W-9 form during the Initial 
Term or any Renewal Term of the Contract, Contractor will immediately provide the County Purchasing Agent with a 
new and correct W-9 form   Failure to provide such form within the time required may result in delay of payment, 
suspension or termination of the Contract, or other action as deemed necessary by County.  Any changes in the W-9 
Form are also subject to the requirements of Sections 26.0 and 28.0, as applicable.  
 
 12.2 IRS 990 Form.  Contractor shall provide the Purchasing Agent with a copy of its completed 
Internal Revenue Service Form 990 (Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax) for each calendar year 
within 180 days of the Contractor's fiscal year end, but no later than September 30 of each year in which County 
funds are received under this Contract.  If Contractor has filed an extension request which prevents the timely 
provision of the form 990, Contractor shall provide the Purchasing Agent with a copy of that application for exten-
sion of time to file (IRS Form 2758) within thirty (30) days of filing said form(s), and a copy of any final 
document(s) immediately upon receipt of such document(s). 
 
13.0   OUTSTANDING DEBT. 
 
 13.1  Assignment for Taxes.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Contract, if 
Contractor is delinquent in the payment of property taxes, or of any taxes due to Travis County, at any time of invoicing 
for payment, Contractor hereby assigns any payment and/or advance to be made for services and performance provided 
under this Contract to the Travis County Tax Assessor-Collector for payment of delinquent taxes, and authorizes 
County to transfer those funds directly to the Travis County Tax Assessor-Collector.  
 
 13.2 Disbursements to Persons With Outstanding Debt.    Contractor agrees that: 
 
  13.2.1 Disbursements to persons with certain outstanding debt is prohibited by Section 154.05 of 

the Texas Local Government Code. 
 
  13.2.2 Pursuant to Section 13.2.1, if notice of indebtedness has been filed with the County Auditor 

or County Treasurer evidencing the indebtedness of Contractor to the State, the County or a salary fund, a 
warrant may not be drawn on a County fund in favor of the Contractor, or an agent or assignee of Contractor 
until: 

 
  (a) the County Treasurer notifies the Contractor in writing that the debt is outstanding; 
and 
  (b) the debt is paid. 

 
  13.2.3 "Debt" as used in this Section 13.0 includes delinquent taxes, fines, fees and indebtedness 

arising from written agreement with the County. 
 
  13.2.4 County may apply funds County owes Contractor to the outstanding balance of debt for 

PS120029ML 
16 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

which notice is made under Section 13.2.2 above if the notice includes a statement that the amount owed by 
the County to Contractor may be applied to reduce the outstanding debt. 

 
 13.3 Payment of Taxes.  Contractor agrees that Contractor will be liable for compliance with all federal, 
state, and local laws and requirements regarding: income tax, payroll tax, withholding, excise tax and any other taxes.  
Contractor accepts responsibility for the compensation of employees for purchasing any liability, disability or health 
insurance coverage deemed necessary by Contractor or required by law and for providing federal and state 
unemployment insurance coverage and standard Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage. Contractor will not be 
treated as an employee of County with respect to the services performed under the terms and conditions of this Contract 
for federal and state tax purposes. If Contractor is not a corporation, Contractor further understands that the Contractor 
may be liable for self-employment (social security) tax, to be paid by Contractor according to law. Contractor must be 
able to demonstrate on-site compliance with the Federal Tax Reform Act of 1986, Section 1706, amending Section 530 
of the Revenue Act of 1978, dealing with issuance of Form W-2's to common law employees.  County will not be 
responsible for payment of any of the above costs of Contractor. 
 
 13.4 Non-delinquency on Federal Debt.  Contractor, by signing this Contract, certifies that Contractor is 
not delinquent in repaying any Federal debt; has not been judged to be in default on a Federal Debt; and has not had a 
judgment lien filed against it as a result of a Federal debt.  Failure to maintain this status will result in action by County 
up to and including termination of this Contract. 
 
 VI. RESPONSIBILITIES AND OBLIGATIONS OF CONTRACTOR 
 
14.0   CONTRACTOR PERFORMANCE 
 
 4.1   Services and Activities.   
 
  14.1.1  Requirements.  During any Contract Term, Contractor shall perform, in a satisfactory manner 

as determined by County, through County Department, (based on information and data as provided by and 
through Department) services and activities in accordance with the terms of Attachment A, "Work Statement" 
Attachment B, "Special Conditions (if applicable)" and Attachment C, "Program Budget;" and with all other 
terms and conditions stated in this Contract. 

 
  14.1.2  Failure to Perform.  In the event of Contractor's non-compliance with any term of this 

Contract, including, but not limited to timely submission of any report, record or notification, County may 
impose such sanctions as determined to be necessary by County, including, but not limited to: 

 
  (a)   Withholding of payments to Contractor under the Contract until Contractor 
 complies with the term of the Contract: 
 
  (b)   Suspension, termination or cancellation of the Contract, in whole or in part. 

 
 The above actions by County may be taken in addition to any other specific action set forth in any provision of 

this Contract or allowed by law. 
 

PS120029ML 
17 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

18 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  14.1.3 Assurance of Intent.  Whenever County in good faith has reason to question Contractor's 
intent to perform, County may demand that Contractor provide to County written assurance of their intent to 
perform.  In the event a demand is made by County and Contractor gives no assurance within thirty (30) days 
of receipt of the written notice of such demand, County may treat this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of 
this Contract. 

 
 14.2   Policies.   
 
  14.2.1  General Policies.  The Contractor is required to maintain written policies and procedures 

approved by its governing body and to make copies of all policies available to the County Department upon 
request.  At a minimum, written policies shall exist in the following areas:  Financial Management; 
Subcontracting and/or Procurement; Equal Employment Opportunity; Personnel; Client and Personnel 
Grievance (as further set forth in Section 5.2.2); Nepotism; Non-Discrimination of Clients; Drug Free 
Workplace; the Americans With Disabilities Act; and any other policies or procedures as might be required by 
law or reasonably required by County. 

 
  14.2.2  Grievance Policies.   
 

  a.  Procedure.  Contractor shall, and shall require all Subcontractors to, have in place an 
 appropriate written grievance review procedure to receive and resolve complaints and shall provide 
 the County Department with a copy of such procedure immediately upon request by County.  County 
 has no responsibility for resolution of any grievances or complaints against Contractor regarding any 
 services provided in relation to this Contract, and Contractor agrees to advise Subcontractors of such 
 in any agreement with Contractor for provision of services related to this Contract.  Included in the 
 procedure will be the obligation of Contractor to make timely written communication to the County 
 Department regarding potential quality or utilization issues evidenced in any grievance and thus 
 identified and referred to Contractor for action and resolution; and Contractor hereby agrees to make 
 such timely communications to County. 

 
  b.  Monitoring.  Contractor agrees that specific grievances and complaints will be monitored 
 and a mechanism utilized to track and promptly resolve any participant issues, problems, or 
 complaints.  Records of the resolution of grievances shall be maintained by Contractor and made 
 available for monitoring by County through the County Department. 
 

 14.3  Contractor Communication.   
 
  14.3.1 TCHHSVS and ATCHHSD.  Contractor understands and agrees that this contract is entered 

into by and between Contractor and County only.  While there may be some interaction between TCHHSVS 
and the City of Austin's Travis County Health and Human Services Department ("ATCHHSD"), or other City 
of Austin-related departments, those activities will be administrative in nature and operating only between 
TCHHSVS and ATCHHSD as determined by those two entities.  Neither the terms of this Contract nor 
activities between TCHHSVS and ATCHHSD infer, imply or create any responsibility or obligation between 
the City of Austin and Contractor.   

 

PS120029ML 
18 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

19 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  14.3.2   General Communication.  Contractor and County agree that, unless otherwise designated 
specifically in any provision, all communication, requests, questions, or other inquiries related to this Contract 
shall initially be presented by Contractor to the County Department through the Executive Manager. 

 
 14.4 Miscellaneous Provisions. 
 
  14.4.1 Other Agreements.  It is understood and agreed by both Parties that the terms of this 

Contract do not in any way limit or prohibit current or future agreements between any of the Parties for the 
provision of additional services as mutually agreed to in writing by the Parties. 

 
  14.4.2 Non-retaliation.  Contractor may not discriminate or retaliate in any way against any 

employee or other person who reports a violation of the terms of this Contract or of any law or regulation or 
any suspected illegal activity by Contractor to County or to any appropriate law enforcement authority, if the 
report is made in good faith. 
 

  14.4.3 Contractor Responsibility.   Contractor shall bear full responsibility for the integrity of fiscal 
and programmatic management.  Such responsibility shall include:  accountability for all funds and materials 
received from County; compliance with County rules, policies, procedures, and applicable federal and state 
laws and regulations; and correction of fiscal and program deficiencies identified through self-evaluation and 
County's monitoring processes.  Ignorance of any Contract  provision(s) shall not constitute a defense or basis 
for waiving or appealing such provisions of requirements. 

 
 14.5  Directors' Meetings.  Contractor shall keep on file copies of notices of Directors' Meetings, Board 
Meetings, or Subcommittee or Advisory Board meetings and copies of minutes from those meetings.  Upon request by 
County, copies of any of the above shall be provided to County Department. 
 
 14.6   Ownership of Property.   
 
  14.6.1 Capital Acquisition Property ("Property").  For purposes of this Contract, "Capital 

Acquisition Property" (or "Property") shall be considered to be any tangible, non-expendable property 
purchased with Contract Funds. 

 
  14.6.2 Title.  To the extent that Contract Funds are used to purchase any Property, title to such 

Property shall vest in Contractor subject to the requirements of this Section 14.6. 
 
  14.6.3 Notice.  Written notification must be given to the County Purchasing Agent pursuant to the 

"Notice" provision of this Contract within five (5) calendar days of delivery of Capital Acquisition Property, 
and County will then effect identification and recording of such Property for inventory purposes.  Written 
notification must be given to the County Purchasing Agent within five (5) calendar days of any change in the 
status of such Property related to the terms of this Section 14.6.  The Contractor shall maintain adequate 
accountability and control over such Property, shall maintain adequate Property records, and shall perform an 
annual inventory to be reported to the County Purchasing Agent no later than September 30 of each year in 
which Contract Funds are received, and for up to two years after the termination of this Contract (or the time 
which title vests in Contractor under Section 14.6.7) as required under Section 14.6.9.  Records and reports 

PS120029ML 
19 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

20 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

shall contain the necessary information and documentation to support compliance with this Section 14.6. 
 
  14.6.4 Encumbrances.  Contractor shall not give any security interest or lien in, or otherwise 

encumber such Property purchased with Contract Funds. 
 
  14.6.5 Budget.  Property purchased by Contractor must be included and identified in Contractor's 

budget. 
 
  14.6.6 Contract Use.  Property may only be purchased utilizing Contract Funds if such Property 

will be utilized by Contractor to provide or further the provision of the services purchased by County under 
this Contract.  Such Property may also be used outside the area of this Contract only if such use does not 
interfere with or diminish the work required under this Contract.  Within the limits of this Section 14,6, 
Contractor shall continue to use such Property in a manner which supports provision of the services provided 
under this Contract throughout the term of this Contract and for two years after the termination of this 
Contract (or the time when title vests in Contractor under Section 14.6.7).   

 
  14.6.7 Time Limit.  Limitations of this Section 14.6 only apply to Property which is less than 

twenty-four (24) months old. Once any Property is more than twenty-four (24) months old, the requirements 
of this Section 14.6 cease to apply, and the title to the Property shall vest in Contractor free and clear of any 
obligations to County. 

 
  14.6.8 Trade or Sale.  If Contractor uses such Property as a trade-in or sells such Property, the 

proceeds shall either be used to purchase replacement equipment for a similar use or returned to County 
through the Purchasing Agent.  Contractor shall notify the Purchasing Agent of such disposition and the 
identity of the new Property where replacement equipment is purchased.  All requirements of this Section 14.6 
shall attach to such replacement Property with time requirements as to the new Property beginning the date of 
purchase. 

 
  14.6.9 Certification.  Contractor (through its Executive Director or other authorized signatory) 

shall provide annual written and signed notice to the Purchasing Agent regarding all Property and certifying 
the continued use of such Property in compliance with this Section 14.6.  This Certification shall be included 
with the annual inventory provided under Section 14.6.3. 

 
  14.6.10 Failure to Continue Use.  If Contractor cannot continue to meet the requirements of this 

Section 14.6 regarding Property, then Contractor shall either provide cash compensation for such Property to 
County in an amount equal to the fair market value of the Property (as agreed to by County), or return such 
Property to County through the Purchasing Agent, or request in writing disposition instructions from the 
Purchasing Agent which instructions shall then be followed by Contractor. 

 
  14.6.11 Responsibility.  Contractor shall assume responsibility for the protection of all physical 

property and equipment (Property) purchased under this Contract, and shall take appropriate measures to meet 
this obligation.  Contractor shall furnish the County Purchasing Agent with a written, factual report of the theft 
of, or damage to, any Property purchased under this Contract.  In the event of any theft, vandalism, or other 
offense against the Property, Contractor shall notify the appropriate local law enforcement authorities and the 

PS120029ML 
20 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

21 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

County Purchasing Agent immediately. 
 
  14.6.12 Competitive Bidding.  Contractor shall ensure that all purchases made using County 

Contract Funds provided under this Contract, either by Contractor or Subcontractor(s), will be made according 
to established and applicable statutory requirements relating to competitive bidding. 

  
 14.7   Long-Term Strategic Planning.  Contractor agrees to participate to the extent possible in the long-
term strategic planning process as developed by CAN and/or requested by County. 
 
 14.8   Insurance.   
 
  14.8.1  Requirements. Contractor shall have, and shall require all Subcontractors providing services 

under this Contract to have, Standard Insurance sufficient to cover the needs of Contractor and/or 
Subcontractor pursuant to applicable generally accepted business standards as set forth in Attachment F, 
"Insurance Requirements."  Depending on services provided by Contractor and/or Subcontractor, 
Supplemental Insurance Requirements or alternate insurance options as set forth in Attachment F, "Insurance 
Requirements," may be imposed.   

 
  14.8.2 Submission of Certificate.  Contractor shall submit to the County Purchasing Agent 

Certificates of Insurance no later than ten (10) working days after execution of this Contract by the Parties.  
Contractor shall not begin providing services under this Contract until the required insurance is obtained and 
until such insurance certificate has been received by the County Purchasing Agent.   

 
  14.8.3 No Liability Limitation.  Acceptance of insurance by County shall not relieve or decrease 

the liability of Contractor with regard to its responsibilities under this Contract and shall not be construed to be 
a limitation of liability.  Contractor shall provide new Certificates of Insurance within ten (10) working days 
of any Renewal Term of this Contract under the terms of this Section 14.8. 

 
  14.8.4  Review and Adjustment.  County reserves the right to review the insurance requirements set 

forth in this Contract during the effective period of this Contract and to make reasonable adjustments to 
insurance coverages, limits and exclusions when deemed necessary and prudent by County based on changes 
in statutory law, court decisions, the claims history of the industry or financial conditions of the insurance 
company or Contractor.  Contractor shall not cause or allow any insurance to be cancelled nor allow any 
insurance to lapse during the Contract term. 

 
 14.9     Indemnification and Claims. 
 
  14.9.1   INDEMNIFICATION.  Contractor agrees to and shall indemnify and hold harmless 

County, its officers, agents, and employees, from and against any and all claims, losses, damages, 
negligence, causes of action, suits, and liability of every kind, including all expenses of litigation, court 
costs, and attorney's fees ("claims"), for injury to or death of any person, for any act or omission by 
Contractor, or for damage to any property, arising out of or in connection with the work done by 
Contractor under this Contract, whether such injuries, death or damages are caused by  Contractor's 
sole negligence or the joint negligence of Contractor  and any other third party.    This indemnification 

PS120029ML 
21 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

22 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

shall apply to any claims arising in connection with any alleged or actual infringement of existing 
license, patents or copyrights applicable to materials used or produced under this Contract. 

 
  14.9.2  Claims Notification.  If Contractor receives notice or becomes aware of any claim, or other 

action, including proceedings before an administrative agency, which is made or brought by any person, firm, 
corporation, or other entity against Contractor or County, Contractor shall give Department written notice 
within three (3) working days of being notified of this claim or threat of claim.  Such notice shall include:  
written description of the claim; the name and address of the person, firm, corporation or other entity that 
made or threatened to make a claim, or that instituted or threatened to institute any type of action or 
proceeding; the basis of the claim, action or proceeding; the court or administrative tribunal, if any, where the 
claim, action or proceeding was instituted; and the name or names of any person against whom this claim is 
being made or threatened.  This written notice shall be given in the manner provided in Section 26.0 of this 
Contract.  Except as otherwise directed, Contractor shall furnish to County copies of all pertinent papers 
received by Contractor with respect to these claims or actions.    

 
 14.10 Materials and Publications.  When material not originally developed by Contractor is submitted or 
included in a report, it shall have the source properly identified.  This identification may be placed in the body of the 
report or included by footnote.  This provision is applicable when the material is in a verbatim or extensive paraphrase 
format.  Contractor and any Subcontractor, as appropriate, must comply with the standard patent rights clauses in 37 
Code of Federal Regulations Section 401.14 or Federal Acquisition Regulations 52.227.1. 
 
 14.11   Rights, Copyrights, Patents, and Licenses.   
 
  14.11.1  Property of County.  All reports, charts, schedules, or other appended documentation to any 

proposal, content of basic proposal, or contracts and any responses, inquiries, correspondence, and related 
material created and/or submitted by Contractor under the terms of this Contract shall become the property of 
County.  Contractor may publish the results of the Contract performance at its expense with prior County 
review and approval.  If County owns the copyright, any publication should include "© Travis County, P. O. 
Box 1748, Austin, Texas, 78767, (the year of publication), All Rights Reserved."  If Contractor is the 
copyright holder, any publication shall include acknowledgment of the support received from County.  At 
least six copies of any such publication must be provided to County through County Department.  County 
reserves the right to require additional copies before or after the initial review.   

 
  14.11.2  Copyright.  All work performed pursuant to the terms of this Contract that results in the 

production of original books, manuals, films, or other original material is the exclusive property of County.  
All right, title, and interest in and to said property shall vest in County upon creation.  All work performed 
shall be deemed to be a "work made for hire" and made in the course of the services rendered pursuant to this 
Contract.  To the extent that title to any such work may not, by operation of law, vest in County or such work 
may not be considered a work made for hire, all rights, title and interest in such works are hereby irrevocably 
assigned to County.  County shall have the right to obtain and to hold in its own name any and all patents, 
copyrights, trademarks, service marks, certification marks, collective marks, registrations, or such other 
protection as may be appropriate to the subject matter, and any extensions and renewals thereof.  Contractor 
agrees to give County and agrees to require its Subcontractors to give County, or any person designated by 
County, all assistance required to perfect the rights defined in this provision, without any charge or expense 

PS120029ML 
22 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

23 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

beyond those amounts payable to Contractor for the services rendered under this Contract according to the 
terms of this Contract.   

 
  14.11.3  Adherence and Indemnification.   Contractor warrants and agrees that all applicable 

copyrights, patents, and licenses which may exist on materials used in this Contract have been adhered to; and 
that County shall not be liable for any infringement of those rights; and any rights granted to County shall 
apply for the duration of this Contract and for ten (10) years after termination of this Contract.   

 
  14.11.4  License to Use.   To the extent that title to any work may not, by operation of law, vest in 

County or such work may not be considered a work made for hire or be assigned to County, Contractor hereby 
grants to County an irrevocable, non-exclusive, non-transferable and royalty-free license to use, reproduce, 
publish, revise, make disposition of, prepare derivative works, distribute to the public, to perform, and to 
display publicly, for or on behalf of County according to law, any material (including software) that may be 
developed as part of the work under this Contract.  If Contractor does not assert a copyright interest,  any and 
all material developed by Contractor in the course of or pursuant to this Contract is an open record.  

 
 14.12 Miscellaneous Responsibilities. 
 
  14.12.1 Employee Offenses.   
 

  (a)  Client Contact.  Contractor agrees that no Employee ("Employee" being defined 
 under this Section 14.12.2 as including volunteers or other persons working under the direction of 
 Contractor in the provision of services under this Contract in a manner which involves direct 
Client  contact) shall provide services in a manner which involves direct Client contact if that Employee  
 has been convicted of having committed an offense of abuse, neglect, or exploitation or an offense 
 against the person, an offense against the family, or an offense involving public indecency under 
 the TEXAS PENAL CODE 
 
  (b)  Procedure.  Contractor agrees to have in place a written policy and procedures for 
 verifying the criminal history and any current criminal indictment involving the offenses listed in 
 this Section 14.12 2 of any Employee having direct contact with County clients, and shall 
maintain  evidence of having processed all Employees through such procedure.  Such policy and 
procedure  must also address the evaluation and monitoring of Employees convicted of an offense 
under the  TEXAS CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES ACT, but does not have to prohibit direct 
Client contact  where Contractor determines, and documents the grounds for such determination, that 
such contact  would pose no risk to the Eligible Client.  Contractor shall also have in place a procedure 
for  addressing the work of any employee alleged to have committed an offense listed under this 
 section in a manner which will afford reasonable protection to Eligible Clients until such 
allegation  is resolved.  

 
  (c)   Waiver.  In any circumstance under which Contractor believes that specific fact 
 situations warrant a waiver of the requirements of this Subsection 14.12.1, in whole or in part, 
 Contractor may present the details of such circumstance in writing to County, through the 
 Executive Manager, for a determination as to such request for waiver.   

PS120029ML 
23 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

24 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  (d)  Subcontractors.  This Section 14.12.1 shall also apply to any employees of 
 Subcontractors who have direct Client contact, and Contractor shall ensure that all Subcontractors 
 have procedures in place to ensure compliance with this Section 14.12.1. 

 
  14.12.2  Offense Report.  Contractor shall promptly report any suspected case of abuse, neglect or 

exploitation to the appropriate office(s) as required by the TEXAS FAMILY CODE, Chapter 261.  All reports 
must be made within 24 hours of the discovery of the abuse or neglect. 

 
  14.12.3 Qualifications.  If specific qualifications are set forth in job descriptions required by 

County, or attached to any position related to providing of services under this Contract, only personnel with 
the required qualifications will be assigned to fill functions unless a written waiver is granted by the County. 

 
15.0   WARRANTS, AND ASSURANCES 
 
 15.1 Eligible Client Warranty.   Contractor agrees that County is only authorized by law to provide 
certain services, and that the provision of those services must meet a public purpose as determined by County.  To 
assure that County Contract Funds are spent for the provision of such authorized services in furtherance of such public 
purpose, Contractor warrants that the percentage of Eligible Clients (as defined by this Contract) receiving services 
under this Contract and funded by County Contract Funds compared to the total number of clients being served by 
Contractor under Contractor's total budget is equal to or greater than the percentage of County Contract Funds to total 
Contractor budget, and that County Contract Funds will be used by Contractor only for those purposes stated and 
agreed to under the terms of this Contract. 
 
 15.2   Accurate Information.  Contractor warrants that all reports, data and information submitted to 
County will be accurate, reliable and verifiable.  Approval by County of such shall not constitute nor be deemed a 
release of the responsibility and liability of Contractor, its employees, agents or associates for the accuracy and 
competency of their reports, information documents, or services, nor shall approval be deemed to be the assumption of 
such responsibility by County for any defect, error, omission, act or negligence or bad faith by Contractor, its 
employees, agents, or associates. 
 
 15.3   No Duplication.  Contractor agrees that Contractor will report and receive payment for each 
service/Client solely from County Contract Funds pursuant to the terms of this Contract;  and that there will be no 
duplicate payments from other sources for the same services paid for by County Contract Funds. Contractor will also 
ensure that this provision and prohibition of duplicate payment for services be included in any Subcontracts. 
 
 15.4 Benefit.  Contractor agrees that all funds paid to Contractor under this Contract are paid in trust for 
the exclusive benefit of Eligible Clients and for the payment of allowable expenditures as set forth in this Contract. 
 
 15.5   Maintenance of Effort.  Contractor agrees that Contract Funds may not be substituted for funds 
or resources from any other source nor in any way serve to reduce the funds or resources which would have been 
available to or provided through Contractor had this Contract never been executed. 
  
 15.6 Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters.  This Section 15.6 provides for 

PS120029ML 
24 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

25 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

compliance with certification requirements under 15 CFR Part 26, "Government-wide Debarment and Suspension." 
 Contractor, by signing this Contract, hereby warrants and certifies that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, it 
and its principles: 
 
  (a)  are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or 

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by and Federal department or agency. 
 
  (b)  have not within a three-year period preceding this Contract been convicted of or had a civil 

judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with 
obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or contract 
under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, 
theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction or records, making false statements, or receiving stolen 
property; 

 
  (c)  are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental 

entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (b); and 
 
  (d) have not within a three year period preceding this Contract had one or more public 

transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default. 
 
Where Contractor is unable to certify to any of the statements in this Section 15.6, Contractor shall provide a written 
explanation of such inability prior to the effective date of this Contract for County's consideration and evaluation 
with the understanding that such may result in termination of this Contract by County. 
 
16.0   COMPLIANCE 
 
 16.1   Federal, State and Local Laws. Contractor shall provide all services and activities performed under 
the terms of this Contract in compliance with the Constitutions of the United States and Texas and with all applicable 
federal, state, and local orders, laws, regulations, rules, policies, and certifications governing any activities undertaken 
during the performance of this Contract and governing Contractor's general conduct of business, including, but not 
limited to: Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 
U.S.C. Section 794); the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990, Public Law 101-336 [S.933] ("ADA"), Chapter 73, 
TEXAS ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE, Section 85.113 (relating to workplace and 
confidentiality guidelines regarding AIDS and HIV); Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 
(HIPAA) and the Privacy Standards adopted to implement HIPAA at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, at Section 164.512, 
and Occupations Code, Chapter 159, at Sections 159.003 and 159.004;  Contractor shall not discriminate against any 
employee, applicant for employment, or Eligible Client based on race, religion, color, gender, national origin, age or 
handicapped condition.  In performance of all Contract services and activities, Contractor will comply with applicable 
state and federal licensing and certification requirements, health and safety standards, and regulations prescribed by the 
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services and the Texas Department of Health. 
 
 16.2   Confidentiality. 
 
  16.2.1  Method.  Contractor shall establish a method to secure the confidentiality of records and other 

PS120029ML 
25 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

26 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

information relating to Eligible Clients in accordance with the applicable Federal, State and local laws, rules 
and regulations, and applicable professional ethical standards.  This provision shall not be construed as 
limiting the lawful right of access to Eligible Client information.    

  
  16.2.2  Limited Access.  Prior to a scheduled monitoring or audit, Contractor agrees to submit to 

County, through TCHHSVS, in writing, any relevant requirement precluding County's access to Eligible 
Client information including the correct citation of the legal authority on which Contractor relies to support its 
claim that County is prohibited from access to the client information. 

 
  16.2.3  Masking.  Upon authorization from County, through TCHHSVS, to render client files 

anonymous, Contractor agrees to mask information identifying clients in a way that will not obstruct County's 
monitoring and evaluative duties in any way. 

 
  16.2.4  Collaboration.  If applicable, Contractor shall execute and have on file copies of 

memorandums of understanding or other agreements with other governmental entities within Travis County 
and/or the City of Austin with whom Contractor will be sharing or obtaining participant information related to 
enrollment of Clients for services provided under this Contract. 

 
  16.2.5   Privacy.  Contractor shall, and shall ensure that all Subcontractors, comply with state and 

federal laws relating to the privacy and confidentiality of patient and client records that contain protected 
health information, or other information made confidential by law, and shall maintain patient and client 
records in compliance with state laws relating to the security and retention of medical or patient records.  
Contractor shall, and shall ensure that its Subcontractors, maintain all medical records in accordance with all 
applicable statutes and regulations governing medical information.  

 
 16.3   Certification of Software, Hardware, Firmware and Micro Code Products. Contractor certifies 
that any supplied or supported software, hardware, firmware and micro code products used individually or together as a 
system to comply with Contract requirements shall operate accurately in the manner in which they were intended when 
given a valid date containing century, year, month and day. 
 
 16.4 Texas Public Information Act.  The Parties agree that this Contract, and all performance under this 
Contract, and all information obtained by County in connection with this Contract is subject to applicable provisions of 
the Texas Public Information Act, TEX. GOV'T. CODE, Chapter 552, and all legal authorities relating to such Act, 
including, but not limited to, decisions and letter rulings issued by the Texas State Attorney General's Office. 
 
17.0   RETENTION AND ACCESSIBILITY OF CLIENT & FISCAL RECORDS 
  
 17.1  Retention of Records 
 
  17.1.1 Time Requirement.   Contractor shall create and maintain all records and reports required 

and/or created relevant to performance under this Contract, including but not limited to those specifically set 
out in this Section 17.0, until all evaluations, audits and other reviews have been completed and all questions 
or issues (including litigation) arising from those evaluations, audits and reviews are resolved satisfactorily to 
County, or three (3) years after the end of the final Contract period, whichever occurs later.   

PS120029ML 
26 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

27 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  17.1.2 Document Destruction.  Contractor agrees that it will not destroy or alter any document in 

order to prevent its use in any official proceeding (for example, federal, state or local investigation, 
bankruptcy, etc.) 

 
 17.2  Client Records.   
 
  17.2.1  Maintenance.  Contractor shall create and maintain all records regarding Eligible Clients that 

include the information on which Contractor relies to determine the Client's eligibility, all records and reports 
necessary, as determined by County, to evaluate the effectiveness of the services provided under this Contract 
(including, at a minimum, the services provided, the cost of providing services, and follow-up information 
about the effect of the services on the Eligible Client as shown by selected indicators), and all records related 
to performance under this Contract.  Contractor shall maintain all medical records in accordance with all 
applicable statutes (including but not limited to HIPAA) and regulations governing medical information. 

 
  17.2.2  Unduplicated Client Records.  Contractor shall maintain records for those Eligible Clients 

participating in programs designated by County Department from which an Unduplicated Client count can be 
determined.  Contractor shall maintain a separate record for each unduplicated client.  This client record shall 
contain at least the following information: 

 
   (a)  Name 
   (b) Application date 
   (c)  Residential address and phone number 
   (d) Date of Birth 
   (e) Household Income   
   (f) Eligibility information 
   (g) Service rendered 
   (h) Any support documentation 
   (i) Family status 
   (j) Number in household 
   (k) Enrollment Date 
   (l) Exit Date 
 
 Each Unduplicated Client reported in the Performance Report for designated programs shall correspond to a 

separate client record and support the services rendered to that Unduplicated Client. 
 
 17.3   One-Time Services. In addition to those records required under Section 17.2, Contractor shall create 
and retain records indicating the number of recipients of one time services such as information and referral services, 
group education services, outreach education, crisis/help lines, anonymous services, provision of food, clothing and 
one-time basic needs services.  Such records shall show the number of clients served and the type of Contract services 
provided.  An individual Unduplicated Client record for these recipients is not required.  Other Eligible Client records 
will be maintained by Contractor at County's request. 
 
 17.4 Fiscal Records.  Contractor shall create and maintain all necessary fiscal records and documentation 

PS120029ML 
27 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

28 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

required under this Contract and as necessary to support performance of this Contract.    
 
 17.5   Access.  Contractor shall give County, or any of its duly authorized representatives, access to and the 
right to examine all books, accounts, records, reports, files, and other papers, things, or property belonging to or in use 
by Contractor pertaining to this Contract at reasonable times and for reasonable periods.  These rights to access shall 
continue as long as the records are required to be retained by Contractor, and for any additional time period that the 
records are retained by Contractor. 
 
 17.6   Adjustment.  Contractor may, at any time, request in writing to the Executive Manager that County 
clarify or provide a waiver of all or a portion of the record requirements in this Section 17.0.  Only waivers under this 
Section 17.6 granted by County Executive Manager in writing will be effective to change any requirement in this 
Section 17.0. 
 
 17.7 Rights to Materials.   Subject to the applicable requirements of this Sections 17.0,  all reports, 
charts, schedules, records, or other appended documentation of Contractor which is related to this Contract, and any 
responses, inquiries, correspondence and related material submitted by Contractor to County or created by Contractor 
under this document are the property of County. 
 
18.0 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS  
 
 18.1   Performance Reports.   
 
  18.1.1 General Performance Reports.  Contractor shall submit data in accordance with the terms of 

Attachment D, "Performance Report Format," in Quarterly Performance Reports to be delivered  to 
TCHHSVS as required by County within fifteen (15) days after the end of the quarter to which the report 
relates.  This quarterly Performance Report will be submitted to TCHHSVS as an attachment to the Request 
For Payment (see Section 7.1) submitted for the last month of the quarter to which it relates.  Performance 
Reports will identify data as it relates to different funding sources where applicable. 

 
  18.1.2 Modification to Performance Reports.  County may recommend additional performance 

measures to be included by giving Contractor written notice of such proposed changes.  Unless Contractor 
provides County with written opposition to the proposal within fifteen (15) days of receipt of notice, such 
changes will be considered added to the Contract and will constitute promised performance by Contractor 
without the necessity of a written Amendment.  Such changes will be effective as to reports filed by 
Contractor for services provided during the first full reporting period following the addition of the changes.   If 
Contractor opposes the changes, County and Contractor will negotiate in good faith to develop amended 
performance measures pursuant to Section 4.0 of this Contract.  

  
 18.2   Reimbursement Reports.  Pursuant to Sections 6.0 - 8.0, Contractor shall deliver to TCHHSVS 
reports that provide all of the information requested in the Request For Payment and expenditure report, as required by 
County within fifteen (15) days after the end of the month to which the report relates.  If Contractor fails to provide this 
information to County in a complete and correct form and in a timely manner as set forth in this Contract,  such failure 
may impact the timing of payment by County under Sections 6..0 - 8.0. 
 

PS120029ML 
28 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

29 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 18.3   Final Close-Out Report.  Contractor shall deliver a close-out report as required by  TCHHSVS no 
later than sixty (60) calendar days following the termination of any Contract Term (Initial and/or Renewal). 
 
 18.4   Financial Reports.  Upon request by County, Contractor shall deliver to TCHHSVS copies of all 
Board approved financial reports, to include the Contractor's Year-to-Date Balance sheet and income statement, within 
thirty (30) days of completion of any such report and/or the latest such report created by Contractor.  
 
 18.5   Additional Reports.  Contractor shall deliver to County Department within twenty (20) working 
days, any and all special reports, data, and information which the County requests that Contractor make as a routine or 
special request.   
 
 18.6   Changes in Reports.  Contractor shall promptly provide TCHHSVS with written reports of any 
changes in any of the information, reports, and/or records provided to County pursuant to this Contract.  
 
 18.7   Corrections.  County may require Contractor to correct or revise any errors, omissions or other 
deficiencies in any reports or services provided by the Contractor to ensure that such reports and services fulfill the 
purposes of this Contract.  Contractor shall make the required corrections or revisions without additional costs to 
County.   
 
 18.8   Legal Prohibition.  If Contractor is legally prohibited from providing any required or requested 
reports, it shall immediately notify County, through TCHHSVS, in writing of this fact.  Such notice shall include 
specific identification of the basis of the prohibition, including statutory citations as applicable, and shall be reviewed 
by County for final resolution. 
 
 18.9  Annual Report.  Upon request, Contractor, through its Board members, will provide County an 
annual report which will contain the same data and be in the same format as that of the Reports described in Section 7.0 
of this Contract.  Those performance measures, including any changes made by agreement of the Parties during any 
Contract Term, are incorporated and made a part of this Contract.  The Annual Report related to this Contract will be 
submitted by Contractor to Department no later than sixty (60) days following the ending date of the relevant Contract 
Term. 
 
 18.10 Other Funding Sources.   
 
  18.10.1  Other Source Reports.  Upon request by County, Contractor shall provide County, through 

TCHHSVS, copies of all evaluation and monitoring reports provided to Contractor from other funding sources 
listed under "Summary of Agency Revenue Sources" during the Contract Term.   

 
  18.10.2 Loss of Funding.  In the event that Contractor incurs a termination or significant loss of 

funding (10% or more of Contractor's entire budget as well as any changes in total program funding that will 
significantly impact Contractor's ability to meet performance measures specific to this Contract) from sources 
other than County upon which Contractor depends for performance under this Contract, Contractor shall: 

 
  (a)  Notify Department immediately in writing of such loss of funding, the amount involved 
 and the services impacted; 

PS120029ML 
29 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

30 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  (b)  Provide Department with thirty (30) days written notice if the decrease in funding 
 requires the termination of the Contract, in whole or in part, such notice to include a description of 
the  service impact expected to result from such decrease. 

 
  (c) If Contractor and County mutually agree in writing to changes to this Contract necessary 
 to absorb said decrease/termination of funding, this Contract may be amended pursuant to Section 
4.0.  County will only agree to said amendment if the re-negotiation process results in the continued 
 provision of services at an effective level as reasonably determined by County. 

   
  (d)  Any decrease in services agreed to by County and Contractor shall also reflect a 
 comparable decrease in the funding obligations of County set forth in Section 6.0 of this Contract, as 
 evidenced in writing in an amendment made pursuant to Section 4.0 of this Contract, said 
amendment  to include the effective date of such change and the corresponding change to the monthly 
payment or  reimbursement obligation of County. 

 
 VII.  RESPONSIBILITIES AND OBLIGATIONS OF COUNTY 
 
19.0   LIMITATIONS 
 
 19.1   County Approval.   
 
  19.1.1  County's Satisfaction.  Sections 6.0 - 8.0 notwithstanding, the Parties expressly agree that 

County shall not be responsible for the costs of any services provided under this Contract that are not fully 
performed according to the terms of this Contract to County's satisfaction and with County's approval, which 
shall not be unreasonably withheld.  

 
  19.1.2  Responsibility and Liability.  Approval of County, and/or payment under this Contract by 

County, shall not constitute nor be deemed a release of the responsibility and liability of Contractor, its 
employees, agents or associates for the accuracy and competency of their reports, information, documents, or 
services, nor shall approval be deemed to be the assumption of such responsibility by County for any defect, 
error, omission, act or negligence or bad faith by Contractor, its employees, agents, or associates. 

 
20.0   COUNTY OBLIGATIONS 
 
 20.1   Current Revenue Funds. County shall make payments for invoices for performance of 
governmental functions and services under this Contract from current revenue funds available to County and set aside 
for this purpose. The parties agree that the payment made under this Contract is in an amount that fairly compensates 
Contractor for the services or functions performed under this Contract. 
 
 20.2   Poverty Income Guidelines.  County, through County Department, shall notify Contractor of any 
changes in the Poverty Income Guidelines that occur during the Contract Term. 
 
  20.3   County Confidentiality.  County agrees to keep confidential at all times all information that 

PS120029ML 
30 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

31 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

identifies clients and personnel and any other information received from Contractor if required to do so by law. 
 
 20.4 Immunity or Defense.  It is expressly understood and agreed by all Parties that, neither the 
execution of this Contract, nor any conduct of any representative of County relating to this Contract, shall be 
considered to waive, nor shall it be deemed to have waived, any immunity or defense that would otherwise be available 
to it against claims arising in the exercise of its governmental powers and functions, nor shall it be considered a waiver 
of sovereign immunity to suit. 
 
 20.5 County Training.  In exchange for and in the furtherance of certain services which may be provided 
by Contractor, County may, in certain instances, within applicable County guidelines and policies, and with 
Contractor's agreement, offer specific training to Contractor and/or Contractor's employees, agents, or authorized 
representatives.  Additional Contractor opportunities may be made contingent upon the successful completion of such 
training by County to the extent determined necessary by County.  
 

VIII.  SUSPENSION/TERMINATION 
 
21.0 SUSPENSION.  If Contractor fails to comply with any term of this Contract, including but not limited to 
failure to deliver reports as required by this Contract and/or failure to make corrections required by this Contract, or if 
the Commissioners Court requests a financial review or performance evaluation related to a reasonable cause to believe 
that Contractor is not using Contract Funds in compliance with the terms of this Contract, County may, upon written 
notification to Contractor, suspend this Contract in whole or in part and withhold further payments to Contractor 
pending resolution of the issues supporting such suspension. Contractor agrees that Contractor shall not incur additional 
obligations of Contract Funds after receipt of such notice of suspension until Contractor is in compliance with the terms 
of this Contract or the reports of the financial review and/or program evaluation are completed and all exceptions noted 
in these reports are corrected to County's satisfaction as evidenced by written notice by County. 
 
22.0 TERMINATION 
 
 22.1 Reasons for Termination.  County shall have the right to terminate this Contract, in whole or in 
part, at any time before the date of termination specified in Section 2.0 of this Contract for the following reasons: 
 
  22.1.1  Failure to Comply.  Contractor has failed to comply with any term or condition of this 

Contract, including, but not limited to, the failure to deliver reports required by this Contract and/or make 
those corrections required by this Contract;; 

 
  22.1.2  County Funding Out.  During the budget planning and adoption process related to the second 

Fiscal Year included in the Contract Term, Commissioners Court fails to provide funding for this Contract for 
the that second County Fiscal Year following the beginning of the contract period; 

 
  22.1.3  Contractor's Ability to Perform.  County finds that Contractor is in a financial condition that 

endangers Contractor's ability to perform this Contract; or Contractor is delinquent in the payment of taxes or 
cost of performance of this Contract in the ordinary course of business; or Contractor is in a technical state of 
bankruptcy as defined by the Federal Bankruptcy Act and is subject to the appointment of a trustee, receiver or 
liquidator for all, or a substantial part, of Contractor's property or to the institution of bankruptcy, reorganiza-

PS120029ML 
31 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

32 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

tion, rearrangement or liquidation proceedings by or against Contractor; 
 
  22.1.4  Contractor's Ability to Conform.  Contractor is unable to conform to changes required by 

federal, state and local laws or regulations; or 
 
  22.1.5  Beneficial Results.  County finds that Contractor is not producing results that are sufficiently 

beneficial to warrant continued expenditure of Contract Funds. 
 
 22.2  Notification.  County Purchasing Agent shall notify Contractor pursuant to the "Notice" provision of 
this Contract in writing at least thirty (30) days before the date of termination of the decision to terminate; the reasons 
for the termination; the effective date of the termination; and, in the case of partial termination, the portion of the 
Contract to be terminated. 
 
 22.3   Contractor Termination.  Contractor may terminate this Contract in whole or in part at any time, by 
giving thirty (30) days written notice pursuant to Section 26.0 if there is termination of significant other funding upon 
which Contractor depends for performance under this Contract or if Contractor is dissolved only if the dissolution is not 
caused by a breach of this Contract.  Contractor's notice shall include a complete explanation of the reasons(s) for 
termination under this Section 22.3 and designation of the effective date of termination. The Purchasing Agent shall 
notify Contractor in writing of acceptance of termination pursuant to this Section 22.3 upon finding that Contractor's 
claim(s) under this Section 22.3 have been established to County's satisfaction. 
 
 22.4   Mutual Termination.  Any Party has the right to terminate this Contract, in whole or in part, when  
the Parties agree that the continuation of the activities funded under this Contract would not produce beneficial results 
commensurate with the further expenditure of funds; provided that both Parties agree, in writing, upon the termination 
conditions, including the effective date of the termination; the provisions under which termination shall be accepted;  
and, in the case of partial termination, the portion of the Contract to be terminated. 
 
 22.5   Correction.  At least thirty (30) days before the effective date of termination pursuant to any 
provision of this Contract, County shall notify Contractor in compliance with Section 26.0 of the reasons for 
termination, the effective date of termination and the portion of this Contract to be terminated.  Where County affords 
Contractor the option to cure Contractor may avoid the termination of this Contract if Contractor corrects the causes for 
the reasons for termination stated in the notice to the satisfaction of County, as determined by County, prior to the 
effective date of termination, or an extended date if agreed to in writing by the Parties. 
 
 22.6   Results of Termination. 
 
  22.6.1  Cancellation of Outstanding Orders.  Upon termination or receipt of notice to terminate, 

whichever occurs first, Contractor shall cancel, withdraw, or otherwise terminate any outstanding orders or 
Subcontracts related to the performance of this Contract, or the part of this Contract to be terminated, and shall 
cease to incur any and all Contract costs under them.  County shall not be liable to Contractor for costs 
incurred after termination of this Contract.  County shall not under any circumstances be liable to Contractor's 
creditors or Subcontractors for any payments under this Contract. 

 
  22.6.2  Continued Liability.  Notwithstanding any exercise by County of its right of suspension under 

PS120029ML 
32 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

33 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Section 21.0 of this Contract or of early termination pursuant to this Section 22.0 or any provision of this 
Contract, Contractor shall not be relieved of any liability to County for damages due to County by virtue of 
any breach of this Contract by Contractor, or for any amounts paid to Contractor by County and determined by 
County to be overpayment(s), disallowed payment(s), or payment(s) subject to refund under the terms of this 
Contract.  County may withhold payments to Contractor until the exact amount of damages or payments due 
to County from Contractor is agreed upon or is otherwise determined, and is paid in full. 

 
  22.6.3 Transition.  Where applicable, at the end of the Contract Term or at the time of any other 

Contract termination or cancellation, the Contractor shall in good faith and in reasonable cooperation with 
County, aid in transition to any new arrangement or provider of services which have been provided under 
this Contract as necessary to protect Client interests. 

 
 22.7 Immediate Termination.  Nothing in this Section 22.0, or any other provision of this Contract, shall 
be construed to limit County's authority to withhold payment and immediately suspend Contractor's performance under 
this Contract if County identifies possible instances of fraud, abuse, waste, fiscal mismanagement, or other serious 
deficiencies in Contractor's performance.  County shall notify Contractor in writing (including fax and/or email) of such 
suspension.  Suspension shall be a temporary measure pending either corrective action by Contractor or a decision by 
County to terminate this Contract.  County shall not be liable for any costs incurred by Contractor during suspension of 
this Contract under this Section 22.7.  
 
 VIII.  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
23.0   INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.   
 
 23.1 The Parties expressly agree that Contractor is an independent contractor and assumes all of the rights, 
obligations and liabilities applicable to it as an independent contractor.  No employee of Contractor shall be considered 
an employee of County or gain any rights against County pursuant to County's personnel policies.  The relationship of 
County and Contractor under this Contract is not and shall not be construed or interpreted to be a partnership, joint 
venture or agency.  The relationship of the Parties shall be an independent contractor relationship.  Neither Party shall 
have the authority to make any statements, representations or commitments of any kind, or to take any action which 
shall be binding on the other Party or which shall hold itself out to be binding on the other Party. 
 
24.0   SUBCONTRACTS 
 
 24.1   Prior Approval.  Contractor shall not be reimbursed for costs incurred by any Subcontractors for 
any service or activity relating to the performance of this Contract without the prior written approval of such 
Subcontract or the prior written waiver of this right of approval from County through the Purchasing Agent.  Approval 
of this Contract will constitute approval as required by this Section 24.1 for those Subcontracts/Subcontractors 
specifically identified in the Contract terms, including the Attachments. 
 
 24.2   Contractor Responsibility.   
 
  24.2.1  Subcontractor Compliance.  Contractor is wholly responsible to County for the performance 

under this Contract, whether such performance is provided directly by Contractor or indirectly by any 

PS120029ML 
33 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

34 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subcontractor.  Contractor is responsible to County for the performance of any Subcontractor, and shall 
monitor both financial and programmatic performance and maintain pertinent records concerning 
Subcontractor(s) that shall be available for inspection by County.  Contractor shall ensure that its 
Subcontractors comply with all applicable terms of this Contract (including terms related to records and 
reports) as if the performance rendered by the Subcontractor was being rendered by Contractor.  Contractor 
shall inspect all Subcontractors' work and shall be responsible for ensuring that it is completed in a good and 
workmanlike manner pursuant to the terms of this Contract. 

 
  24.2.2 Subcontract Terms.  Contractor agrees that all Subcontracts will include provisions which 

require compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations and policies; with the 
applicable terms of this Contract;, and with any provisions such as may be reasonably requested by County; 
and shall also include provisions ensuring the following: 

 
   (a)  The disclosure of any other contracts with County at the time the agreement is signed 
or  at any time during the Contract Term.  If such agreement exists, Subcontractor shall warrant and 
 guarantee that Subcontractor will report and receive payment for each service/participant only from 
 County funds under this Contract; and that there will be no duplicate payments for those 
 services/participants reported under this Contract from any other sources or from County under any 
 other contract or agreement. 
 

   (b)  Agreement: 
 
    (i)  to reasonably cooperate with any County inquiry or investigation into   

  Subcontractor and/or participant complaints; and 
 
    (ii)  to maintain confidentiality of information and security of all records as  

  required by law and the terms and conditions of this Contract; and 
 
    (iii)  that Contractor has the sole responsibility for payment for services rendered  

  by Subcontractor; and, in the event of non-payment, insolvency or cessation of operations,  
  sole recourse of Subcontractor against Contractor will be through Contractor or the  
  bankruptcy estate of Contractor; and 

 
   (iv)  that County is not liable for any payment to Subcontractor; and 

     
    (v)  to warrant that Subcontractor has systems in place to identify and document  

  services to Eligible Clients according to different funding sources; and 
 
    (vi)  to warrant that any service/participant for which County pays will not also be  

  paid for by any other funding source or by County under any other contract, pursuant to  
  Section 15.3 of this Contract; and 

 
    (vii)  to assure Contractor's ability to meet all Contract requirements, including but  

  not limited to reporting requirements. 

PS120029ML 
34 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

35 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 24.3   Contract Limitation.  This Contract sets out the agreements and obligations between County and 
Contractor only, and does not obligate County in any way to any of Contractor's Subcontractors, nor to any other third 
party.  This Contract creates no third party beneficiary rights as between County and any of Contractor's 
Subcontractors.  Contractor has the sole responsibility for payment for services rendered by Subcontractors with 
Subcontractor's sole recourse in the event of Contractor non-payment, insolvency or cessation of operations against 
Contractor or Contractor's bankruptcy estate.   County shall not under any circumstances be liable to Contractor's 
creditors or Subcontractors for any payments under this Contract.  Contractor agrees to include notice of the 
requirements in this section in every Subcontractor agreement.  
 
 24.4   HUB.  Contractor agrees to make a "good faith" effort to take all necessary and reasonable steps to 
insure HUBs the maximum opportunity to be Subcontractors under this Contract where suitable HUB Subcontractors 
exist.  Contractor must report all expenditures made to HUB Subcontractors to the County Purchasing Agent.  Failure 
by Contractor to make such good faith effort to employ HUBs as Subcontractors constitutes a breach of this Contract 
and may result in termination.  The Parties agree that HUB requirements and determinations will be made by the 
County Purchasing Agent, and that Contractor will contact the County Purchasing Agent with any questions regarding 
this provision.  
 
  24.5   Level of Service.  Contractor will ensure the provision of timely and quality professional services by 
individuals, agencies, or other Subcontractors which will meet or exceed applicable licensing and regulatory and 
professional standards applicable to the service provided and will provide County relevant documentation of such 
licenses upon request. 
 
 24.6   Payment to Subcontractor(s).  Contractor shall make its best effort to pay Subcontractor(s) for 
undisputed claims for services rendered within five (5) business days of receipt of payments and/or advances from 
County corresponding to those services under the terms of this Contract.  This Section 24.6 refers only to obligations 
under this Contract between County and Contractor, and does not operate to contradict or change the provisions in 
Section 24.3. 
 
25.0   MONITORING 
 
 25.1   County Monitoring.  County, either directly or through TCHHSVS, reserves the right to perform 
periodic on-site monitoring of Contractor's (and Subcontractors') compliance/performance with the terms of this 
Contract, and of the adequacy, effectiveness and timeliness of Contractor's performance under this Contract. Such 
monitoring visit may include review of any and all performance activities as well as any and all records or other 
documentation maintained in relation to Contractor's performance under this Contract.  Within thirty (30) days of each 
monitoring visit, County shall provide Contractor with a written report of the monitor's findings.  If the report notes 
deficiencies in Contractor's performances under the terms of this Contract, it shall include requirements and deadlines 
for the correction of those deficiencies by Contractor.  Contractor shall take action specified in the monitoring report 
prior to the deadlines specified.  Failure to make required changes in a timely manner may result in termination of the 
Contract by County.  County may provide technical assistance to Contractor and may request changes in Contractor's 
accounting, administrative and management procedures in order to correct any deficiencies noted. 
 
26.0   NOTICES 

PS120029ML 
35 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

36 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 26.1 Requirements.  Except as otherwise specifically noted in this Contract, any notice required or 
permitted to be given under this Contract by one Party to the other shall be in writing and shall be given and deemed to 
have been given immediately if delivered in person to the address set forth in this section for the Party to whom the 
notice is given, or on the third day following mailing if placed in the United States Mail, postage prepaid, by registered 
or certified mail with return receipt requested, addressed to the Party at the address specified as follows: 
  
 26.2   County Address.  The address of County for all purposes under this Contract shall be: 
 
  Sherri Fleming, Executive Manager  (or her successor) 
  Travis County Department of Health, Human Services,  
  and Veterans' Services 
  100 N. IH 35, Suite 3700 
  Austin, Texas 78701 
 
With copies to (registered or certified mail with return receipt is not required): 
 
  Honorable David Escamilla (or his successor in office) 
  Travis County Attorney 
  P.O. Box 1748 
  Austin, Texas 78767 
  ATTENTION:  Civil Transactions 
and 
  Cyd Grimes, Purchasing Agent (or her successor) 
  Travis County Purchasing  
  P. O. Box 1748 
  Austin, Texas  78767 
 
 26.4   Contractor Address.  The address of the Contractor for all purposes under this Contract and for all 
notices hereunder shall be: 
 
             WorkSource dba Workforce Solutions - Capital Area Workforce Board 
                 6505 Airport Blvd., Suite 101E 
                 Austin, Texas  78752 
 
 26.5   Change of Address. Each Party may change the address for notice to it by giving notice of the 
change in compliance with Section 26.0.  Any change in the address, including a change in the Contractor's Executive 
Director or Chairperson of the Board of Directors, shall be reported to the Executive Manager and the Purchasing 
Agent within twenty (20) days of the change. 
 
 26.6   Change of Name and/or Identity.  Contractor shall notify the Purchasing Agent and TCHHSVS 
Executive Manager immediately in writing, and in advance where possible, of any significant change affecting the 
Contractor, including change of Contractor's name or identity, ownership or control, payee identification number and 
other.  Failure to provide such information in a timely manner may delay payment under this Contract or result in other 

PS120029ML 
36 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

37 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

action by County regarding Contractor's status under this Contract.  Notice shall include copies of relevant paperwork 
evidencing any change, including copies of new W-9 Form or other forms required to be filed to effect such change.  
No change in the obligation of or to Contractor will be recognized until it is approved by the Purchasing Agent and/or 
Commissioners Court (according to applicable statute and County policy).  Failure to timely provide notice under this 
Section 26.6 may result in delay of payment.  Where any change involves an assignment by Contractor of rights or 
obligations under this Contract, such assignment shall be approved by County pursuant to Section 28.0. 
 
27.0 PROHIBITIONS 
 
 27.1   County Forfeiture of Contract.  If Contractor has done business with a Key Contracting Person as 
listed in Exhibit "A" to Attachment G during the 365 day period immediately prior to the date of execution of this 
Contract by Contractor or does business with any Key Contracting Person at any time after the date of execution of this 
Contract by Contractor (including business done during any Renewal Term of this Contract) and prior to full 
performance of this Contract, Contractor shall forfeit all County benefits of this Contract and County shall retain all 
performance by Contractor and recover all considerations, or the value of all consideration, paid to Contractor pursuant 
to this Contract.  Contractor shall notify County of any change in the information submitted with this Contract as to the 
Ethics Affidavit within twenty (20) days of such change throughout the Initial Term and/or any Renewal Term. 
 
 
 
 27.2   Conflict of Interest.   
 
  27.2.1 General Conflict.  Contractor shall ensure that no person who is an employee, agent, 

consultant, officer, or elected or appointed official of Contractor, or member of Contractor's governing body, 
who exercises or has exercised any functions or responsibilities with respect to activities performed pursuant 
to this Contract or who is in a position to participate in a decision-making process or gain inside information 
with regard to these activities has or may obtain a personal or financial interest or benefit from the activity, or 
have an interest in any contract, Subcontract or agreement with respect to it, or the proceeds under it, either for 
him or herself or those with whom he or she has family or business ties, during his or her tenure or for one 
year thereafter. 

 
  27.2.2 Questionnaire.  If required by Chapter 176, Texas Local Government Code, the 

Contractor shall complete and file a Conflict of Interest Questionnaire with the County Clerk, Elections 
Division, 5501 Airport Blvd., Austin, 78751. The Contractor shall update this Questionnaire by September 
of each year for the duration of this Contract as required by Chapter 176 of the Local Government Code. In 
addition, if any statement on this submitted Questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate, the 
Contractor shall submit an updated Questionnaire. The Contractor should note that the law requires the 
County to provide access to this Questionnaire on the official Travis County Internet website. 

 
 27.3   Solicitation.  Contractor warrants that no persons or selling agency was or has been retained to 
solicit this Contract upon an understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bona 
fide employees or bona fide established commercial selling agencies maintained by Contractor to secure business.  For 
breach or violation of this warranty, County shall have the right to terminate this Contract without liability, or, in its 
discretion to, as applicable, add to or deduct from the Contract price for consideration, or otherwise recover the full 

PS120029ML 
37 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

38 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee. 
 
 27.4   Gratuities.  County may cancel this Contract if it is found that gratuities in the form of 
entertainment, gifts, or otherwise were offered or given by Contractor or any agent or representative to any County 
official or employee with a view toward securing favorable treatment with respect to the performing of this Contract.  
In the event this Contract is cancelled by County pursuant to this provision, the County shall be entitled, in addition to 
any other rights and remedies, to recover from Contractor a sum equal in amount to the cost incurred by Contractor in 
providing such gratuities.   Contractor's employees, officers and agents shall neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors 
or anything of monetary value from Subcontractors or potential Subcontractors.  Contractor shall establish safeguards 
to prohibit its employees from using their positions for a purpose that is or gives the appearance of being motivated by a 
desire for private gain for themselves or others, particularly those with whom they have family, business or other ties. 
 
 27.5   Nepotism.  Contractor agrees that it will comply with the guidelines set forth for public officials 
under TEX. GOVERNMENT CODE ANN, Ch. 573, by ensuring that no officer, employee or member of the 
governing body of Contractor shall vote or confirm the employment of any person related within the second degree by 
affinity or third degree by consanguinity to any member of the governing body or to any other officer or employee 
authorized to employ or supervise such person without written approval by County. 
 
28.0   ASSIGNABILITY 
 
 28.1   Written Approval.  County will not recognize assignment by Contractor of any of the rights or 
duties created by this Contract without the prior written approval of such assignment by County.  This provision 
includes assignment, sale, merger or any other action resulting in any change in the status of Contractor.  Submission of 
a request for approval under this Section 28.1, "Assignment," shall be made in writing to the Purchasing Agent and the 
Purchasing Agent and Department shall submit to Commissioners Court for approval according to County procedures.  
Failure to secure the approval required in this Section 28.1 may result in delay of payment or other sanctions. 
 
 28.2   Binding Agreement.  Subject to Section 28.1, this Contract shall be binding upon the successors, 
assigns, administrators, and legal representatives of the Parties to this Contract. 
 
29.0   LEGAL AUTHORITY 
 
 29.1   Contractor Authority.  Contractor guarantees that Contractor possesses the legal authority to enter 
into this Contract, receive funds authorized by this Contract, and to perform the services Contractor has obligated itself 
to perform under this Contract. 
 
 29.2   Signors.  The person or persons signing this Contract on behalf of Contractor, or representing 
themselves as signing this Contract on behalf of Contractor, do hereby warrant and guarantee that he, she or they have 
been duly authorized by Contractor to sign this Contract on behalf of Contractor and to bind Contractor validly and 
legally to all terms, performances, and provisions in this Contract. 
 
 29.3   Suspension.  County shall have the right to suspend or terminate this Contract if there is a dispute as 
to the legal authority of either Contractor or the person signing this Contract to enter into this Contract or to render 
performances under it.  Contractor and any person signing this Contract are liable to County for any money disbursed 

PS120029ML 
38 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

39 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

by County for performance of the provisions of this Contract, if County has suspended or terminated this Contract for 
breach of Section 29.1 or Section 29.2. 
 
30.0   INTERPRETATIONAL GUIDELINES 
 
 30.1  Computation of Time.  When any period of time is stated in this Contract, the time shall be 
computed to exclude the first day and include the last day of the period.  If the last day of any period falls on a 
Saturday, Sunday or a day that County has declared a holiday for its employees, these days shall be omitted from the 
computation. 
 
 30.2   Numbers and Gender.  Words of any gender in this Contract shall be construed to include any other 
gender and words in either number shall be construed to include the other unless the context in the Contract clearly 
requires otherwise.  
 
 30.3   Headings.  The headings at the beginning of the various provisions of this Contract have been 
included only to make it easier to locate the subject matter covered by that section or subsection, and are not to be used 
in construing this Contract. 
 
 30.4 Use of Terms.  The Parties agree that the terms "shall" and "will" are used interchangeably in this 
Contract. 
 
31.0   OTHER PROVISIONS 
 
 31.1   Exemption From County Purchasing Act.  Pursuant to TEX. LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE 
ANN. § 262 et seq., Commissioners Court hereby orders that this Contract is exempt from the requirements of the 
County Purchasing Act because it is a Contract for the purchase of personal or professional services or meets other 
requirement(s) for exemption pursuant to applicable law. 
 
 31.2   Survival of Conditions.  Applicable provisions of this Contract, as determined by County, shall 
survive beyond termination or expiration of this Contract until full and complete compliance with all aspects of these 
provisions has been achieved where the Parties have expressly agreed that those provisions should survive any such 
termination or expiration or where those provisions remain to be performed or by their nature would be intended to be 
applicable following any such termination or expiration date. 
 
 31.3   Non-Waiver of Default. One or more acts of forbearance by any Party to enforce any provision of 
this Contract or any payment, act or omission by any Party shall not constitute or be construed as a waiver of any 
breach or default of any other Party which then exists or may subsequently exist. 
 
 31.4   Reservation of Rights.  If any Party to this Contract breaches this Contract, the other Party(ies) shall 
be entitled to any and all rights and remedies provided for by the Texas law and any applicable Federal laws or 
regulations.  All rights of County, under this Contract are specifically reserved and any payment, act or omission shall 
not impair or prejudice any remedy or right to County under it.  The exercise of or failure to exercise any right or 
remedy in this Contract of County or the failure to act in accordance with law based upon the other Party's breach of the 
terms, covenants, and conditions of this Contract, or the failure to demand the prompt performance of any obligation 

PS120029ML 
39 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

40 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

under this Contract shall not preclude the exercise of any other right or remedy under this Contract or under any law, 
nor shall any action taken or not taken in the exercise of any right or remedy be deemed a waiver of any other rights or 
remedies. 
 
 31.5   Law and Venue.  This Contract is governed by the laws of the State of Texas and all obligations 
under this Contract shall be performable in the City of Austin, Texas or in Travis County, Texas.  It is expressly 
understood that any lawsuit, litigation, or dispute arising out of or relating to this Contract will take place in Travis 
County and the City of Austin. 
 
 31.6   Severability.  If any portion of this Contract is ruled invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the 
remainder of it shall remain valid and binding.  If federal, state or local laws or other requirements are amended or 
judicially interpreted so as to render continued fulfillment of this Contract, on the part of either Party, substantially 
unreasonable or impossible, and if the Parties should be unable to agree upon any amendment that would therefore be 
needed to enable the substantial continuation of the services contemplated in this Contract, the Parties shall be 
discharged from any further obligations created under the terms of this Contract, except for the equitable settlement of 
the respective accrued interests or obligations incurred up to the date of termination. 
 
 31.7   Political Activity.  Contractor shall not use any of the performance under this Contract or any 
portion of the Contract Funds for any activity related to influencing the outcome of any election for public office, or 
any election, or the passage or defeat of any legislative measure.   This prohibition shall not be construed to prevent any 
official or employee of Contractor from furnishing to any member of its governing body upon request or to any other 
local or state official or employee, or to any citizen, information in the hands of the employee or official not considered 
under law to be confidential.  No Contract Funds can be used directly or indirectly to hire employees or in any other 
way fund or support candidates for the legislative, executive or judicial branches of the government of Contractor, the 
State of Texas or the government of the United States. 
 
 31.8   Sectarian Activity.   
 
  31.8.1   Religious Influence.  Within the limits and understandings set forth in Section 31.8.2, 

Contractor shall ensure, and require all Subcontractors to ensure, that provision of services under this Contract 
shall be carried on in a manner free from religious influence. Contractor shall not execute any agreement with 
any primarily religious organization to receive Contract Funds from Contractor unless the agreement includes 
provisions such as those set forth in this Section 28.8 or as provided by County, to effectuate this assurance.  
Contractor shall submit such agreements to County prior to the release of Contract Funds to such 
Subcontractor. 

  
  31.8.2   Civil Rights Act, Section 702 Application. Contractor and County agree to be bound by the 

following as to Subcontractor(s) and Contractor respectively, and Contractor shall include these requirements 
in any Subcontract under this Contract:   

 
  (a)  A religious organization that enters into a contract with County (or Subcontractor who 
enters into a Subcontract with Contractor) does not by so contracting lose exemption provided under Section 
702 of the Civil Rights Act (42 U.S.C., Section 2000E-1(a)) regarding employment practices. A religious or 
charitable organization is eligible to be a Contractor on the same basis as any other private organization.  

PS120029ML 
40 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

41 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contractor retains its independence from State and Local governments, including the Contractor's control over 
the definition, development, practice, and expression of its religious beliefs.   Except as provided by federal 
law, County shall not interpret this Contract to require a religious organization to alter its form of internal 
governance or remove religious art, icons, scripture or other symbols.   
 
  (b)  Neither the County's selection of charitable or faith-based Contractor of social services 
nor the expenditure of funds under this Contract is an endorsement of the Contractor's charitable or religious 
character, practices or expressions.  The purpose of this Contract is the provision of social services.  No 
expenditures have as their objective the funding of sectarian worship, instruction or proselytization. 
  
  (c)  No provider of social services for the County may discriminate against any Client on 
the basis of religion, a religious belief, or any Client's refusal to actively participate in a religious practice.  If 
a Client believes that their rights have been violated, that complaint should be discussed with a County 
representative immediately. 
 
  (d)  Neither the County's selection of charitable or faith-based Contractor of social services 
nor the expenditure of funds under this Contract is an endorsement of the Contractor's charitable or religious 
character, practices or expressions. 
 

  31.8.3 Client Advisement.  Contractor shall reasonably apprise all Eligible Clients of the 
requirements in this Section 28.8, and shall ensure the provision of services pursuant to these provisions:  

 
  31.8.4 Additional Rights.  Section 104 of the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity 

Reconciliation Act of 1996 (8 U.S.C. Section 604a) sets forth certain additional rights and responsibilities for 
charitable and faith-based providers of social services, certain additional rights of assisted individuals, and 
certain additional responsibilities of County to providers and assisted individuals.  This Contract is subject to 
those additional rights and responsibilities. 

 
 31.9   Publicity. In any publicity prepared or distributed by or for Contractor, the funding through County 
shall be mentioned as having made the project possible.  Prior to publication or any disbursement of such publicity, 
Contractor must provide a copy of the final form of the publicity and secure the approval of the Executive Manager.  
When appropriate as determined by Executive Manager, Contractor shall publicize the services and activities of 
Contractor under this Contract.  
  
 31.10 Disputes.    
 
  31.10.1  Contract Issues.  At any time that Contractor has an issue, problem, dispute, or other 

question ("issue") concerning this Contract, Contractor may first contact County through County 
Department/Executive Manager.  Contractor shall provide written notice of the issue to County 
Department/Executive Manager, with such written notice including a specific written description of the issue 
as well as the Contractor's desired resolution of the issue.  Contractor and County will make a good faith effort 
to resolve the issue to their mutual satisfaction in a timely manner.  It is understood and agreed that any 
resolution of the issue which necessitates a change in any term or condition of this Contract, including a 
waiver of any term or condition, shall be handled only as a written amendment pursuant to Section 3.0 of this 

PS120029ML 
41 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

42 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contract.  Any issue not resolved satisfactorily to both Parties under Section 31.10.1 may be addressed 
pursuant to Section 31.10.2 - 31.10.3 of this Contract.  

 
  31.10.2 Dispute Resolution - Administration by Purchasing Agent.   When the Contractor and/or 

County have been unable to successfully resolve any question or issue related to this Contract presented to the 
County under this Section 31.10, the Contractor or County shall then present the matter to the Purchasing 
Agent by providing the Purchasing Agent with written notice of the dispute.  Such notice shall contain a 
specific written description of the issues involved as well as the Contractor's requested resolution of the 
dispute and any other relevant information which Contractor desires to include.  As of the receipt of such 
notice by the Purchasing Agent, the Purchasing Agent will act as the County representative in any further 
issuances and in the administration of this Contract in relation to the described dispute.  Unless otherwise 
stated in this Contract, any document, notice or correspondence in relation to the disputes at this stage not 
issued by or to the Purchasing Agent is may be considered void.  If the Contractor does not agree with any 
document, notice or correspondence relating to the dispute issued by the Purchasing Agent or other authorized 
County person, the Contractor must submit a written notice to the Purchasing Agent with a copy to the 
Executive Manager within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the document, notice or correspondence, 
outlining the exact point of disagreement in detail.  The Purchasing Agent will issue a written notice of the 
final resolution of the dispute to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of the initial written notice of 
dispute by the Purchasing Agent.  If this final resolution does not resolve the dispute to the Contractor's 
satisfaction, Contractor may submit a written Notice of Appeal to the Commissioners Court through the 
Purchasing Agent.  The Purchasing Agent will provide a copy of such response to the Executive Manager. 
This Notice of Appeal must be submitted within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the unsatisfactory final 
resolution.  Contractor then has the right to be heard by Commissioners Court and the Purchasing Agent will 
coordinate placing the matter on the Commissioners Court agenda.  

 
  31.10.3 Mediation.  If the Contractor is not satisfied with the resolution of the dispute pursuant to 

Section 28.10, Contractor shall notify the Executive Manager, and, if mediation is acceptable to both Parties in 
resolving the dispute arising under this Contract, the Parties agree to use the Dispute Resolution Center of 
Austin, Texas, or another mediation group as chosen by County and approved by Contractor, as the provider 
of mediators for mediation as described in the TEX. CIV. PRAC. AND REM. CODE, Section 154.023.  
Unless both Parties are satisfied with the result of the mediation, the mediation will not constitute a final and 
binding resolution of the dispute.  All communications within the scope of the mediation shall remain 
confidential as described in TEX. CIV. PRAC. AND REM. CODE, Section 154.073, unless both Parties 
agree, in writing, to waive the confidentiality.   

 
 31.11 Coordination.  Contractor shall coordinate and share information with other Travis County Health 
and Human Services programs and CAN in any way that is appropriate as determined by County to maximize the 
benefit to Eligible Clients in City of Austin/Travis County and to avoid duplication of services. 
 
 31.12 County Public Purpose.  By execution of this Contract, the Commissioners Court hereby finds that 
the issues, problems and needs to be addressed by the services to be provided under the terms of this Contract, and 
specifically set forth in Attachment A hereto, constitute a significant public concern impacting members of the indigent 
population which the County serves.   The Commissioners Court further finds that the provision of services to be 
provided by Contractor pursuant to this Contract will further the public purpose of addressing those health and human 

PS120029ML 
42 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

43 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

services issues, problems and needs identified in this Contract (including Attachment A) for qualified individuals. 
 
 31.13 Force Majeure.  Neither Party shall be financially liable to the other Party for delays or failures to 
perform in Contract performance caused by force majeure (i.e. those causes generally recognized under Texas law as 
constituting impossible conditions).  Such delays or failures to perform shall extend the period of performance until 
these exigencies have been removed.  The party seeking to avail itself of this clause shall notify the other Party within 
five (5) business days or otherwise waive the right as a defense, unless notification is impractical under the 
circumstances, in which case notification shall be done in as timely a manner as possible.  Contractor agrees that breach 
of this provision entitles County to reduce or stop payments or immediately terminate this Contract. 
 
 31.14 Other Agreements.  It is understood and agreed by all Parties that the terms of this Contract do not 
in any way limit or prohibit current or future agreements between any of the Parties for the provision of additional 
services as mutually agreed to in writing by those Parties. 
 
BY THE SIGNATURES AFFIXED BELOW, the above Contract is hereby accepted as all the terms and conditions of 
this Contract. 
 
CONTRACTOR:    
WORKSOURCE dba 
WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS - CAPITAL AREA WORKFORCE BOARD 
 
By:                                                                             
 Its Duly Authorized Agent 
Printed Name:                                                            
Title:                                                                           Date:______________ 
 
TRAVIS COUNTY 
 
By:                                                                                                                                          
 Samuel T. Biscoe 
 County Judge  Date:                     
 
County Approvals: 
As to Legal Form: 
___________________________ 
Assistant County Attorney  Date:_____ 
Funds Certified By: 
___________________________ 
Susan Spataro, County Auditor Date:_____ 
Purchasing: 
___________________________ 
Cyd Grimes, Purchasing Agent Date:_____ 

 
 

PS120029ML 
43 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

45 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A 
Program Cover Page - Form # 2 

    

PS120029ML 
44 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 

 
Travis County Form #2 updated April 2011 

 

Form # 2:                                   PROGRAM COVER PAGE                             Date prepared:  09/15/2011 
for 2012 Social Service Contracts funded by Travis County 

 
 

1. Agency Name as provided in Articles of Incorporation:   
 
WorkSource dba Workforce Solutions-Capital Area Workforce Board 

 

2. Tax ID Number:   
 
74-2327454 

 

3. Program Name:   
Enhanced Rapid Employment Model (One-time funding)  

 

4. a) Physical Street Address (Street, City, State, Zip):   
6505 Airport Blvd., Suite 101E 
 
4. b) Mailing Address (if different from above): 
 
 
4. c) Payee Address (if different from above): 
 
 

 

5.  Board President/Chair: 
Name: Alex Gonzales 
 
Address: 401 Congress Ave, Suite 2100, Austin, TX 78701 
 
Email: agonzales@winstead.com 
 
Phone: 512-370-2887 

 

6. Agency Executive Director (name): Alan Miller 
 
Phone:  512-597-7101 
Fax:  512-719-4710 
Email:  alan.miller@wfscapitalarea.com 
 

 

7. Name of person authorized to sign contracts for Agency:  
Alan Miller 
Phone:  512-597-7101 
Fax:  512-719-4710 
Email:  alan.miller@wfscapitalarea.com 
 

 

8. Program Director (name): Peter Brodeur 
 
Phone:  512-597-7121 
Fax:  512-719-4709 
Email:  peter.brodeur@wfscapitalarea.com 
 

 

9. Agency Financial Officer (name): Jerry Neef 
 
Phone:  512-597-7105 
Fax:  512-719-4709 
Email:  jerry.neef@wfscapitalarea.com 
 

 

10. Contact person for PROGRAM issues (name): 
Jasmine Griffin-Ives 
Phone:  512-597-7142 
Fax:  512-719-4709 
Email:  jasmine.griffinives@wfscapitalarea.com 
 

 

11. Contact person for FINANCIAL issues (name):  
Cheryl Carter 
Phone:  512-597-7116 
Fax:  512-719-4709 
Email:  cheryl.carter@wfscapitalarea.com 
 

 

12. Primary contact for Quarterly Program Performance 
Report issues (name): 
Jasmine Griffin-Ives 
Phone:  512-597-7142 
Email:  jasmine.griffinives@wfscapitalarea.com 
 

 

13. Person responsible for submitting Quarterly Program 
Performance Reports (name):  
Jasmine Griffin-Ives 
Phone:  512-597-7142 
Email:  jasmine.griffinives@wfscapitalarea.com 
 

 

14. Program funding amounts by source: 
 

15.  Primary contact person for this contract packet (name): 
 
     Jasmine Griffin-Ives 
     Position Title:  Training Coordination Specialist 
 
     Phone:  512-597-7142 
     Fax:  512-719-4709 
     Email:  jasmine.griffinives@wfscapitalarea.com 
 

Travis County Social 
Service Contract 
 
All OTHER Sources 
 
TOTAL Program Funding 

 
     $ 125,000.00 
 
+   $63,188.00 
 
=  $ 188,188.00 
 

 

PS120029ML 
45 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

47 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Attachment B 

Program Work Statement - Form # 3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  

PS120029ML 
46 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 

Travis County Form #3 updated April 2011  pg. 1 of 4 

Form # 3:  PROGRAM WORK STATEMENT 
for 2011-2012 (15-Month) Social Service Contracts funded by Travis County 

 
Date prepared:  10.13.2011 

 
Agency:  Please answer the following questions as they pertain to only those programs and 
services in which Travis County invests.  Note: the information contained in this document 
will be used in reports to the Travis County Commissioners Court and the community. 
 
Agency:  Workforce Solutions-Capital Area Workforce Board  
 

Program:  Enhanced Rapid Employment Model (One-time funding: 15-months) 
 

1. Program goals and objectives: 
Briefly describe the goals and objectives of the services purchased by Travis County in this contract. 
 Objective: Utilize a consistent, holistic process to assess customers at Workforce Solutions Career 

Centers to identify at least 39 (total for REM: 120) participants who meet eligibility requirements and 
indicate the interest and ability to complete a rigorous program. 

 Objective: Provide individualized, tailored case management services to REM clients by two (2) 
dedicated program staff members. Staff will recruit & assess clients for overall program 
eligibility/suitability as well as develop appropriate service tracks for clients, provide support for 
clients while enrolled in training and job search, and deliver retention/follow up services for clients 
during employment.  

 Objective: Implement a customer-driven system to provide an array of employment services 
including short-term (6 months or less) occupation specific training and job placement, intensive 
employment services and job placement or immediate placement for on-the-job learning. 

 Objective: Provide placement assistance and post-placement support for participants who 
successfully complete work readiness and occupation specific or intensive employment training. 

 Objective: Improve placement outcomes for additional hard-to-serve participants that do not enroll in 
the full REM continuum (pre-employment, training, placement). 

 

2. Program clients served: 
Describe the eligibility requirements to participate in the program or in each component of the program (for 
example: Travis County residency, income level, age). 

 Customers at the Workforce Solutions Career Center or Travis County HHS Community 
Center who meet the one of the following criteria:  
 

o Individuals referred by Travis County Probation or released from Del Valle 
Correctional Center 

o Individuals seeking financial assistance from Travis County who are at 200% or less 
of poverty  

o Individuals determined to be eligible for the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance 
Employment Training (food stamp recipients) or Choices (TANF recipients), and 

 
 Are assessed by Workforce Solutions program specialist to be appropriate for the program. 

 

3. Program services and delivery: 
Describe the Travis County funded services and how they are provided by the agency.  Provide enough detail so 
that the contract reviewer is able to have a comprehensive understanding of your services and how they are 
delivered to clients. 
 The Rapid Employment Model (39 participants; total for REM: 120) consists of the following program 

components: 
o Entry through Workforce Solutions Career Centers; 
o Eligibility screening by Workforce Solutions program specialists; 
o Work Readiness training facilitated by career center staff; 

PS120029ML 
47 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 

Travis County Form #3 updated April 2011  pg. 2 of 4 

o At least 27 participants (total for REM: 84) are either placed in an intensive employment 
service plan or an occupational training service plan. For the latter, participants can choose 
from an array of occupation specific training programs that can be completed in 6 months or 
less, or on-the-job training – Workforce Solutions maintains and open RFP process to 
identify eligible training providers and course offerings;  

o Hard-to-serve clients who do not enroll in the full REM continuum will see improved 
employment outcomes through Work Readiness training and/or referrals to more appropriate 
services in the WFS continuum 

o Job placement assistance upon completion of training; 
o Post-placement assistance to foster retention on the job. 

 

4. Service coordination and collaboration strategies: 
Describe how the agency coordinates its services with services being provided by other agencies and describe how 
the agency collaborates with other agencies.  If you are not currently collaborating with other agencies, what is 
your plan for increasing collaboration? 
 

A. Workforce Solutions Board: The Workforce Solutions board is composed of a broad spectrum of 
community representatives, including private and public employers, education and training providers, 
and other key sectors of the community.  Workforce Solutions staff has received approval from board 
members for development, funding and implementation of REM.  Through the Career Centers, 
participants have access to both REM funded training and the full array of service (training and work 
supports) offered by Workforce Solutions. 
 

B. Ray Marshall Center – UT Austin:  Workforce Solutions and Travis County have jointly consulted 
with the Ray Marshall Center for the Study of Human Resources on program design and evaluation. 
 

C. Workforce Solutions Career Center staff may also work with and through Travis County HHS&VS 
Community Centers to raise awareness of REM and other programs and services available through 
Workforce Solutions   

 

5. OUTPUT Performance Measures (replace the blue text and shaded spaces below with the actual 
wording of your measures and their corresponding 12-month goal amounts): 
Please enter the output performance measures to be reported for your program.  You must report the number of 
unduplicated clients served by funding source and at least one other output.  Actual total program performance 
data for these outputs will be reported in the quarterly program performance reports. 

   
***Please note: Enhanced REM Targets listed first; (Total of REM and Enhanced REM in parentheses) 

 
OUTPUT # 1  

Travis 
County 
Annual 
Goal 

All Other 
Funding Sources 

Annual Goal 

TOTAL 
(Travis County 

+ All Other) 
Annual Goal 

Number of unduplicated clients served 39 (120)       39 (120) 
 
 
OUTPUT # 2  

Travis 
County 
Annual 
Goal 

All Other 
Funding Sources 

Annual Goal 

TOTAL 
(Travis County 

+ All Other) 
Annual Goal 

REM clients completing pre-employment 
training (70% of #1) 

27 (84)       27 (84) 

 
 
OUTPUT # 3  

Travis 
County 
Annual 
Goal 

All Other 
Funding Sources 

Annual Goal 

TOTAL 
(Travis County 

+ All Other) 
Annual Goal 

REM clients completing occupation specific 
training or intensive employment training 
(80% of #2)  

21 (67)       21 (67) 

PS120029ML 
48 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 

Travis County Form #3 updated April 2011  pg. 3 of 4 

 
 
 
(If approved for additional Output measures, copy and paste the blocks above and re-number accordingly) 
 
6. OUTCOME Performance Measures (replace the blue text in the left column below with the actual 

wording of your measures’ numerators, denominators, and outcome rates): 
Please enter the outcome performance measures to be reported for your program.  For any outcome which will not 
have a percentage rate, use only the first (numerator) row and edit as needed.  In the middle column’s shaded 
blocks, include the corresponding 12-month goal amounts and percentages (as applicable) for each line.  If an 
Outcome will NOT be reported every quarter, in the right column indicate for which quarterly report(s) you 
WILL be reporting that measure (for example, you might report for Q2 and Q4 only). 

 
***Please note: Enhanced REM Targets listed first; (Total of REM and Enhanced REM in parentheses) 

 
Total Program Performance – OUTCOME # 1  

Total Program 
Annual Goal 

If not reported 
every Quarter, in 
which Quarter(s)? 

# employed or enrolled in advanced training resulting in a 1-year certificate or 
greater within 3 months of training completion (numerator) 

15 (47)  
 

# completing occupation specific training or intensive employment training 
(denominator) 

21 (67) 

% employed or enrolled in advanced training resulting in a 1-year certificate or 
greater within 3 months of training completion (outcome rate) 

70% 

 
 
Total Program Performance – OUTCOME # 2  

Total Program 
Annual Goal 

If not reported 
every Quarter, in 
which Quarter(s)? 

# retained in employment or advanced training resulting in a 1-year certificate 
or greater for 6 months                                                                          (numerator) 

8 (24)  
 

# employed or enrolled in advanced training resulting in a 1-year certificate or 
greater within 3 months of training completion (denominator) 

15 (47) 

% retained in employment or advanced training resulting in a 1-year certificate 
or greater for 6 months                                                                         (outcome rate) 

50% 

 
 
Total Program Performance – OUTCOME # 3  

Total Program 
Annual Goal 

If not reported 
every Quarter, in 
which Quarter(s)? 

Average wage at entry for REM completers $10.00  
 

 
(If approved for additional Outcome measures, copy and paste the blocks above and re-number accordingly) 
 
7. Community planning activities: 

Describe your agency's involvement in community planning activities that are specific to the services provided 
under this contract. 
 
As the workforce development board for the Capital Area (Travis County), Workforce Solutions is 
established under state statute as the regional authority for workforce development.  The Workforce 
Solutions Board represents a cross section of key community stakeholders in the area of workforce 
development, including a majority of private sector employers, but also including education and training 
agencies, public assistance, economic development, and other key stakeholders.  The board itself serves a 
central role in all community planning in the area of workforce development. 

 
This specific pilot initiative is the product of a lengthy collaboration including, but not limited to, 
Workforce Solutions, Travis County, the City of Austin, Austin Community College, Goodwill, and the 
Ray Marshall Center.  

 

PS120029ML 
49 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 

Travis County Form #3 updated April 2011  pg. 4 of 4 

8. Program Evaluation Plan 
 Performance evaluation: 

Describe how the agency will evaluate the program’s performance in achieving program goals.  Note: if any 
survey(s) or questionnaire(s) are used in the evaluation of the program or its performance, please provide a brief 
description of survey procedures (for example: how the survey is distributed and to whom). 

 Performance evaluation: 
Travis County is contracting with the Ray Marshall Center for the Study of Human Resources (at the 
University of Texas) to evaluate this pilot, as well as other locally funded workforce development 
programs.  Workforce Solutions agrees to cooperate in the development and implementation of this 
intervention.   

 
 
 Quality improvement: 

Describe the process for identifying problems or other issues in service delivery, designing activities to overcome 
these problems, and following up to ensure corrective actions have been effective. 

      
A. Performance Standards. The board monitors performance based upon their local operating plans.   

 
B. Monitoring of Performance: 

 
1. Self-Monitoring.  Workforce Solutions board staff will monitor their own services to identify 
problems and act on opportunities to correct them as early as possible. The board and any related 
Workforce Solutions sub-contractors for the project can often mutually agree on appropriate actions 
that can solve problems before they become serious and before opportunities for improvement are 
lost.   
 
2. Failure to Meet Performance Standards.  When a performance standard is not met at the end of the 
contract year, a formal corrective action plan may be established after an investigation and 
explanation of why the performance standard was not met.  The Performance Measure will be the 
negotiated output/outcome measures in the contract negotiated with the City/County. 

 

PS120029ML 
50 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

49 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment C 
Special Conditions (if applicable) 

    
 

PS120029ML 
51 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

50 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment D 
Program Budget  - Form # 4 

    

PS120029ML 
52 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Date prepared: 10/6/2011

Agency: Workforce Solutions-Capital Area Workforce Board Program: Enhanced Rapid Employment Model (One

PERSONNEL
 Requested 

COUNTY Amount 

Amount Funded 
by ALL OTHER 

Sources 

  * TOTAL  
Budget (ALL 

funding sources) 

Administrative Salaries - Regular Time 0 0

Direct Service Salaries - Regular Time

Administrative Salaries Overtime

Direct Service Salaries - Overtime 0

Benefits 0

A.  SUBTOTALS: PERSONNEL 0 0 0

General Operating Expenses 2,171 21,420 23,591

Insurance/Bonding 0

Audit Expenses (provide details for this line item in the 
Subcontracted Expenses form)

0

Consultants/Contractual (provide details for this line 
item in the Subcontracted Expenses form)

122,829 41,768 164,597

Staff Travel - within Travis County 0

Conferences/Seminars/Training - within Travis County 0

 ** Staff Travel - out of County 0

** Conferences/Seminars - out of County 0

B.  SUBTOTALS: OPERATING EXPENSES 125,000 63,188 188,188

Food/Beverage for Clients  (NOTE: Alcoholic beverage 
expenditures are not eligible or allowable)

0 0 0

Financial Assistance for Clients (e.g. rent, mortgage, 
utilities)

0

Other: Support Services 0

Tuition & Fees 0

C.  SUBTOTALS: DIRECT ASSISTANCE 0 0 0

 ** (specify equipment) 0 0 0

D.  SUBTOTALS: EQUIPMENT/CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 0 0

GRAND TOTAL (A + B + C + D) 125,000 63,188 188,188

PERCENT SHARE of Total for Funding Sources: 66.4% 33.6% 100.0%

EQUIPMENT/CAPITAL OUTLAY

    IMPORTANT:  All $ amounts must be whole dollars only (no cents)

 ON THIS PAGE.    Note that the line items with asterisks **  will require prior approval - Refer to your Contract Language.

for 2012 Social Service Contracts funded by Travis County

FORM #4:  PROGRAM BUDGET

Instructions: Provide whole dollar amounts for each applicable line item.  IMPORTANT: DO NOT INCLUDE ANY PROGRAM INCOME.

OPERATING EXPENSES

DIRECT ASSISTANCE

4-WFS REM PLUS 2012 Program Budget rvsd 10.06.2011_1_1.xls

PS120029ML 
53 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

51 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment E 
Program Budget Narrative - Form # 5 

    
 

PS120029ML 
54 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



   

 Travis County Form #5 updated April 2011 

    FORM # 5:      Program Budget NARRATIVE                                 Date prepared: 10/17/2011 
                                for 2012 Social Service Contracts funded by Travis County 
 
Agency: Workforce Solutions-Capital Area Workforce Board       
Program: Enhanced REM Employment Model (One-time funding) 
  

Instructions:  Add details below (not to exceed 20 words per line item) to justify proposed expenses from your Program Budget 
form.  DO NOT INCLUDE ANY DOLLAR AMOUNTS OR PERCENTAGES ON THIS PAGE.  Delete the examples below 
and replace them with your narrative.  

PERSONNEL  NARRATIVE  

Salaries - Regular time    

Salaries – Overtime   

Benefits  

OPERATING EXPENSES   

General Operating Expenses  
Administrative Cost including rent, utilities and accounting 
services 

Insurance/Bonding  

Audit Expenses    
 
Consultants/Contractual  

Staff Travel   

Conferences/Seminars/Trng  

** Staff Travel  - out of County 
 
 

** Conferences/Seminars/Trng. – out of County  
DIRECT ASSISTANCE    
Food/Beverage for Clients  (NOTE: Alcoholic 
beverage expenditures are not eligible or 
allowable)   

Financial Assistance for Clients (e.g. rent, 
mortgage, utilities)  

Support Services    

Tuition & Fees  
EQUIPMENT/CAPITAL OUTLAY   

** (Specify) 
 

 

** These line items require prior approval – Refer to your Contract Language. 

PS120029ML 
55 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

52 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment F 
Total Program Staff Positions and Time - Form # 6 

 `   
 

PS120029ML 
56 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 Travis County Form #6 updated April 2011 

 
   Form # 6:    Total Program STAFF POSITIONS & TIME  
                              for 2012 Social Service Contracts funded by Travis County  
 
                                   Date prepared:  09/15/2011  
    
     
Agency: Workforce Solutions-Capital Area Workforce Board 
 
Program:  Enhanced Rapid Employment Model (One-time funding)   
     
TOTAL PROGRAM STAFF: INDIVIDUAL POSITIONS & TIME ASSIGNED 
 
AGENCY:  List below all program staff individually by their position titles only (do not include their 
names), indicate whether each is direct service staff or administrative staff and indicate the percentage of 
their total time which is assigned to this specific program.  IMPORTANT: If two or more staff 
members with the same position title work on this program, be sure to list each position separately, 
with their individual percentages of total time for this program. 
     
 
List ALL Program Positions Individually by Titles 

Percent of Time 
for this Program 

REM Program Specialist-Direct Service Staff (Employed by 
Contractor)  

100% 

REM Program Specialist-Direct Service Staff (Employed by 
Contractor) 

100% 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

PS120029ML 
57 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

53 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment G 
Total Program Funding Summary - Form # 7 

    
 
 
 

PS120029ML 
58 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



    FORM # 7:       PROGRAM FUNDING SUMMARY Date prepared: 9/15/2011

                           for 2012 Social Service Contracts funded by Travis County

Agency Name: Workforce Solutions-Capital Area Workfo Program Name: 

Funding Sources Funding Period

Travis County 10/01-2011 -12/31-2012

Travis County

Travis County

City of Austin

City of Austin

City of Austin

Federal/State 
Funding

10/01-2011 -12/31-2012

State

State

United Way

Contributions

Program Income/ 
Fees

Other (Specify)

Other (Specify)

Other (Specify)

Other (Specify)

TOTAL PROGRAM FUNDING:  $188,188

Local Workforce Board Grant from Texas Workforce 
Commission 

Social Service Contract (City of Austin prgm. budget)

Enhanced REM (One-time funding) 

Grant/Contract Name

Social Service Contract (Travis County prgm. budget)

Funding Amount

$125,000

$63,188

Travis County Form #7 updated April 2011

PS120029ML 
59 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

54 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment H 
Subcontracted Expense Form - Form # 8 

    
 

PS120029ML 
60 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



   

 Travis County Form #8 updated April 2011   

          Form #8:       SUBCONTRACTED EXPENSES FORM 
                                   for 2012 Social Service Contracts funded by Travis  County  
 

                             Date prepared: 10/06/2011 
 

Agency: _Workforce Solutions-Capital Area Workforce Board_________________________  
Program:  ___Enhanced REM (One-time funding) ______________________________ 
 

Please provide TOTAL PROGRAM information for all of this program’s subcontractors whose professional services will be 
charged to this program.  Include all  subcontracts regardless of funding source.  

SUBCONTRACT #1 
 

Name of Subcontractor Arbor E & T, LLC.  

Term of Subcontract 10/01/2011-12/31/2012 

Services to be Subcontracted Two (2) case managers providing direct services to REM 
eligible populations; Financial Assistance, Tuition & 
Fees and Support Services for additional clients served 
under Enhanced Model  

Number of Clients to be Served (if applicable) 120 

Dollar Amounts by Funding Source: 

TRAVIS COUNTY amount 
$ 122,829 

ALL OTHER Sources amount TOTAL 

$ 41,768 $ 164,597 

 

 
 

Line Item Budget for Contractor Funds 

Requested 
Travis 

County 
Amount 

Amount 
Funded 
by ALL 

OTHER 
Sources

Total 
Budget 

(ALL 
funding 

sources) 
Salaries and Fringe for Two (2) REM Case Managers plus Arbor cost pool  

81,932 41,768 123,700

Financial Assistance for Clients (e.g. rent, mortgage, utilities) 3,000   3,000

Other: Support Services 1,500   1,500

Tuition & Fees 36,397   36,397

 
$122,829 $41,768 $164,597

 
*Financial Assistance for Clients: Participation stipends during training, for reporting employment and job retention. 
 
*Other; Support Services:  Transportation, work-related clothing and tools to allow participants to attend and  
 complete training & obtain and retain employment. 
 

  *Tuition & Fees:  Tuition/wages for participants to attend occupational on-the-job training. 
 
 
 
 
 
(If needed for additional subcontracts, copy blocks above to a new page and re-number them accordingly)  

PS120029ML 
61 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

55 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment I 
Performance Report Definition Tool - Form # 9 

   

PS120029ML 
62 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Type Performance Measure Calculation Method
What is the Data Source for 

this Measure?
Notes

Who Produces 
this Measure

Output #1 Number of unduplicated clients served
Program Specialists add clients names to 
Excel datasheet for clients referred to pre-
employment training.

Excel datasheet
Career Center 
Program 
Specialists

Output #2
REM clients completing pre-
employment training

Clients will sign an attendance sheet when 
participating in pre-employment seminar. 
Sign-in sheets will be tabulated by Program 
Specialists to identify participating REM 
clients.

Sign-in sheets for seminar 
Career Center 
Program 
Specialists

Output #3
REM clients completing occupation 
specific training or intensive 
employment training

Review of class rosters provided by training 
vendors.  Rosters are reviewed to identify 
training completers.

Clients will self report 
completion information that 
will be validated through 
attendance rosters submitted 
by the training vendor

Career Center 
Program 
Specialists

Outcome #1a 
(numerator)

Number employed or enrolled in 
advanced training resulting in a 1-year 
certificate or greater within 3 months 
of training completion

The number employed/enrolled in advanced 
training will be calculated adding the number 
of people that report employment or 
enrollment in a 1-year or greater certificate 
program.  

Data will be maintained on an 
Excel datasheet and TWIST. 

Career Center 
Program 
Specialists

Outcome #1b 
(denominator)

Number completing occupation 
specific training or intensive 
employment training

Review of class rosters provided by training 
vendors.  Rosters are reviewed to identify 
training completers.

Data will be maintained on an 
Excel datasheet and TWIST. 

TWIST - The Workforce Information 
System of Texas

REM training 
vendor staff & 
Career Center 
Program 
Specialists

Outcome Rate 
#1c

Percentage employed or enrolled in 
advanced training resulting in a 1-year 
certificate or greater within 3 months 
of training completion

The number employed/enrolled in advanced 
training will be calculated adding the number 
of people that report employment or  
enrollment in a 1-year or greater certificate 
program  divided by the number completing 
training.

Data will be maintained on an 
Excel datasheet and TWIST. 

Career Center 
Program 
Specialists

Outcome #2a 
(numerator)

Number retained in employment or 
advanced training resulting in a 1-year 
certificate or greater for 6 months

Program Specialist verification with 
employer/training program and/or TWIST 
data include UI wages. A clients TWIST 
record will be reviewed to determine if 
wages were reported 2 quarters after 
employment is obtained. 

Employers/Training 
Programs/TWIST

Program Specialists will contact 
employers or training schools. Because 
TWIST UI wage data lags by 1 quarter in 
TWIST, direct employer contact will be the 
primary method. TWIST data will be a 
back-up/verification method.   

Career Center 
Program 
Specialists

Date Report was Generated: 09/15/2011

Form #9:  Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service Department
2012 Performance Report Definition Tool

Workforce Solutions Capital Area Workforce Board: Rapid Employment Model 

OUTPUT MEASURES:

OUTCOME MEASURES:

To assist you in completing this form, the red triangles located in the upper right-hand side of some cells provide additional instructions related to the information requested.

P
S

12
00

29
M

L 
63

 o
f 7

3

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.

Longm1
Typewritten Text



Outcome #2b 
(denominator)

Number employed or enrolled in 
advanced training resulting in a 1-year 
certificate or greater within 3 months 
of training completion

The number employed/advanced training will 
be calculated adding the number of people 
that report employment or advanced training

Data will be maintained on an 
Excel datasheet and TWIST. 

Employment/Education verification is 
conducted by either the Program 
Specialist contacting the employer/training 
program or having the client having 
employer/training program complete a 
verification form that is provided to the 
Program Specialist

Career Center 
Program 
Specialists

Outcome Rate 
#2c

Percentage retained in employment or 
advanced training resulting in a 1-year 
certificate or greater for 6 months

The number retained will be calculated 
adding the number of people employed or 
enrolled in training at 6 months divided by 
the number of people entering employment 
or advanced training.

Employers/Training 
Programs/TWIST

Career Center 
Program 
Specialists

Outcome #3
Average wage at entry for REM 
completers

Sum of all wages divided by the number of 
individuals obtaining employment

TWIST record and Excel 
tracking sheet

Career Center 
Program 
Specialists

Gender, Race, 
and Ethnicity

Number of unduplicated clients by their 
gender, race, and ethnicity

Information will be recorded in TWIST and is 
available through standard reports.

TWIST 
Career Center 
Staff

Age
Number of unduplicated clients by their 
age at start of program and grouped into 
age categories

Information will be recorded in TWIST and is 
available through standard reports.

TWIST 
Career Center 
Staff

Income Status
Number of unduplicated clients by their 
income status at start of program and 
grouped into income categories

Information will be recorded in TWIST and is 
available through standard reports.

TWIST 
Career Center 
Staff

Zip Code
Number of unduplicated clients by their 
zip code at start of program

Information will be recorded in TWIST and is 
available through standard reports.

TWIST 
Career Center 
Staff

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ZIP CODE REPORT

P
S

12
00

29
M

L 
64

 o
f 7

3

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

56 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment J 
Insurance Requirements 

   

PS120029ML 
65 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



PS120029ML 
66 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



PS120029ML 
67 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



PS120029ML 
68 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

57 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment K 
Ethics Affidavit 

 
 
 

PS120029ML 
69 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



PS120029ML 
70 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



PS120029ML 
71 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



PS120029ML 
72 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.

Longm1
Typewritten Text



PS120029ML 
73 of 73

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.

Longm1
Typewritten Text



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m.
for the next week's meeting.

Meeting Date: 11/8/11
Prepared By/Phone Number: Scott Wilson/854-9451
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe

Agenda Language:  Approve Interlocal Agreement No. IL120033SW, 
Texas Workforce Commission, for Information Release for Travis County 
Constable Precinct Two. 

Ø Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. This Agreement will provide on-line access to wage record 
files, unemployment compensation claim benefit information and 
employer master files through specified TWC Agency mainframe 
computer screens.  

Ø Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $1,500 has been 
spent against this contract/requirement.

Ø Contract-Related Information:

Award Amount: $6,000
Contract Type: Interlocal
Contract Period: November 1, 2011 through October 31, 2014

Ø Funding Information:
 Purchase Requisition in H.T.E.:  543761
 Funding Account(s): 001-3201-567-6099
 Comments:

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request

Item 11
Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m.
for the next week's meeting.

Meeting Date: 11/8/11
Prepared By/Phone Number: Scott Wilson/854-9451
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe

Agenda Language:  Approve Interlocal Agreement No. IL120031SW, 
Capital Area Council of Governments (CAPCOG), for the Emergency 
Notification System for Travis County Emergency Services.

Ø Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. This Agreement allows for the use of the Emergency 
Notification System by providing direct telephone communications with 
citizens during times of disaster via the 9-1-1 database and prerecorded 
messages.  

Ø Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $2,879 has been 
spent against this contract/requirement.

Ø Contract-Related Information:
Award Amount: $2,879
Contract Type: Interlocal
Contract Period: October 1, 2011 through September 30, 2012 (with         
two (2) one-year renewal options)

Ø Funding Information:
 Purchase Requisition in H.T.E.:  542995
 Funding Account(s): 001-4710-579-6099
 Comments:

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request

Item 12
Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m.
for the next week's meeting.

Meeting Date: November 8, 2010
Prepared By/Phone Number: Michael Long/854 4850; Marvin Brice/854 
9765
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe

Agenda Language:  Approve award of Contract No. PS120032ML to 
Skillpoint Alliance for the increased investment in the Gateway Programs.

Ø Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes.

Through this contract, Skillpoint Alliance will increase the investment in the 
Gateway Programs to facilitate the seamless continuation of providing 
successful intensive workforce development training in the fields of: 
Construction, Electrical, Plumbing, HVAC, Health Care, Office 
Administration and Bookkeeping.

The Construction Gateway program at Skillpoint Alliance has a long history 
of success in serving highly disadvantaged job seekers, including a very 
large portion of ex-offenders.  The program has now diversified to utilize 
the same intensive training model for multiple occupational paths:  
Construction, Electrical, Plumbing, HVAC, Health Care, Office 
Administration and Bookkeeping.  Since 2010, 77% of 344 participants 
attained employment after services.  As more options have become 
available in 2011, this rate is now reported at 82%. 

Ø Contract Expenditures: N/A

Ø Contract-Related Information:

Award Amount: $150,000
Contract Type: Professional Services
Contract Period: October 1, 2011 – December 31, 2012

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request

Item 13
Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m.
for the next week's meeting.

Ø Contract Modification Information:

Modification Amount: N/A
Modification Type:  N/A
Modification Period: N/A

Ø Solicitation-Related Information:

Solicitations Sent: N/A Responses Received: N/A
HUB Information: N/A % HUB Subcontractor: N/A

Ø Special Contract Considerations:  

 Award has been protested

 Award is not to the lowest bidder
 Comments:  

Ø Funding Information:
 Purchase Requisition in H.T.E.: 540474
 Funding Account(s): 001 589 1611 6294
 Comments:

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 

 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  
CONTRACT 

 
BETWEEN 

 

TRAVIS COUNTY 
 

AND 
 

SKILLPOINT ALLIANCE 
 

FOR 
 

SOCIAL SERVICES  
 

 

CONTRACT NO. PS120032ML 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Travis County Purchasing Office 
 
 
 

 

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

CONTRACT FOR  
SOCIAL SERVICES 

BETWEEN TRAVIS COUNTY AND 
SKILLPOINT ALLIANCE 

 
 
 I.  PARTIES 
 

This Contract ("Contract") 
is entered into by the following Parties: 

 
Travis County, a political subdivision of Texas ("County") and 

Skillpoint Alliance ("Contractor") 
 
 
 II.  RECITALS 
 
 
County has the authority to provide for the care of indigents and other qualified recipients (TEX. LOC. GOV'T. CODE, 
Section 81.027, and other statutes); and County has the authority to provide for public health education and information 
services (TEX. HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE, Chapters 121 and 122, and other statutes); and provision of the 
above services constitutes a public purpose. 
 
Travis County Health, Human Services and Veterans' Services has the authority to perform all public health functions 
that County can perform through TEX. HEALTH & SAFETY CODE ANN., Section 121.032. 
 
Commissioners Court of County may exempt personal and professional services from complying with the competitive 
procurement process under TEX. LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE ANN., § 262 et seq. and has issued or hereby 
issues such an order of exemption for the services provided under the terms of this Contract. 
 
Pursuant to the terms of this Contract, Contractor will provide personal and professional services for the care of 
indigents and other qualified recipients and/or for public health education and information, thus providing services 
which will further the achievement of a public purpose. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these agreements, covenants, and payments, the amount and sufficiency of 
which are acknowledged, County and Contractor agree to the terms and conditions stated in this Contract. 
 
 
 
 
 

PS120032ML 
 
1 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 III.  DEFINITIONS 
 
1.0   In this Contract, 
 
 1.1 "CAN" means the Community Action Network. 
 
 1.2 "Commissioners Court" means the Travis County Commissioners Court. 
  
 1.3 "Contract Funds" means all funds paid by County to Contractor pursuant to Sections 6.0 - 8.0, and 
other applicable provisions of this Contract.  
 
 1.4 "Contract Term" means the Initial Term and/or any Renewal Term, or any other period of time 
designated in writing as a Contract Term by the Parties. 
 
 1.5 "County Auditor" means Susan Spataro, the Travis County Auditor, or her successor. 
 
 1.6 "County Department," "Department" and/or "TCHHSVS" mean the office of Travis County Health, 
Human Services and Veterans' Services. 
 
 1.7 "County Purchasing Agent" means Cyd Grimes, the Travis County Purchasing Agent, or her 
successor. 
 
 1.8 "Day(s)" means calendar day(s), unless otherwise specifically noted in any individual provision.  
 
 1.9   "Eligible Client" means a person who is: 
 
  (a) a person in a particular program as designated by County who meets any specific eligibility 

criteria described in this Contract.  
  
AND 
 
  (b) a person who meets statutory and/or Contract requirements necessary to receive services 

under this Contract.   
 
 
 1.10 "County Executive" means Sherri Fleming, Executive Manager of Travis County Health, Human 
Services and Veterans' Services, or her successor or designated representative. 
 
 1.11 "Fiscal Year" means the County Fiscal Year, which is that twelve-month time period between any 
October 1 and the next following September 30.  
 
 1.12 "Is doing business" and "has done business" mean: 
 

PS120032ML 
 
2 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  1.12.1 Paying or receiving in any calendar year any money or valuable thing which is worth more 
than $250 in the aggregate in exchange for personal services or for purchase of any property or property 
interest, either real or personal, either legal or equitable; or 

 
  1.12.2 Loaning or receiving a loan of money, or goods or otherwise creating or having in existence 

any legal obligation or debt with a value of more than $250 in the aggregate in a calendar year; 
 
  1.12.3 but does not include: 
 

  1.12.3.1 Any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a Key Contracting Person at a 
 posted, published, or marked price available to the general public. 

 
  1.12.3.2 any financial services product sold to a Key Contracting Person for personal, 
 family or household purposes in accordance with pricing guidelines applicable to similarly situated 
 individuals with similar risks as determined by Contractor in the ordinary course of its business; and 

 
  1.12.3.3 a transaction for a financial service or insurance coverage made on behalf of 
 Contractor if Contractor is a national or multinational corporation by an agent, employee or other 
 representative of Contractor who does not know and is not in a position that he or she should have 
 known about the Contract. 

 
 1.13 "Key Contracting Person" means any person or business listed in Exhibit A to the Affidavit attached 
to this Contract and marked Attachment G. 
 
 1.14 "Parties" and "Party" means the County and/or Contractor. 
 
 1.15 "Poverty Income Guidelines" means the guidelines established by the United States Office of Health 
and Human Services for the current Fiscal Year of the federal government. 
 
 1.17 "Reimbursable," "Allowable," or "Authorized Costs" means those amounts authorized to be paid by 
County to Contractor under the terms of this Contract with Contract Funds. 
 
 1.18 "Subcontract" means any agreement between Contractor and another party to fulfill, either directly or 
indirectly, any of the requirements of this Contract, in whole or in part.  
 
 1.19 "Subcontractor" means any party providing services required or allowed under this Contract to an 
Eligible Client or to Contractor under an agreement between Contractor and that party, including contractor(s), 
subcontractor(s), and other subrecipient(s) of Contractor, and any party or parties providing services for Contractor 
which will be paid for using Contract Funds committed by County to be paid to Contractor under this Contract.  
 

PS120032ML 
 
3 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 IV. KEY PROVISIONS 
 
2.0   CONTRACT TERM 
 
 2.1 Initial Term.  The Parties agree that this Contract shall continue in full force for the Initial Term 
which begins October 1, 2011, and terminates December 31, 2012, unless earlier terminated by the Parties pursuant to 
the terms of this Contact.   
 
 2.2   Renewal Term(s)   
 
  2.2.1 Written Renewal.  Unless sooner terminated in compliance with the provisions of this 

Contract, this Contract may only be renewed by action evidenced in writing and executed by County and 
Contractor.  

 
  2.2.2 Renewal Provisions.  Unless sooner terminated pursuant to the terms of this Contract, and 

conditioned upon the approval by the Commissioners Court of continued funding during the budget process 
related to the Renewal Term, and within the limits of that budgetary approval, this Contract may be renewed 
under Section 2.2 by written agreement signed by County and Contractor for up to six (6) additional one-year 
periods, or for whatever time period is agreed to in writing by County and Contractor.  The exercise of any 
option to renew under this provision shall be with the understanding that all terms and conditions, including 
the negotiated rates, remain unchanged and in full force and effect, unless this Contract is specifically 
amended pursuant to Section 4.0 of this Contract to make any changes in those terms.  Non-competitive 
renewal shall be based upon the Contractor's positive performance and County's continuing need for the 
services as determined by County. 

 
3.0 CONTRACT FUNDS 
 
 3.1 Contract Funds Amount.  Subject to Sections 6.0 - 8.0, and other applicable provisions, during the 
Initial Term, County shall make available for payment to Contractor for services provided pursuant to the terms of this 
Contract, funds in an amount not to exceed: 
 
     $  150,000.00 
 
 
 
 
4.0   AMENDMENTS, CHANGES OR MODIFICATIONS  
 
 4.1   Written.  Unless specifically provided otherwise in this Contract, any amendment, change or 
modification ("Amendment") to the terms of this Contract or any attachments to it shall be made in writing and signed 
by both Parties.  No Amendment concerning this Contract shall be of any force or effect unless entered into pursuant to 
this Section 4.0. 
 
 4.2.  Authority to Change. CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT NO OFFICER, AGENT, 

PS120032ML 
 
4 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EMPLOYEE OR REPRESENTATIVE OF COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY TO CHANGE THE TERMS 
OF THIS CONTRACT OR ANY ATTACHMENTS TO IT UNLESS EXPRESSLY GRANTED THAT 
AUTHORITY BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT UNDER A SPECIFIC PROVISION OF THIS 
CONTRACT OR BY SEPARATE ACTION BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT.   
 
 4.3 Non-Compliance.  Contractor agrees that any action taken by Contractor which does not comply 
with the terms of this Contract and which has not been approved under the terms of the Contract or written amendment 
thereto (pursuant to this Section 4.0) subjects Contractor to disallowance of payments related to such actions and 
possible termination of this Contract. Verbal discussion or other indications of changes to this Contract will NOT be 
effective. 
 
 4.4    Submission.  Contractor shall submit all requests for all Amendments (including all changes, 
modifications, alterations, additions or deletions) of the terms of this Contract or any attachment to it to the Travis 
County Purchasing Agent with a copy to the Executive Manager.  Upon agreement by the County Department, the 
request will be presented by the Purchasing Agent to the Commissioners Court for consideration.  No changes will be 
effective as to County until approved in writing by Commissioners Court (or Purchasing agent under Section 4.5). 
 
 4.5 Purchasing Agent Authority.  Contractor understands and agrees that the Purchasing Agent has 
certain authority to approve an Amendment subject to applicable law (specifically the County Purchasing Act, TEX. 
LOC. GOV'T CODE, Chapter 262, and other applicable law) and County policy, as approved by the Commissioners 
Court.  Within that authority, the Purchasing Agent may approve Amendment requests under this Contract.   The 
Purchasing Agent will advise Contractor as to such authority upon submission of a request for Amendment; at any 
time, the Purchasing Agent may submit any request to the Commissioners Court for approval, regardless of the 
authority of the Purchasing Agent to sign the Amendment. 
 
5.0   ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 
 5.1   All Agreements.  All oral and written agreements between the Parties to this Contract relating to the 
subject matter of this Contract that were made prior to the execution of this Contract, including the applicable terms of 
the Contract, have been reduced to writing and are contained in this Contract. 
 
 5.2   Attachments.  The attachments enumerated and denominated below are hereby made a part of this 
Contract, and constitute promised performances by Contractor in accordance with all terms of this Contract. 
  

   5.2.1 Attachment A   Program Cover Page - Form # 2 
   5.2.2 Attachment B  Program Work Statement - Form # 3 
   5.2.3 Attachment C Special Conditions (if applicable) 
   5.2.4 Attachment D Program Budget  - Form # 4 
   5.2.5 Attachment E Program Budget Narrative - Form # 5 
   5.2.6 Attachment F Total Program Staff Positions and Time - Form # 6 
 `  5.2.7 Attachment G Total Program Funding Summary - Form # 7 
   5.2.8 Attachment H Subcontracted Expense Form - Form # 8 
   5.2.9 Attachment I Performance Report Definition Tool - Form # 9 

  5.2.10 Attachment J Insurance Requirements 

PS120032ML 
 
5 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  5.2.11 Attachment K Ethics Affidavit  
 

V. FINANCIAL PROVISIONS 
 
6.0 CONTRACT FUNDS 
 
 6.1 Maximum Funds.  Subject to the requirements of this Section 6.0 and other applicable provisions 
of this Contract, in consideration of full and satisfactory performance of the services and activities provided by 
Contractor under the terms of this Contract, as determined by County, County shall provide Contract Funds not to 
exceed the following amount during the Initial Contract Term: 
 
    $  $150,000.00 
 
 6.2 Fiscal Year Limitations.   
 
  6.2.1 County Budget.  Contract Funds will be provided as further set forth in Attachment C, 

"Budget," of this Contract.  Contractor agrees that the sum stated in Sections 3.0 and Section 6.1 is the 
maximum amount to be paid by County to Contractor during the Initial Contract Term unless Sections 3.0 
and 6.1 are changed pursuant to Section 4.0, "Amendment," and that the total costs of this Contract shall in 
no event exceed the amount included in the County's budget and designated for this purpose for this 
Contract unless or until an increase in the County budget is approved by the Commissioners Court.  If this 
Contract is renewed under Section 2.2, it is understood and agreed that the amount set forth in the "Budget" 
will be amended, as necessary, for each Renewal Term to reflect those amounts approved by the 
Commissioners Court in its budget process for that Contract Term. 

 
  6.2.2 Fiscal Year Division.  Contractor expressly agrees that County funding obligations can 

ONLY be incurred for the portion of any Contract Term corresponding to a time period included in the 
approved budget for any one Fiscal Year.  As a result, of the total set forth in Section 6.1, Contractor 
cannot invoice, and will not be paid for expenditures during the following designated periods which are 
greater than the following amounts:  

 
  (a) October 1, 2011 - September 30, 2012  (80% of Total) 
     $ 120,000.00 
  
  (b) October 1, 2012 - December 31, 2012  (20% of Total) 
     $    30,000.00 
 
  6.2.3 Subsequent Fiscal Year Funding.  Contractor agrees that Contractor cannot invoice and 

will not be paid for services provided between October 1, 2011, and September 30, 2012, from designated 
under Section 6.2.1(b).  Contractor agrees that funds set out in Section 6.2.1(b) are contingent upon 
approval of such funding for the Contract by the Commissioners Court in the budget process related to the 
Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2012; and that the amount set forth under Section 6.2.1(b) may be 
decreased or eliminated by the Commissioners Court during that budget process without liability of County 
to Contractor.  This Section 6.2 will apply to any future Contract Term(s) within the Fiscal Year dates 

PS120032ML 
 
6 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

applicable to that Contract Term(s). 
 
  6.2.4 Budget Period Limits.  In no event shall any provision of this Contract or any agreement 

subject to this Contract be interpreted to obligate the County beyond the funds approved by the 
Commissioners Court for any Fiscal Year/budget period.  Payments by County during the Initial Term or 
any Contract Term shall be subject to the Fiscal Year limitations applicable to this Contract.  

 
7.0 INVOICING AND PAYMENT 
 
 7.1 Request for Payments. 
 
  7.1.1 Monthly Request.  Each month during any Contract or Renewal Term, Contractor shall 

file, within the time limits set forth in this Section 7.0, and pursuant to applicable requirements of this 
Contract, the complete and correct (as determined by County Department) Request for Payment form(s) 
(Attachment E) and complete backup documentation.  Contractor agrees that additional documentation 
supporting Contract expenses, such as signed timesheets, invoices, receipts, purchase orders or other 
information, will be reviewed by County during monitoring visit(s), and that additional reporting 
requirements may be implemented by County at any time that such monitoring or review reveals a need for 
such, as determined by County.   

 
  7.1.2 Timely Filing of Request.   
 

  a) Filing.  The Request for Payment form(s) shall be filed with the TCHHSVS 
 within fifteen (15) days of the end of the month for which services are provided.  Any delay by 
 Contractor in the filing of the complete and correct Request for Payment form(s) may impact the 
 ultimate receipt of payment by Contractor.  County shall pay Contractor for authorized 
 expenditures, as determined and approved by the County Department reported in that Request for 
 Payment within thirty (30) days of receipt by TCHHSVS of that complete and correct (as defined 
 in this Contract) Request for Payment in accordance with the Prompt Payment Act (TEX. GOVT'. 
 CODE, Chapter 2251). 
 
  (b) Request Limitation. County shall not be liable to Contractor for any costs incurred 
 and paid by Contractor in the performance of this Contract which are not billed to County under the 
 applicable terms of this Contract within sixty (60) days following the provision of the service or sixty 
 (60) days following the termination of this Initial Contract Term (or any Contract Term, as applicable 
 to the term in which the services were provided),whichever occurs first. Costs billed by Contractor 
on  or after the 61st day following provision of services or the termination of any Contract Term 
 (whichever applies) shall be considered disallowed and may not be paid by County. 

 
  7.1.3 Content.   Billing detail must include, at a minimum, that information set forth in Section 

18.2, and other applicable provisions, of this Contract.  Contractor may only request payment for actual 
costs incurred and paid by Contractor pursuant to the terms of this Contract. 

 
  7.1.4 Complete and Correct Request.  Contractor understands and agrees that the payment by 

PS120032ML 
 
7 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

County of the Request for Payment amount will only be made where a complete and correct Request for 
Payment is determined by County to have been filed.   
 

  7.1.5 Contractor Corrections.  If County determines that corrections and/or changes to the 
Request for Payment are necessary, the Request for Payment will be returned to Contractor and those 
corrections or changes must be made by Contractor prior to the Request for Payment being certified by 
County for Payment as complete and correct.  If the completion of those corrections and/or changes by 
Contractor and subsequent re-submission to TCHHSVS result in the delay of the certification of a Request 
for Payment (or "invoice") by County, Contractor understands and agrees that the time for payment under 
the Prompt Payment Act (TEX. GOV'T. CODE, Chapter 2251) will not begin to run until that invoice has 
been corrected so that it is, as determined by County Department, correct and complete as necessary for 
certification by County.  The time for payment under the Prompt Payment Act (TEX. GOV'T. CODE, 
Chapter 2251) will only begin at the receipt of the Request for Payment by TCHHSVS of what is 
determined, pursuant to this Subsection 7.1.5 and other applicable provisions, to be a complete and correct 
Request for Payment. 

 
  7.1.6 County Correction.  At any time that County discovers a discrepancy in an invoice that 

would result in Contractor receiving up to Five Dollars ($5.00) less than the amount invoiced,  County may 
contact Contractor for written permission (via email or fax) to adjust the invoice according to the County's 
determination.  Upon receipt of such written permission, County may adjust the invoice as agreed to by 
Contractor, and Contractor agrees to accept the resulting payment as payment in full; no further accounting 
will be made nor will any future payments be adjusted related to the amount so waived by Contractor under 
this provision. Contractor understands and agrees that consent under this Subsection 7.1.6 constitutes a 
complete and total waiver of the amount deducted from the total invoiced amount.  This provision allowing for 
correction by County of a Request for Payment will ONLY apply where the County's determination of money 
to be paid to Contractor is less than the total amount shown on the Request for Payment; at any time that the 
discrepancy involves and increase in the amount to be paid, the Request for Payment will be returned to 
Contractor for correction.   

 
8.0 CONTRACT FUNDS RESTRICTIONS 
 
 8.1 County Payment.  
   
  8.1.1 Reimbursement Only.  Contractor agrees that, unless otherwise specifically provided for 

in this Contract, payment by County under the terms of this Contract is made on a reimbursement basis 
only; Contractor must have incurred and paid costs prior to those costs being invoiced and considered 
allowable under this Contract and subject to payment by County.   

 
  8.1.2 Department Determination.  County and Contractor also agree that determination of 

allowable expenses and payment of Contract Funds will be directed by County Department. 
 
  8.1.3 Pre/Post-Term Debts.  County shall not be liable for costs incurred or performances 

rendered by Contractor before or after the Contract Term; for expenses not billed to County within the 
applicable time frames set forth in this Contract; for any payment for services or activities not provided 

PS120032ML 
 
8 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

pursuant to the terms of this Contract.  
 
 8.2 Maintenance of Funds.  The Contractor shall deposit and maintain all monies received under this 
Contract in either a separate numbered bank account or in a general operating account, either of which shall be 
supported with the maintenance of a separate accounting fund or a general fund with a specific chart of accounts which 
reflect and identifies revenues and expenditures for the monies received under this Contract from County. Contractor 
agrees to provide County with copies of specific chart(s) of account(s) maintained under this Section 8.2 upon request 
of County. 
 

 8.3 Allowable Costs - Direct Performance.  References to reimbursable costs in this Contract refer 
only to those costs or expenses authorized to be paid by County to Contractor under the terms of this Contract by 
Contract Funds. Costs shall be considered allowable only if, as determined by County, those costs are: 
 
  (a)  incurred and paid by Contractor directly and specifically in the performance of this Contract; and  
 
  (b)  incurred and paid by Contractor pursuant to all requirements of this Contract; and  
 
  (c)  incurred and paid by Contractor in conformance with budget documents attached hereto and in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.   
 

  (e)  included and identifiable in Contractor's budget document attached to this Contract as required in 
this Contract. 

 
  (f)  incurred and paid as set forth in Section 8.1.1, and other applicable provisions. 
 
 8.4 Indirect Costs.  Indirect Costs, as defined by generally accepted accounting principles, are not 
considered to be allowable costs under this Contract.  
 
 8.5   Specific Prior Authorization- Items NOT in Contractor's Budget.  Section 8.3 
notwithstanding, if the following are NOT in Contractor's specific budget documents (specific inclusion in the 
budget document will be considered approval), County's prior written authorization, through County Department, 
by the Executive Manager, is required in order for the following to be considered allowable costs, and therefore 
reimbursable under this Contract: 

 
  8.5.1  Non-Expendable Capital Acquisition.  Purchases of any non-expendable Capital Acquisition 

Property which meets the following criteria: 
 

  (a)   The following if with a value of more than $500.00:  Fax machines, stereo 
systems,  cameras, video recorder/players, microcomputers, software, printers, microscopes, oscilloscopes, 
 centrifuges, balances and incubators. 

  
  (b) any other tangible non-expendable property with a value of more than $5,000.00. 

 
   8.5.2   Facilities.  Alteration or relocation of facilities.  

PS120032ML 
 
9 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  8.5.3 Professional Services.  The acquisition of all consultant or professional services, as may be 

approved under the terms of this Contract.  All consultant or professional services must be documented 
utilizing the appropriate County form. 

 
  8.5.4 Out Of Town Travel.  Out of town travel shall be approved/reimbursed pursuant to Section 

8 
 
  8.5.5   Notification.  Contractor shall provide County, through TCHHSVS, written notification of 

any change in vendor or subcontractor (including consultants) which has been identified in Contractor's 
budget prior to submission of a Request for Payment related to such vendor or subcontractor in order to ensure 
timely payment.   

 
  8.5.6   Failure to Obtain Approval.  Any costs which are described by this Subsection 8.5 which 

are incurred by Contractor without the required approval may be considered disallowed; and may not be paid 
by County; or payment may be delayed. 

 
  
 
8.6 Out of Town Travel Expenses.  
 
  8.6.1 Allowable Travel.  In order to be considered a reimbursable expense under this Contract, all 

travel must be for a purpose directly related to the provision of services under this Contract (with supporting 
documentation available for review by County).  Individual(s) included in travel must either be employees or 
volunteers who must participate in such travel in order to further the provision of services provided under this 
Contract.  Final determination of such relationship shall be made solely by County and Contractor understands 
and agrees that, if Contractor is in doubt about the relationship of the travel or participants to County services, 
it is the Contractor's obligation to secure written County determination prior to incurring the travel cost, or risk 
such costs being disallowed by County. 

 
  8.6.2 Budget.  Travel will be considered approved only if the expense of such travel is included in 

Contractor's budget and the details of the travel have been provided according to the Out Of Town Travel 
Form ("Travel Form") attached to this Contract as Attachment E(v).  If that Travel Form has not be completed 
and included in this Contract, then the Travel Form must be completed and submitted to County through the 
County Department for written approval by the Executive Manager or his designated representative prior to 
the travel taking place.  Contractor agrees to provide such information within a timeframe that will allow 
sufficient time for review and approval by County Department prior to incurring such expense.  Expenses set 
out in the Travel Form must meet the requirements in Section 8.6.4 below and must fall within the amount set 
forth in Contractor's budget for travel. 

 
  8.6.3 Failure to Obtain Approval.  Any costs incurred related to travel without the approval 

required under this Section 8.6 may be considered disallowed; and may not be paid by County; or payment 
may be delayed. 

 

PS120032ML 
 
10 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  8.6.4 County Policies.  Expenses for travel and attendance to destinations outside the City of 
Austin/Travis County are NOT considered an allowable expense and will not be reimbursable under this 
Contract unless those expenses meet the following criteria (and documentation is provided/made available 
supporting compliance with these requirements) and all requirements of this Section 8.6: 

  
   (a) Mileage -  
 - Reimbursed at the annual standard rate set by the Internal Revenue Services. 

- Starts from the employee's regular work place on business workdays and from the employee's home on 
non-work days and holidays. 
- Travel out of county greater than 1000 miles round-trip - transportation expenses are reimbursed in an 
amount not to exceed the cost of round-trip coach airfare in effect at the time of the travel encumbrance. 
- Transportation expenses include lodging, meals and mileage incurred as a result of driving rather than 
flying. 

 
  (b) Air Fare - 

- Not to exceed the rate of a non-refundable coach fare in effect at the time of the travel encumbrance 
 
  (c) Accommodations -  

- Based on rates, plus taxes, quoted by the lodging place if government rates are not available. 
 - Supporting documentation of lodging place and quoted rates must be provided 
 
  (d) Meals - 
 - $39.00 per day including gratuities without receipts 
  OR 
 - Up to $50.00 per day for meals and gratuities up to 15% if receipts are submitted 
 - Only if required to be away from home overnight 
 - No reimbursement for alcoholic beverages 
 
  (e) Incidental Expenses - 
 - Actual costs of car rentals, taxi fares, parking fees, and bus fares if receipts are attached 
 - Mileage for two round trips to airport if choose to get a ride instead of parking 
 
 - Cab fare to and from airport 

- No reimbursement for extracurricular activities such as golf, tennis, entertainment, movies, tours or sport 
events 
- No payment for fines for violation of the law such as parking tickets, speeding tickets, etc. 

 - No payment for food and/or beverages provided at meetings or in-house training 
 
  (f) Alternate Travel -  

- May be reimbursed for alternate travel arrangements (transportation mode, accommodations, or schedule) 
provided that the cost is not greater than the least expensive alternative if pre-approved 

 
Out of town travel expenses under this Section 8.6 which do not meet the specified County criteria cannot be approved 
by the Executive Manager, but would have to be taken to the Commissioners Court for approval PRIOR to travel.  All 

PS120032ML 
 
11 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

out-of-town travel expenses must be included in Contractor's budget.   
 
 8.7 Overtime Compensation.  Contractor may use any Contract Funds to pay overtime and/or the 
associated fringe benefits on such overtime if the overtime meets the following requirements: 
 
  (a)  Amount is included in the Contractor's budget; and 

 
 (b) Amount is actually incurred by a Contractor employee who holds a position which is 
included in the budget for reimbursement by County Funds (as documented by a signed timesheet); and 
 
 (c) Amount is incurred as a necessity in the provision of direct services provided under this 
Contract; and 
 
 (d) Contractor maintains and implements a written policy concerning overtime compensation 
which manages and controls the use of overtime to minimize the need for overtime compensation. 

 
 8.8 Non-Allowable Costs.  The following are not reimbursable costs, whether incurred directly or 
indirectly in performance of this Contract and may not be included in Contractor's budget: 
 
  (a) Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) for employees whether or not those costs are for 

current year benefits, prior year benefits, or future year benefits. 
 
  (b) Employee recognition, rewards, or awards other than performance pay pursuant to 

compensation schedules. 
 
  (c) Entertainment and gifts, including meals or beverages, even if related to a business purpose. 

 This subsection (c) notwithstanding, the Contract will pay for an employee's own meal and beverage expenses 
incurred during out-of-town trips or conferences related to services provided under this Contract if properly 
budgeted and if incurred according to the Contractor's travel policy as approved by County. 

 
  (d) Legislative consultant services. 
 
  (e) Donations to non-profit or private organizations. 
 
  (f) Legal services provided to Contractor. 
 
  (g) General consulting services that are not directly provided as a specific program service. 
 
9.0  RETURN OF CONTRACT FUNDS 
 
 9.1  Contractor Liability.  Contractor shall be liable to County and refund money paid and/or 
advanced to Contractor upon a determination by County that payment or advance: 
 
   9.1.1  has resulted in overpayment 

PS120032ML 
 
12 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   9.1.2    has not been spent strictly in accordance with Contract terms 
   9.1.3 exceeds the total expenditures actually reported by Contractor 
   9.1.4  is to be disallowed pursuant to financial, performance and/or compliance audit(s) 
   9.1.5 was inappropriately transferred according to Section 11.0 
 
  9.2  Return of Funds.  Return of funds under this Section 9.0 shall be made by Contractor to County 
within thirty (30) days of request by County.  County may offset the amount of any funds owed under this Section 
against the next advance or payment to Contractor under this or any subsequent contract if the return of funds is not 
made within that thirty (30) day period. 
 
10.0   AUDIT 
 
 10.1   Annual Audit.  Unless otherwise authorized by County, through TCHHSVS, under the terms of this 
Contract, Contractor shall arrange for the performance of an annual (at least one time during each consecutive 365-day 
period) financial audit of Contract Funds to be performed within 180 days of the Contractor's fiscal year end, subject to 
the following conditions and limitations:  

  
   10.1.1  Single Audit. 
 

  a.  Single Audit Act Application.  For each Fiscal Year included within a Contract period 
 specified in Section 2.0 ("Contract Term") of this Contract in which Contractor expends a total of 
 $500,000 or more in Federal awards from all sources, Contractor shall have an audit conducted in 
 accordance with the Single Audit Act of 1984, 31 U.S.C., Section 7501 et seq., and OMB Circular 
 No. A-133, "Audits of States, Local Government and other Non-Profit Organizations." 
 
  b.  No Single Audit Act Application.  Contractors not subject to the Single Audit Act, and 
 expending $500,000 or more during the Contractor's fiscal year must have a full financial audit 
 performed.  If less than $500,000 is expended, then a financial review is acceptable, pursuant to the 
 requirements of this Contract. 

 
    c.  Performance Requirements.  The audit or review must be:         
                                                                                 

    (i)  performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant ("CPA"), recognized 
  by the regulatory authority of the State of Texas and a member in good standing of the  
  American Institute of Certified Public Accountants; and 

 
    (ii)  made in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and 

procedures   for a non-profit organization and auditing standards (including a Statement of 
Functional    Expenses) as stated in the "American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants Industry    Audit Guide - Audits of Voluntary Health and Welfare 
Organization;" and  

 
    (iii)  provided for any/each of Contractor's Fiscal Years in which County Funds are 

   provided. 

PS120032ML 
 
13 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  10.1.2  Entire Operations Option.  At the option of Contractor, each audit or review required by this 

Section 10.0 may cover either Contractor's entire operations or each department, agency, or establishment of 
Contractor which received, expended, or otherwise administered Contract Funds.  

 
  10.1.3  Financial Records.  Contractor must maintain records which adequately identify the source 

and application of funds provided for those services purchased with Contract Funds.  These records must 
contain information pertaining to authorizations, obligations, un-obligated balances, assets, liabilities, outlays 
or expenditures and income related to Contract Funds. 

 
  10.1.4  Copies.  Contractor shall provide two (2) copies of  its most recent report of the complete 

financial audit and the auditor's opinion and management letters, or the review, to County through TCHHSVS 
 within 180 days of the end of the Contractor's fiscal year end, unless County approves alternative 
arrangements in writing.  In any event, such copies shall be provided no later than September 30 of each year 
in which County funds are received under this Contract. County Department will complete final review of 
such reports within a reasonable time after September 30 of each year upon receipt of such reports.   Copies of 
the report shall also include the auditor's opinion and letters to management. Reviews and audits performed 
under Section 10.1 are subject to consideration and resolution by County or its authorized representative.  
Failure to provide such copies in a timely manner may result in delay of payment, suspension or termination of 
the Contract by County. 

 
  10.1.5  Continued Obligation.  The expiration or termination of this Contract shall in no way relieve  

Contractor of the obligation to meet the requirements of this Section 10.0 in the manner or format prescribed 
by County. 

 
  10.1.6  Cost of Audit.  Contractor understands and agrees that all or a portion of the cost of the 

annual audit as required under this Section 10.0 may be considered an allowable cost and reimbursable under 
this Contract if the following requirements are met: 

 
  (a)  cost is included in Contractor's budget, with the Subcontractor providing such services 
 correctly identified; and  

 
  (b)  the cost billed to County is no greater than the percentage relationship of County 
 Contract Funds to Contractor's total annual budget, with the cost of the audit being a reasonable cost 
 for such services as agreed to by County.  For example, if the total amount of County Contract Funds 
 provided under this Contract is ten percent (10%) of the total Contractor annual budget, then County 
 Contract Funds may be used to reimburse up to ten percent (10%) of the total cost of the annual 
audit. 

 
  10.2   County Audit.  Notwithstanding Section 10.1, County reserves the right to conduct an annual 
financial, compliance, and/or performance audit of the Contract.  Contractor agrees to permit County or its authorized 
representative, to audit Contractor's records and to obtain any documents, materials, or information necessary to 
facilitate such audit. 
 

PS120032ML 
 
14 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

15 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 10.3   Facilitation.  Contractor shall take whatever action is appropriate to facilitate the performance of any 
audits conducted pursuant to Section 10.0 that County may reasonably require of Contractor.  Such action shall include 
provision of access to Contractor's facilities during Contractor's regular business hours for County to conduct an audit, 
and the County shall consider reasonable times and places to review records or interview individuals.  Adequate and 
appropriate workspace shall be made available to County or their designees, and all requested records shall be made 
readily available.   
 
 10.4 Contractor Audit Records.   
 
  10.4.1 Content.  Records of Contractor, its subsidiaries, Subcontractors and affiliates subject to 

audit shall include, but not be limited to accounting records, written policies and procedures, subsidiary 
records, correspondence, and any other records which are pertinent to revenue and related costs and expenses 
of this Contract.  This includes, to the extent such detail will properly identify all revenues, all costs, including 
direct and indirect costs of labor, material, equipment, supplies and services and all other costs of expenses of 
whatever nature relating to this Contract (all the foregoing to be referred to as "Records"). 

 
  10.4.2 Subcontractors.  Contractor shall require all Subcontractors, sub-consultants, insurance 

agents, contractors, and suppliers related to this Contract to comply with the provisions of this Section 10.0, 
and any other provisions so designated within this Contract, by inserting the requirements in this Section 10.0 
in any written contract agreements executed between the Contractor and other related parties. 

 
11.0 TRANSFER OF FUNDS.  Notwithstanding Section 4.0, and as specifically applicable, Contractor may 
transfer funds without a written amendment to this Contract ONLY if ALL of the following requirements are met: 
 
 11.1 the transfer moves funds ONLY between line items within the SAME funding source (as set forth in 
Section 6.0) and program ("Program").  IF Contractor is uncertain as to the definition of "line item" and "program" as 
used in this provision, Contractor is responsible for contacting TCHHSVS for a determination as to the applicability of 
this requirement to the Contractor's request for transfer; and 
 
 11.2   the cumulative amount of the transfers between direct budget categories (Personnel, Operating 
Expenses, Direct Assistance and/or Equipment/Capital Outlay) is  not more than ten percent (10%) of the Contract total 
for that Program shown in Section 6.1; and 
 
 11.3   the transfer will not change the scope or objective of the programs funded  under this Contract, solely 
as determined by County through TCHHSVS prior to transfer; and 
 
 11.4   Contractor submits a budget revision form to the County through TCHHSVS prior to, or simulta-
neously with, the submission of the Contractor's first monthly billing to the County following the transfer which shall 
reflect such changes. 
 
 11.5 Contractor agrees that failure to meet the requirements of Section 11.1 - 11.4 may result in any 
transfer of funds being disallowed; as such, the disallowed amount may not be paid by County.  If County determines 
that payment has been made incorrectly for expenses in violation of this Section 11.0, Contractor agrees to refund such 
payment in full to County within twenty (20) days of written request by County for such refund.   

PS120032ML 
 
15 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

16 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
12.0 FORMS 
 
 12.1   W-9 Taxpayer Identification Form.  Contractor shall provide the County Purchasing Agent with 
an Internal Revenue Service Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification that is completed 
in compliance with the Internal Revenue Code and its rules and regulations, and a statement of entity status in a form 
satisfactory to the County Auditor.  Contractor understands that this W-9 Form must be provided to the County 
Purchasing Agent before any Contract Funds are payable.  If there are any changes in the W-9 form during the Initial 
Term or any Renewal Term of the Contract, Contractor will immediately provide the County Purchasing Agent with a 
new and correct W-9 form   Failure to provide such form within the time required may result in delay of payment, 
suspension or termination of the Contract, or other action as deemed necessary by County.  Any changes in the W-9 
Form are also subject to the requirements of Sections 26.0 and 28.0, as applicable.  
 
 12.2 IRS 990 Form.  Contractor shall provide the Purchasing Agent with a copy of its completed 
Internal Revenue Service Form 990 (Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax) for each calendar year 
within 180 days of the Contractor's fiscal year end, but no later than September 30 of each year in which County 
funds are received under this Contract.  If Contractor has filed an extension request which prevents the timely 
provision of the form 990, Contractor shall provide the Purchasing Agent with a copy of that application for exten-
sion of time to file (IRS Form 2758) within thirty (30) days of filing said form(s), and a copy of any final 
document(s) immediately upon receipt of such document(s). 
 
13.0   OUTSTANDING DEBT. 
 
 13.1  Assignment for Taxes.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Contract, if 
Contractor is delinquent in the payment of property taxes, or of any taxes due to Travis County, at any time of invoicing 
for payment, Contractor hereby assigns any payment and/or advance to be made for services and performance provided 
under this Contract to the Travis County Tax Assessor-Collector for payment of delinquent taxes, and authorizes 
County to transfer those funds directly to the Travis County Tax Assessor-Collector.  
 
 13.2 Disbursements to Persons With Outstanding Debt.    Contractor agrees that: 
 
  13.2.1 Disbursements to persons with certain outstanding debt is prohibited by Section 154.05 of 

the Texas Local Government Code. 
 
  13.2.2 Pursuant to Section 13.2.1, if notice of indebtedness has been filed with the County Auditor 

or County Treasurer evidencing the indebtedness of Contractor to the State, the County or a salary fund, a 
warrant may not be drawn on a County fund in favor of the Contractor, or an agent or assignee of Contractor 
until: 

 
  (a) the County Treasurer notifies the Contractor in writing that the debt is outstanding; 
and 
  (b) the debt is paid. 

PS120032ML 
 
16 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  13.2.3 "Debt" as used in this Section 13.0 includes delinquent taxes, fines, fees and indebtedness 

arising from written agreement with the County. 
 
  13.2.4 County may apply funds County owes Contractor to the outstanding balance of debt for 

which notice is made under Section 13.2.2 above if the notice includes a statement that the amount owed by 
the County to Contractor may be applied to reduce the outstanding debt. 

 
 13.3 Payment of Taxes.  Contractor agrees that Contractor will be liable for compliance with all federal, 
state, and local laws and requirements regarding: income tax, payroll tax, withholding, excise tax and any other taxes.  
Contractor accepts responsibility for the compensation of employees for purchasing any liability, disability or health 
insurance coverage deemed necessary by Contractor or required by law and for providing federal and state 
unemployment insurance coverage and standard Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage. Contractor will not be 
treated as an employee of County with respect to the services performed under the terms and conditions of this Contract 
for federal and state tax purposes. If Contractor is not a corporation, Contractor further understands that the Contractor 
may be liable for self-employment (social security) tax, to be paid by Contractor according to law. Contractor must be 
able to demonstrate on-site compliance with the Federal Tax Reform Act of 1986, Section 1706, amending Section 530 
of the Revenue Act of 1978, dealing with issuance of Form W-2's to common law employees.  County will not be 
responsible for payment of any of the above costs of Contractor. 
 
 13.4 Non-delinquency on Federal Debt.  Contractor, by signing this Contract, certifies that Contractor is 
not delinquent in repaying any Federal debt; has not been judged to be in default on a Federal Debt; and has not had a 
judgment lien filed against it as a result of a Federal debt.  Failure to maintain this status will result in action by County 
up to and including termination of this Contract. 
 
 VI. RESPONSIBILITIES AND OBLIGATIONS OF CONTRACTOR 
 
14.0   CONTRACTOR PERFORMANCE 
 
 4.1   Services and Activities.   
 
  14.1.1  Requirements.  During any Contract Term, Contractor shall perform, in a satisfactory manner 

as determined by County, through County Department, (based on information and data as provided by and 
through Department) services and activities in accordance with the terms of Attachment A, "Work Statement" 
Attachment B, "Special Conditions (if applicable)" and Attachment C, "Program Budget;" and with all other 
terms and conditions stated in this Contract. 

 
  14.1.2  Failure to Perform.  In the event of Contractor's non-compliance with any term of this 

Contract, including, but not limited to timely submission of any report, record or notification, County may 
impose such sanctions as determined to be necessary by County, including, but not limited to: 

 
  (a)   Withholding of payments to Contractor under the Contract until Contractor 
 complies with the term of the Contract: 
 

PS120032ML 
 
17 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

18 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  (b)   Suspension, termination or cancellation of the Contract, in whole or in part. 
 
 The above actions by County may be taken in addition to any other specific action set forth in any provision of 

this Contract or allowed by law. 
 
  14.1.3 Assurance of Intent.  Whenever County in good faith has reason to question Contractor's 

intent to perform, County may demand that Contractor provide to County written assurance of their intent to 
perform.  In the event a demand is made by County and Contractor gives no assurance within thirty (30) days 
of receipt of the written notice of such demand, County may treat this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of 
this Contract. 

 
 14.2   Policies.   
 
  14.2.1  General Policies.  The Contractor is required to maintain written policies and procedures 

approved by its governing body and to make copies of all policies available to the County Department upon 
request.  At a minimum, written policies shall exist in the following areas:  Financial Management; 
Subcontracting and/or Procurement; Equal Employment Opportunity; Personnel; Client and Personnel 
Grievance (as further set forth in Section 5.2.2); Nepotism; Non-Discrimination of Clients; Drug Free 
Workplace; the Americans With Disabilities Act; and any other policies or procedures as might be required by 
law or reasonably required by County. 

 
  14.2.2  Grievance Policies.   
 

  a.  Procedure.  Contractor shall, and shall require all Subcontractors to, have in place an 
 appropriate written grievance review procedure to receive and resolve complaints and shall provide 
 the County Department with a copy of such procedure immediately upon request by County.  County 
 has no responsibility for resolution of any grievances or complaints against Contractor regarding any 
 services provided in relation to this Contract, and Contractor agrees to advise Subcontractors of such 
 in any agreement with Contractor for provision of services related to this Contract.  Included in the 
 procedure will be the obligation of Contractor to make timely written communication to the County 
 Department regarding potential quality or utilization issues evidenced in any grievance and thus 
 identified and referred to Contractor for action and resolution; and Contractor hereby agrees to make 
 such timely communications to County. 

 
  b.  Monitoring.  Contractor agrees that specific grievances and complaints will be monitored 
 and a mechanism utilized to track and promptly resolve any participant issues, problems, or 
 complaints.  Records of the resolution of grievances shall be maintained by Contractor and made 
 available for monitoring by County through the County Department. 
 

 14.3  Contractor Communication.   
 
  14.3.1 TCHHSVS and ATCHHSD.  Contractor understands and agrees that this contract is entered 

into by and between Contractor and County only.  While there may be some interaction between TCHHSVS 
and the City of Austin's Travis County Health and Human Services Department ("ATCHHSD"), or other City 

PS120032ML 
 
18 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

19 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

of Austin-related departments, those activities will be administrative in nature and operating only between 
TCHHSVS and ATCHHSD as determined by those two entities.  Neither the terms of this Contract nor 
activities between TCHHSVS and ATCHHSD infer, imply or create any responsibility or obligation between 
the City of Austin and Contractor.   

 
  14.3.2   General Communication.  Contractor and County agree that, unless otherwise designated 

specifically in any provision, all communication, requests, questions, or other inquiries related to this Contract 
shall initially be presented by Contractor to the County Department through the Executive Manager. 

 
 14.4 Miscellaneous Provisions. 
 
  14.4.1 Other Agreements.  It is understood and agreed by both Parties that the terms of this 

Contract do not in any way limit or prohibit current or future agreements between any of the Parties for the 
provision of additional services as mutually agreed to in writing by the Parties. 

 
  14.4.2 Non-retaliation.  Contractor may not discriminate or retaliate in any way against any 

employee or other person who reports a violation of the terms of this Contract or of any law or regulation or 
any suspected illegal activity by Contractor to County or to any appropriate law enforcement authority, if the 
report is made in good faith. 
 

  14.4.3 Contractor Responsibility.   Contractor shall bear full responsibility for the integrity of fiscal 
and programmatic management.  Such responsibility shall include:  accountability for all funds and materials 
received from County; compliance with County rules, policies, procedures, and applicable federal and state 
laws and regulations; and correction of fiscal and program deficiencies identified through self-evaluation and 
County's monitoring processes.  Ignorance of any Contract  provision(s) shall not constitute a defense or basis 
for waiving or appealing such provisions of requirements. 

 
 14.5  Directors' Meetings.  Contractor shall keep on file copies of notices of Directors' Meetings, Board 
Meetings, or Subcommittee or Advisory Board meetings and copies of minutes from those meetings.  Upon request by 
County, copies of any of the above shall be provided to County Department. 
 
 14.6   Ownership of Property.   
 
  14.6.1 Capital Acquisition Property ("Property").  For purposes of this Contract, "Capital 

Acquisition Property" (or "Property") shall be considered to be any tangible, non-expendable property 
purchased with Contract Funds. 

 
  14.6.2 Title.  To the extent that Contract Funds are used to purchase any Property, title to such 

Property shall vest in Contractor subject to the requirements of this Section 14.6. 
 
  14.6.3 Notice.  Written notification must be given to the County Purchasing Agent pursuant to the 

"Notice" provision of this Contract within five (5) calendar days of delivery of Capital Acquisition Property, 
and County will then effect identification and recording of such Property for inventory purposes.  Written 
notification must be given to the County Purchasing Agent within five (5) calendar days of any change in the 

PS120032ML 
 
19 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

20 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

status of such Property related to the terms of this Section 14.6.  The Contractor shall maintain adequate 
accountability and control over such Property, shall maintain adequate Property records, and shall perform an 
annual inventory to be reported to the County Purchasing Agent no later than September 30 of each year in 
which Contract Funds are received, and for up to two years after the termination of this Contract (or the time 
which title vests in Contractor under Section 14.6.7) as required under Section 14.6.9.  Records and reports 
shall contain the necessary information and documentation to support compliance with this Section 14.6. 

 
  14.6.4 Encumbrances.  Contractor shall not give any security interest or lien in, or otherwise 

encumber such Property purchased with Contract Funds. 
 
  14.6.5 Budget.  Property purchased by Contractor must be included and identified in Contractor's 

budget. 
 
  14.6.6 Contract Use.  Property may only be purchased utilizing Contract Funds if such Property 

will be utilized by Contractor to provide or further the provision of the services purchased by County under 
this Contract.  Such Property may also be used outside the area of this Contract only if such use does not 
interfere with or diminish the work required under this Contract.  Within the limits of this Section 14,6, 
Contractor shall continue to use such Property in a manner which supports provision of the services provided 
under this Contract throughout the term of this Contract and for two years after the termination of this 
Contract (or the time when title vests in Contractor under Section 14.6.7).   

 
  14.6.7 Time Limit.  Limitations of this Section 14.6 only apply to Property which is less than 

twenty-four (24) months old. Once any Property is more than twenty-four (24) months old, the requirements 
of this Section 14.6 cease to apply, and the title to the Property shall vest in Contractor free and clear of any 
obligations to County. 

 
  14.6.8 Trade or Sale.  If Contractor uses such Property as a trade-in or sells such Property, the 

proceeds shall either be used to purchase replacement equipment for a similar use or returned to County 
through the Purchasing Agent.  Contractor shall notify the Purchasing Agent of such disposition and the 
identity of the new Property where replacement equipment is purchased.  All requirements of this Section 14.6 
shall attach to such replacement Property with time requirements as to the new Property beginning the date of 
purchase. 

 
  14.6.9 Certification.  Contractor (through its Executive Director or other authorized signatory) 

shall provide annual written and signed notice to the Purchasing Agent regarding all Property and certifying 
the continued use of such Property in compliance with this Section 14.6.  This Certification shall be included 
with the annual inventory provided under Section 14.6.3. 

 
  14.6.10 Failure to Continue Use.  If Contractor cannot continue to meet the requirements of this 

Section 14.6 regarding Property, then Contractor shall either provide cash compensation for such Property to 
County in an amount equal to the fair market value of the Property (as agreed to by County), or return such 
Property to County through the Purchasing Agent, or request in writing disposition instructions from the 
Purchasing Agent which instructions shall then be followed by Contractor. 

 

PS120032ML 
 
20 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

21 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  14.6.11 Responsibility.  Contractor shall assume responsibility for the protection of all physical 
property and equipment (Property) purchased under this Contract, and shall take appropriate measures to meet 
this obligation.  Contractor shall furnish the County Purchasing Agent with a written, factual report of the theft 
of, or damage to, any Property purchased under this Contract.  In the event of any theft, vandalism, or other 
offense against the Property, Contractor shall notify the appropriate local law enforcement authorities and the 
County Purchasing Agent immediately. 

 
  14.6.12 Competitive Bidding.  Contractor shall ensure that all purchases made using County 

Contract Funds provided under this Contract, either by Contractor or Subcontractor(s), will be made according 
to established and applicable statutory requirements relating to competitive bidding. 

  
 14.7   Long-Term Strategic Planning.  Contractor agrees to participate to the extent possible in the long-
term strategic planning process as developed by CAN and/or requested by County. 
 
 14.8   Insurance.   
 
  14.8.1  Requirements. Contractor shall have, and shall require all Subcontractors providing services 

under this Contract to have, Standard Insurance sufficient to cover the needs of Contractor and/or 
Subcontractor pursuant to applicable generally accepted business standards as set forth in Attachment F, 
"Insurance Requirements."  Depending on services provided by Contractor and/or Subcontractor, 
Supplemental Insurance Requirements or alternate insurance options as set forth in Attachment F, "Insurance 
Requirements," may be imposed.   

 
  14.8.2 Submission of Certificate.  Contractor shall submit to the County Purchasing Agent 

Certificates of Insurance no later than ten (10) working days after execution of this Contract by the Parties.  
Contractor shall not begin providing services under this Contract until the required insurance is obtained and 
until such insurance certificate has been received by the County Purchasing Agent.   

 
  14.8.3 No Liability Limitation.  Acceptance of insurance by County shall not relieve or decrease 

the liability of Contractor with regard to its responsibilities under this Contract and shall not be construed to be 
a limitation of liability.  Contractor shall provide new Certificates of Insurance within ten (10) working days 
of any Renewal Term of this Contract under the terms of this Section 14.8. 

 
  14.8.4  Review and Adjustment.  County reserves the right to review the insurance requirements set 

forth in this Contract during the effective period of this Contract and to make reasonable adjustments to 
insurance coverages, limits and exclusions when deemed necessary and prudent by County based on changes 
in statutory law, court decisions, the claims history of the industry or financial conditions of the insurance 
company or Contractor.  Contractor shall not cause or allow any insurance to be cancelled nor allow any 
insurance to lapse during the Contract term. 

 
 14.9     Indemnification and Claims. 
 
  14.9.1   INDEMNIFICATION.  Contractor agrees to and shall indemnify and hold harmless 

County, its officers, agents, and employees, from and against any and all claims, losses, damages, 

PS120032ML 
 
21 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

22 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

negligence, causes of action, suits, and liability of every kind, including all expenses of litigation, court 
costs, and attorney's fees ("claims"), for injury to or death of any person, for any act or omission by 
Contractor, or for damage to any property, arising out of or in connection with the work done by 
Contractor under this Contract, whether such injuries, death or damages are caused by  Contractor's 
sole negligence or the joint negligence of Contractor  and any other third party.    This indemnification 
shall apply to any claims arising in connection with any alleged or actual infringement of existing 
license, patents or copyrights applicable to materials used or produced under this Contract. 

 
  14.9.2  Claims Notification.  If Contractor receives notice or becomes aware of any claim, or other 

action, including proceedings before an administrative agency, which is made or brought by any person, firm, 
corporation, or other entity against Contractor or County, Contractor shall give Department written notice 
within three (3) working days of being notified of this claim or threat of claim.  Such notice shall include:  
written description of the claim; the name and address of the person, firm, corporation or other entity that 
made or threatened to make a claim, or that instituted or threatened to institute any type of action or 
proceeding; the basis of the claim, action or proceeding; the court or administrative tribunal, if any, where the 
claim, action or proceeding was instituted; and the name or names of any person against whom this claim is 
being made or threatened.  This written notice shall be given in the manner provided in Section 26.0 of this 
Contract.  Except as otherwise directed, Contractor shall furnish to County copies of all pertinent papers 
received by Contractor with respect to these claims or actions.    

 
 14.10 Materials and Publications.  When material not originally developed by Contractor is submitted or 
included in a report, it shall have the source properly identified.  This identification may be placed in the body of the 
report or included by footnote.  This provision is applicable when the material is in a verbatim or extensive paraphrase 
format.  Contractor and any Subcontractor, as appropriate, must comply with the standard patent rights clauses in 37 
Code of Federal Regulations Section 401.14 or Federal Acquisition Regulations 52.227.1. 
 
 14.11   Rights, Copyrights, Patents, and Licenses.   
 
  14.11.1  Property of County.  All reports, charts, schedules, or other appended documentation to any 

proposal, content of basic proposal, or contracts and any responses, inquiries, correspondence, and related 
material created and/or submitted by Contractor under the terms of this Contract shall become the property of 
County.  Contractor may publish the results of the Contract performance at its expense with prior County 
review and approval.  If County owns the copyright, any publication should include "© Travis County, P. O. 
Box 1748, Austin, Texas, 78767, (the year of publication), All Rights Reserved."  If Contractor is the 
copyright holder, any publication shall include acknowledgment of the support received from County.  At 
least six copies of any such publication must be provided to County through County Department.  County 
reserves the right to require additional copies before or after the initial review.   

 
  14.11.2  Copyright.  All work performed pursuant to the terms of this Contract that results in the 

production of original books, manuals, films, or other original material is the exclusive property of County.  
All right, title, and interest in and to said property shall vest in County upon creation.  All work performed 
shall be deemed to be a "work made for hire" and made in the course of the services rendered pursuant to this 
Contract.  To the extent that title to any such work may not, by operation of law, vest in County or such work 
may not be considered a work made for hire, all rights, title and interest in such works are hereby irrevocably 

PS120032ML 
 
22 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

23 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

assigned to County.  County shall have the right to obtain and to hold in its own name any and all patents, 
copyrights, trademarks, service marks, certification marks, collective marks, registrations, or such other 
protection as may be appropriate to the subject matter, and any extensions and renewals thereof.  Contractor 
agrees to give County and agrees to require its Subcontractors to give County, or any person designated by 
County, all assistance required to perfect the rights defined in this provision, without any charge or expense 
beyond those amounts payable to Contractor for the services rendered under this Contract according to the 
terms of this Contract.   

 
  14.11.3  Adherence and Indemnification.   Contractor warrants and agrees that all applicable 

copyrights, patents, and licenses which may exist on materials used in this Contract have been adhered to; and 
that County shall not be liable for any infringement of those rights; and any rights granted to County shall 
apply for the duration of this Contract and for ten (10) years after termination of this Contract.   

 
  14.11.4  License to Use.   To the extent that title to any work may not, by operation of law, vest in 

County or such work may not be considered a work made for hire or be assigned to County, Contractor hereby 
grants to County an irrevocable, non-exclusive, non-transferable and royalty-free license to use, reproduce, 
publish, revise, make disposition of, prepare derivative works, distribute to the public, to perform, and to 
display publicly, for or on behalf of County according to law, any material (including software) that may be 
developed as part of the work under this Contract.  If Contractor does not assert a copyright interest,  any and 
all material developed by Contractor in the course of or pursuant to this Contract is an open record.  

 
  
 
14.12 Miscellaneous Responsibilities. 
 
  14.12.1 Employee Offenses.   
 

  (a)  Client Contact.  Contractor agrees that no Employee ("Employee" being defined 
 under this Section 14.12.2 as including volunteers or other persons working under the direction of 
 Contractor in the provision of services under this Contract in a manner which involves direct 
Client  contact) shall provide services in a manner which involves direct Client contact if that Employee  
 has been convicted of having committed an offense of abuse, neglect, or exploitation or an offense 
 against the person, an offense against the family, or an offense involving public indecency under 
 the TEXAS PENAL CODE 
 
  (b)  Procedure.  Contractor agrees to have in place a written policy and procedures for 
 verifying the criminal history and any current criminal indictment involving the offenses listed in 
 this Section 14.12 2 of any Employee having direct contact with County clients, and shall 
maintain  evidence of having processed all Employees through such procedure.  Such policy and 
procedure  must also address the evaluation and monitoring of Employees convicted of an offense 
under the  TEXAS CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES ACT, but does not have to prohibit direct 
Client contact  where Contractor determines, and documents the grounds for such determination, that 
such contact  would pose no risk to the Eligible Client.  Contractor shall also have in place a procedure 
for  addressing the work of any employee alleged to have committed an offense listed under this 

PS120032ML 
 
23 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

24 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 section in a manner which will afford reasonable protection to Eligible Clients until such 
allegation  is resolved.  

 
  (c)   Waiver.  In any circumstance under which Contractor believes that specific fact 
 situations warrant a waiver of the requirements of this Subsection 14.12.1, in whole or in part, 
 Contractor may present the details of such circumstance in writing to County, through the 
 Executive Manager, for a determination as to such request for waiver.   

 
  (d)  Subcontractors.  This Section 14.12.1 shall also apply to any employees of 
 Subcontractors who have direct Client contact, and Contractor shall ensure that all Subcontractors 
 have procedures in place to ensure compliance with this Section 14.12.1. 

 
  14.12.2  Offense Report.  Contractor shall promptly report any suspected case of abuse, neglect or 

exploitation to the appropriate office(s) as required by the TEXAS FAMILY CODE, Chapter 261.  All reports 
must be made within 24 hours of the discovery of the abuse or neglect. 

 
  14.12.3 Qualifications.  If specific qualifications are set forth in job descriptions required by 

County, or attached to any position related to providing of services under this Contract, only personnel with 
the required qualifications will be assigned to fill functions unless a written waiver is granted by the County. 

 
15.0   WARRANTS, AND ASSURANCES 
 
 15.1 Eligible Client Warranty.   Contractor agrees that County is only authorized by law to provide 
certain services, and that the provision of those services must meet a public purpose as determined by County.  To 
assure that County Contract Funds are spent for the provision of such authorized services in furtherance of such public 
purpose, Contractor warrants that the percentage of Eligible Clients (as defined by this Contract) receiving services 
under this Contract and funded by County Contract Funds compared to the total number of clients being served by 
Contractor under Contractor's total budget is equal to or greater than the percentage of County Contract Funds to total 
Contractor budget, and that County Contract Funds will be used by Contractor only for those purposes stated and 
agreed to under the terms of this Contract. 
 
 15.2   Accurate Information.  Contractor warrants that all reports, data and information submitted to 
County will be accurate, reliable and verifiable.  Approval by County of such shall not constitute nor be deemed a 
release of the responsibility and liability of Contractor, its employees, agents or associates for the accuracy and 
competency of their reports, information documents, or services, nor shall approval be deemed to be the assumption of 
such responsibility by County for any defect, error, omission, act or negligence or bad faith by Contractor, its 
employees, agents, or associates. 
 
 15.3   No Duplication.  Contractor agrees that Contractor will report and receive payment for each 
service/Client solely from County Contract Funds pursuant to the terms of this Contract;  and that there will be no 
duplicate payments from other sources for the same services paid for by County Contract Funds. Contractor will also 
ensure that this provision and prohibition of duplicate payment for services be included in any Subcontracts. 
 
 15.4 Benefit.  Contractor agrees that all funds paid to Contractor under this Contract are paid in trust for 

PS120032ML 
 
24 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

25 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

the exclusive benefit of Eligible Clients and for the payment of allowable expenditures as set forth in this Contract. 
 
 15.5   Maintenance of Effort.  Contractor agrees that Contract Funds may not be substituted for funds 
or resources from any other source nor in any way serve to reduce the funds or resources which would have been 
available to or provided through Contractor had this Contract never been executed. 
  
 15.6 Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters.  This Section 15.6 provides for 
compliance with certification requirements under 15 CFR Part 26, "Government-wide Debarment and Suspension." 
 Contractor, by signing this Contract, hereby warrants and certifies that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, it 
and its principles: 
 
  (a)  are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or 

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by and Federal department or agency. 
 
  (b)  have not within a three-year period preceding this Contract been convicted of or had a civil 

judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with 
obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or contract 
under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, 
theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction or records, making false statements, or receiving stolen 
property; 

 
  (c)  are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental 

entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (b); and 
 
  (d) have not within a three year period preceding this Contract had one or more public 

transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default. 
 
Where Contractor is unable to certify to any of the statements in this Section 15.6, Contractor shall provide a written 
explanation of such inability prior to the effective date of this Contract for County's consideration and evaluation 
with the understanding that such may result in termination of this Contract by County. 
 
16.0   COMPLIANCE 
 
 16.1   Federal, State and Local Laws. Contractor shall provide all services and activities performed under 
the terms of this Contract in compliance with the Constitutions of the United States and Texas and with all applicable 
federal, state, and local orders, laws, regulations, rules, policies, and certifications governing any activities undertaken 
during the performance of this Contract and governing Contractor's general conduct of business, including, but not 
limited to: Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 
U.S.C. Section 794); the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990, Public Law 101-336 [S.933] ("ADA"), Chapter 73, 
TEXAS ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE, Section 85.113 (relating to workplace and 
confidentiality guidelines regarding AIDS and HIV); Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 
(HIPAA) and the Privacy Standards adopted to implement HIPAA at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, at Section 164.512, 
and Occupations Code, Chapter 159, at Sections 159.003 and 159.004;  Contractor shall not discriminate against any 
employee, applicant for employment, or Eligible Client based on race, religion, color, gender, national origin, age or 

PS120032ML 
 
25 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

26 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

handicapped condition.  In performance of all Contract services and activities, Contractor will comply with applicable 
state and federal licensing and certification requirements, health and safety standards, and regulations prescribed by the 
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services and the Texas Department of Health. 
 
 16.2   Confidentiality. 
 
  16.2.1  Method.  Contractor shall establish a method to secure the confidentiality of records and other 

information relating to Eligible Clients in accordance with the applicable Federal, State and local laws, rules 
and regulations, and applicable professional ethical standards.  This provision shall not be construed as 
limiting the lawful right of access to Eligible Client information.    

  
  16.2.2  Limited Access.  Prior to a scheduled monitoring or audit, Contractor agrees to submit to 

County, through TCHHSVS, in writing, any relevant requirement precluding County's access to Eligible 
Client information including the correct citation of the legal authority on which Contractor relies to support its 
claim that County is prohibited from access to the client information. 

 
  16.2.3  Masking.  Upon authorization from County, through TCHHSVS, to render client files 

anonymous, Contractor agrees to mask information identifying clients in a way that will not obstruct County's 
monitoring and evaluative duties in any way. 

 
  16.2.4  Collaboration.  If applicable, Contractor shall execute and have on file copies of 

memorandums of understanding or other agreements with other governmental entities within Travis County 
and/or the City of Austin with whom Contractor will be sharing or obtaining participant information related to 
enrollment of Clients for services provided under this Contract. 

 
  16.2.5   Privacy.  Contractor shall, and shall ensure that all Subcontractors, comply with state and 

federal laws relating to the privacy and confidentiality of patient and client records that contain protected 
health information, or other information made confidential by law, and shall maintain patient and client 
records in compliance with state laws relating to the security and retention of medical or patient records.  
Contractor shall, and shall ensure that its Subcontractors, maintain all medical records in accordance with all 
applicable statutes and regulations governing medical information.  

 
 16.3   Certification of Software, Hardware, Firmware and Micro Code Products. Contractor certifies 
that any supplied or supported software, hardware, firmware and micro code products used individually or together as a 
system to comply with Contract requirements shall operate accurately in the manner in which they were intended when 
given a valid date containing century, year, month and day. 
 
 16.4 Texas Public Information Act.  The Parties agree that this Contract, and all performance under this 
Contract, and all information obtained by County in connection with this Contract is subject to applicable provisions of 
the Texas Public Information Act, TEX. GOV'T. CODE, Chapter 552, and all legal authorities relating to such Act, 
including, but not limited to, decisions and letter rulings issued by the Texas State Attorney General's Office. 
 
17.0   RETENTION AND ACCESSIBILITY OF CLIENT & FISCAL RECORDS 
  

PS120032ML 
 
26 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

27 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 17.1  Retention of Records 
 
  17.1.1 Time Requirement.   Contractor shall create and maintain all records and reports required 

and/or created relevant to performance under this Contract, including but not limited to those specifically set 
out in this Section 17.0, until all evaluations, audits and other reviews have been completed and all questions 
or issues (including litigation) arising from those evaluations, audits and reviews are resolved satisfactorily to 
County, or three (3) years after the end of the final Contract period, whichever occurs later.   

 
  17.1.2 Document Destruction.  Contractor agrees that it will not destroy or alter any document in 

order to prevent its use in any official proceeding (for example, federal, state or local investigation, 
bankruptcy, etc.) 

 
 17.2  Client Records.   
 
  17.2.1  Maintenance.  Contractor shall create and maintain all records regarding Eligible Clients that 

include the information on which Contractor relies to determine the Client's eligibility, all records and reports 
necessary, as determined by County, to evaluate the effectiveness of the services provided under this Contract 
(including, at a minimum, the services provided, the cost of providing services, and follow-up information 
about the effect of the services on the Eligible Client as shown by selected indicators), and all records related 
to performance under this Contract.  Contractor shall maintain all medical records in accordance with all 
applicable statutes (including but not limited to HIPAA) and regulations governing medical information. 

 
  17.2.2  Unduplicated Client Records.  Contractor shall maintain records for those Eligible Clients 

participating in programs designated by County Department from which an Unduplicated Client count can be 
determined.  Contractor shall maintain a separate record for each unduplicated client.  This client record shall 
contain at least the following information: 

 
   (a)  Name 
   (b) Application date 
   (c)  Residential address and phone number 
   (d) Date of Birth 
   (e) Household Income   
   (f) Eligibility information 
   (g) Service rendered 
   (h) Any support documentation 
   (i) Family status 
   (j) Number in household 
   (k) Enrollment Date 
   (l) Exit Date 
 
 Each Unduplicated Client reported in the Performance Report for designated programs shall correspond to a 

separate client record and support the services rendered to that Unduplicated Client. 
 
 17.3   One-Time Services. In addition to those records required under Section 17.2, Contractor shall create 

PS120032ML 
 
27 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

28 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

and retain records indicating the number of recipients of one time services such as information and referral services, 
group education services, outreach education, crisis/help lines, anonymous services, provision of food, clothing and 
one-time basic needs services.  Such records shall show the number of clients served and the type of Contract services 
provided.  An individual Unduplicated Client record for these recipients is not required.  Other Eligible Client records 
will be maintained by Contractor at County's request. 
 
 17.4 Fiscal Records.  Contractor shall create and maintain all necessary fiscal records and documentation 
required under this Contract and as necessary to support performance of this Contract.    
 
 17.5   Access.  Contractor shall give County, or any of its duly authorized representatives, access to and the 
right to examine all books, accounts, records, reports, files, and other papers, things, or property belonging to or in use 
by Contractor pertaining to this Contract at reasonable times and for reasonable periods.  These rights to access shall 
continue as long as the records are required to be retained by Contractor, and for any additional time period that the 
records are retained by Contractor. 
 
 17.6   Adjustment.  Contractor may, at any time, request in writing to the Executive Manager that County 
clarify or provide a waiver of all or a portion of the record requirements in this Section 17.0.  Only waivers under this 
Section 17.6 granted by County Executive Manager in writing will be effective to change any requirement in this 
Section 17.0. 
 
 17.7 Rights to Materials.   Subject to the applicable requirements of this Sections 17.0,  all reports, 
charts, schedules, records, or other appended documentation of Contractor which is related to this Contract, and any 
responses, inquiries, correspondence and related material submitted by Contractor to County or created by Contractor 
under this document are the property of County. 
 
18.0 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS  
 
 18.1   Performance Reports.   
 
  18.1.1 General Performance Reports.  Contractor shall submit data in accordance with the terms of 

Attachment D, "Performance Report Format," in Quarterly Performance Reports to be delivered  to 
TCHHSVS as required by County within fifteen (15) days after the end of the quarter to which the report 
relates.  This quarterly Performance Report will be submitted to TCHHSVS as an attachment to the Request 
For Payment (see Section 7.1) submitted for the last month of the quarter to which it relates.  Performance 
Reports will identify data as it relates to different funding sources where applicable. 

 
  18.1.2 Modification to Performance Reports.  County may recommend additional performance 

measures to be included by giving Contractor written notice of such proposed changes.  Unless Contractor 
provides County with written opposition to the proposal within fifteen (15) days of receipt of notice, such 
changes will be considered added to the Contract and will constitute promised performance by Contractor 
without the necessity of a written Amendment.  Such changes will be effective as to reports filed by 
Contractor for services provided during the first full reporting period following the addition of the changes.   If 
Contractor opposes the changes, County and Contractor will negotiate in good faith to develop amended 
performance measures pursuant to Section 4.0 of this Contract.  

PS120032ML 
 
28 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

29 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 18.2   Reimbursement Reports.  Pursuant to Sections 6.0 - 8.0, Contractor shall deliver to TCHHSVS 
reports that provide all of the information requested in the Request For Payment and expenditure report, as required by 
County within fifteen (15) days after the end of the month to which the report relates.  If Contractor fails to provide this 
information to County in a complete and correct form and in a timely manner as set forth in this Contract,  such failure 
may impact the timing of payment by County under Sections 6..0 - 8.0. 
 
 18.3   Final Close-Out Report.  Contractor shall deliver a close-out report as required by  TCHHSVS no 
later than sixty (60) calendar days following the termination of any Contract Term (Initial and/or Renewal). 
 
 18.4   Financial Reports.  Upon request by County, Contractor shall deliver to TCHHSVS copies of all 
Board approved financial reports, to include the Contractor's Year-to-Date Balance sheet and income statement, within 
thirty (30) days of completion of any such report and/or the latest such report created by Contractor.  
 
 18.5   Additional Reports.  Contractor shall deliver to County Department within twenty (20) working 
days, any and all special reports, data, and information which the County requests that Contractor make as a routine or 
special request.   
 
 18.6   Changes in Reports.  Contractor shall promptly provide TCHHSVS with written reports of any 
changes in any of the information, reports, and/or records provided to County pursuant to this Contract.  
 
 18.7   Corrections.  County may require Contractor to correct or revise any errors, omissions or other 
deficiencies in any reports or services provided by the Contractor to ensure that such reports and services fulfill the 
purposes of this Contract.  Contractor shall make the required corrections or revisions without additional costs to 
County.   
 
 18.8   Legal Prohibition.  If Contractor is legally prohibited from providing any required or requested 
reports, it shall immediately notify County, through TCHHSVS, in writing of this fact.  Such notice shall include 
specific identification of the basis of the prohibition, including statutory citations as applicable, and shall be reviewed 
by County for final resolution. 
 
 18.9  Annual Report.  Upon request, Contractor, through its Board members, will provide County an 
annual report which will contain the same data and be in the same format as that of the Reports described in Section 7.0 
of this Contract.  Those performance measures, including any changes made by agreement of the Parties during any 
Contract Term, are incorporated and made a part of this Contract.  The Annual Report related to this Contract will be 
submitted by Contractor to Department no later than sixty (60) days following the ending date of the relevant Contract 
Term. 
 
 18.10 Other Funding Sources.   
 
  18.10.1  Other Source Reports.  Upon request by County, Contractor shall provide County, through 

TCHHSVS, copies of all evaluation and monitoring reports provided to Contractor from other funding sources 
listed under "Summary of Agency Revenue Sources" during the Contract Term.   

 

PS120032ML 
 
29 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

30 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  18.10.2 Loss of Funding.  In the event that Contractor incurs a termination or significant loss of 
funding (10% or more of Contractor's entire budget as well as any changes in total program funding that will 
significantly impact Contractor's ability to meet performance measures specific to this Contract) from sources 
other than County upon which Contractor depends for performance under this Contract, Contractor shall: 

 
  (a)  Notify Department immediately in writing of such loss of funding, the amount involved 
 and the services impacted; 

 
  (b)  Provide Department with thirty (30) days written notice if the decrease in funding 
 requires the termination of the Contract, in whole or in part, such notice to include a description of 
the  service impact expected to result from such decrease. 

 
  (c) If Contractor and County mutually agree in writing to changes to this Contract necessary 
 to absorb said decrease/termination of funding, this Contract may be amended pursuant to Section 
4.0.  County will only agree to said amendment if the re-negotiation process results in the continued 
 provision of services at an effective level as reasonably determined by County. 

   
  (d)  Any decrease in services agreed to by County and Contractor shall also reflect a 
 comparable decrease in the funding obligations of County set forth in Section 6.0 of this Contract, as 
 evidenced in writing in an amendment made pursuant to Section 4.0 of this Contract, said 
amendment  to include the effective date of such change and the corresponding change to the monthly 
payment or  reimbursement obligation of County. 

 
 VII.  RESPONSIBILITIES AND OBLIGATIONS OF COUNTY 
 
19.0   LIMITATIONS 
 
 19.1   County Approval.   
 
  19.1.1  County's Satisfaction.  Sections 6.0 - 8.0 notwithstanding, the Parties expressly agree that 

County shall not be responsible for the costs of any services provided under this Contract that are not fully 
performed according to the terms of this Contract to County's satisfaction and with County's approval, which 
shall not be unreasonably withheld.  

 
  19.1.2  Responsibility and Liability.  Approval of County, and/or payment under this Contract by 

County, shall not constitute nor be deemed a release of the responsibility and liability of Contractor, its 
employees, agents or associates for the accuracy and competency of their reports, information, documents, or 
services, nor shall approval be deemed to be the assumption of such responsibility by County for any defect, 
error, omission, act or negligence or bad faith by Contractor, its employees, agents, or associates. 

 
20.0   COUNTY OBLIGATIONS 
 
 20.1   Current Revenue Funds. County shall make payments for invoices for performance of 
governmental functions and services under this Contract from current revenue funds available to County and set aside 

PS120032ML 
 
30 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

31 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

for this purpose. The parties agree that the payment made under this Contract is in an amount that fairly compensates 
Contractor for the services or functions performed under this Contract. 
 
 20.2   Poverty Income Guidelines.  County, through County Department, shall notify Contractor of any 
changes in the Poverty Income Guidelines that occur during the Contract Term. 
 
  20.3   County Confidentiality.  County agrees to keep confidential at all times all information that 
identifies clients and personnel and any other information received from Contractor if required to do so by law. 
 
 20.4 Immunity or Defense.  It is expressly understood and agreed by all Parties that, neither the 
execution of this Contract, nor any conduct of any representative of County relating to this Contract, shall be 
considered to waive, nor shall it be deemed to have waived, any immunity or defense that would otherwise be available 
to it against claims arising in the exercise of its governmental powers and functions, nor shall it be considered a waiver 
of sovereign immunity to suit. 
 
 20.5 County Training.  In exchange for and in the furtherance of certain services which may be provided 
by Contractor, County may, in certain instances, within applicable County guidelines and policies, and with 
Contractor's agreement, offer specific training to Contractor and/or Contractor's employees, agents, or authorized 
representatives.  Additional Contractor opportunities may be made contingent upon the successful completion of such 
training by County to the extent determined necessary by County.  
 

VIII.  SUSPENSION/TERMINATION 
 
21.0 SUSPENSION.  If Contractor fails to comply with any term of this Contract, including but not limited to 
failure to deliver reports as required by this Contract and/or failure to make corrections required by this Contract, or if 
the Commissioners Court requests a financial review or performance evaluation related to a reasonable cause to believe 
that Contractor is not using Contract Funds in compliance with the terms of this Contract, County may, upon written 
notification to Contractor, suspend this Contract in whole or in part and withhold further payments to Contractor 
pending resolution of the issues supporting such suspension. Contractor agrees that Contractor shall not incur additional 
obligations of Contract Funds after receipt of such notice of suspension until Contractor is in compliance with the terms 
of this Contract or the reports of the financial review and/or program evaluation are completed and all exceptions noted 
in these reports are corrected to County's satisfaction as evidenced by written notice by County. 
 
22.0 TERMINATION 
 
 22.1 Reasons for Termination.  County shall have the right to terminate this Contract, in whole or in 
part, at any time before the date of termination specified in Section 2.0 of this Contract for the following reasons: 
 
  22.1.1  Failure to Comply.  Contractor has failed to comply with any term or condition of this 

Contract, including, but not limited to, the failure to deliver reports required by this Contract and/or make 
those corrections required by this Contract;; 

 
  22.1.2  County Funding Out.  During the budget planning and adoption process related to the second 

Fiscal Year included in the Contract Term, Commissioners Court fails to provide funding for this Contract for 

PS120032ML 
 
31 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

32 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

the that second County Fiscal Year following the beginning of the contract period; 
 
  22.1.3  Contractor's Ability to Perform.  County finds that Contractor is in a financial condition that 

endangers Contractor's ability to perform this Contract; or Contractor is delinquent in the payment of taxes or 
cost of performance of this Contract in the ordinary course of business; or Contractor is in a technical state of 
bankruptcy as defined by the Federal Bankruptcy Act and is subject to the appointment of a trustee, receiver or 
liquidator for all, or a substantial part, of Contractor's property or to the institution of bankruptcy, reorganiza-
tion, rearrangement or liquidation proceedings by or against Contractor; 

 
  22.1.4  Contractor's Ability to Conform.  Contractor is unable to conform to changes required by 

federal, state and local laws or regulations; or 
 
  22.1.5  Beneficial Results.  County finds that Contractor is not producing results that are sufficiently 

beneficial to warrant continued expenditure of Contract Funds. 
 
 22.2  Notification.  County Purchasing Agent shall notify Contractor pursuant to the "Notice" provision of 
this Contract in writing at least thirty (30) days before the date of termination of the decision to terminate; the reasons 
for the termination; the effective date of the termination; and, in the case of partial termination, the portion of the 
Contract to be terminated. 
 
 22.3   Contractor Termination.  Contractor may terminate this Contract in whole or in part at any time, by 
giving thirty (30) days written notice pursuant to Section 26.0 if there is termination of significant other funding upon 
which Contractor depends for performance under this Contract or if Contractor is dissolved only if the dissolution is not 
caused by a breach of this Contract.  Contractor's notice shall include a complete explanation of the reasons(s) for 
termination under this Section 22.3 and designation of the effective date of termination. The Purchasing Agent shall 
notify Contractor in writing of acceptance of termination pursuant to this Section 22.3 upon finding that Contractor's 
claim(s) under this Section 22.3 have been established to County's satisfaction. 
 
 22.4   Mutual Termination.  Any Party has the right to terminate this Contract, in whole or in part, when  
the Parties agree that the continuation of the activities funded under this Contract would not produce beneficial results 
commensurate with the further expenditure of funds; provided that both Parties agree, in writing, upon the termination 
conditions, including the effective date of the termination; the provisions under which termination shall be accepted;  
and, in the case of partial termination, the portion of the Contract to be terminated. 
 
 22.5   Correction.  At least thirty (30) days before the effective date of termination pursuant to any 
provision of this Contract, County shall notify Contractor in compliance with Section 26.0 of the reasons for 
termination, the effective date of termination and the portion of this Contract to be terminated.  Where County affords 
Contractor the option to cure Contractor may avoid the termination of this Contract if Contractor corrects the causes for 
the reasons for termination stated in the notice to the satisfaction of County, as determined by County, prior to the 
effective date of termination, or an extended date if agreed to in writing by the Parties. 
 
 22.6   Results of Termination. 
 
  22.6.1  Cancellation of Outstanding Orders.  Upon termination or receipt of notice to terminate, 

PS120032ML 
 
32 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

33 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

whichever occurs first, Contractor shall cancel, withdraw, or otherwise terminate any outstanding orders or 
Subcontracts related to the performance of this Contract, or the part of this Contract to be terminated, and shall 
cease to incur any and all Contract costs under them.  County shall not be liable to Contractor for costs 
incurred after termination of this Contract.  County shall not under any circumstances be liable to Contractor's 
creditors or Subcontractors for any payments under this Contract. 

 
  22.6.2  Continued Liability.  Notwithstanding any exercise by County of its right of suspension under 

Section 21.0 of this Contract or of early termination pursuant to this Section 22.0 or any provision of this 
Contract, Contractor shall not be relieved of any liability to County for damages due to County by virtue of 
any breach of this Contract by Contractor, or for any amounts paid to Contractor by County and determined by 
County to be overpayment(s), disallowed payment(s), or payment(s) subject to refund under the terms of this 
Contract.  County may withhold payments to Contractor until the exact amount of damages or payments due 
to County from Contractor is agreed upon or is otherwise determined, and is paid in full. 

 
  22.6.3 Transition.  Where applicable, at the end of the Contract Term or at the time of any other 

Contract termination or cancellation, the Contractor shall in good faith and in reasonable cooperation with 
County, aid in transition to any new arrangement or provider of services which have been provided under 
this Contract as necessary to protect Client interests. 

 
 22.7 Immediate Termination.  Nothing in this Section 22.0, or any other provision of this Contract, shall 
be construed to limit County's authority to withhold payment and immediately suspend Contractor's performance under 
this Contract if County identifies possible instances of fraud, abuse, waste, fiscal mismanagement, or other serious 
deficiencies in Contractor's performance.  County shall notify Contractor in writing (including fax and/or email) of such 
suspension.  Suspension shall be a temporary measure pending either corrective action by Contractor or a decision by 
County to terminate this Contract.  County shall not be liable for any costs incurred by Contractor during suspension of 
this Contract under this Section 22.7.  
 
 VIII.  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
23.0   INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.   
 
 23.1 The Parties expressly agree that Contractor is an independent contractor and assumes all of the rights, 
obligations and liabilities applicable to it as an independent contractor.  No employee of Contractor shall be considered 
an employee of County or gain any rights against County pursuant to County's personnel policies.  The relationship of 
County and Contractor under this Contract is not and shall not be construed or interpreted to be a partnership, joint 
venture or agency.  The relationship of the Parties shall be an independent contractor relationship.  Neither Party shall 
have the authority to make any statements, representations or commitments of any kind, or to take any action which 
shall be binding on the other Party or which shall hold itself out to be binding on the other Party. 
 
24.0   SUBCONTRACTS 
 
 24.1   Prior Approval.  Contractor shall not be reimbursed for costs incurred by any Subcontractors for 
any service or activity relating to the performance of this Contract without the prior written approval of such 
Subcontract or the prior written waiver of this right of approval from County through the Purchasing Agent.  Approval 

PS120032ML 
 
33 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

34 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

of this Contract will constitute approval as required by this Section 24.1 for those Subcontracts/Subcontractors 
specifically identified in the Contract terms, including the Attachments. 
 
 24.2   Contractor Responsibility.   
 
  24.2.1  Subcontractor Compliance.  Contractor is wholly responsible to County for the performance 

under this Contract, whether such performance is provided directly by Contractor or indirectly by any 
Subcontractor.  Contractor is responsible to County for the performance of any Subcontractor, and shall 
monitor both financial and programmatic performance and maintain pertinent records concerning 
Subcontractor(s) that shall be available for inspection by County.  Contractor shall ensure that its 
Subcontractors comply with all applicable terms of this Contract (including terms related to records and 
reports) as if the performance rendered by the Subcontractor was being rendered by Contractor.  Contractor 
shall inspect all Subcontractors' work and shall be responsible for ensuring that it is completed in a good and 
workmanlike manner pursuant to the terms of this Contract. 

 
  24.2.2 Subcontract Terms.  Contractor agrees that all Subcontracts will include provisions which 

require compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations and policies; with the 
applicable terms of this Contract;, and with any provisions such as may be reasonably requested by County; 
and shall also include provisions ensuring the following: 

 
   (a)  The disclosure of any other contracts with County at the time the agreement is signed 
or  at any time during the Contract Term.  If such agreement exists, Subcontractor shall warrant and 
 guarantee that Subcontractor will report and receive payment for each service/participant only from 
 County funds under this Contract; and that there will be no duplicate payments for those 
 services/participants reported under this Contract from any other sources or from County under any 
 other contract or agreement. 
 

   (b)  Agreement: 
 
    (i)  to reasonably cooperate with any County inquiry or investigation into   

  Subcontractor and/or participant complaints; and 
 
    (ii)  to maintain confidentiality of information and security of all records as  

  required by law and the terms and conditions of this Contract; and 
 
    (iii)  that Contractor has the sole responsibility for payment for services rendered  

  by Subcontractor; and, in the event of non-payment, insolvency or cessation of operations,  
  sole recourse of Subcontractor against Contractor will be through Contractor or the  
  bankruptcy estate of Contractor; and 

 
   (iv)  that County is not liable for any payment to Subcontractor; and 

     
    (v)  to warrant that Subcontractor has systems in place to identify and document  

  services to Eligible Clients according to different funding sources; and 

PS120032ML 
 
34 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

35 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
    (vi)  to warrant that any service/participant for which County pays will not also be  

  paid for by any other funding source or by County under any other contract, pursuant to  
  Section 15.3 of this Contract; and 

 
    (vii)  to assure Contractor's ability to meet all Contract requirements, including but  

  not limited to reporting requirements. 
 
 24.3   Contract Limitation.  This Contract sets out the agreements and obligations between County and 
Contractor only, and does not obligate County in any way to any of Contractor's Subcontractors, nor to any other third 
party.  This Contract creates no third party beneficiary rights as between County and any of Contractor's 
Subcontractors.  Contractor has the sole responsibility for payment for services rendered by Subcontractors with 
Subcontractor's sole recourse in the event of Contractor non-payment, insolvency or cessation of operations against 
Contractor or Contractor's bankruptcy estate.   County shall not under any circumstances be liable to Contractor's 
creditors or Subcontractors for any payments under this Contract.  Contractor agrees to include notice of the 
requirements in this section in every Subcontractor agreement.  
 
 24.4   HUB.  Contractor agrees to make a "good faith" effort to take all necessary and reasonable steps to 
insure HUBs the maximum opportunity to be Subcontractors under this Contract where suitable HUB Subcontractors 
exist.  Contractor must report all expenditures made to HUB Subcontractors to the County Purchasing Agent.  Failure 
by Contractor to make such good faith effort to employ HUBs as Subcontractors constitutes a breach of this Contract 
and may result in termination.  The Parties agree that HUB requirements and determinations will be made by the 
County Purchasing Agent, and that Contractor will contact the County Purchasing Agent with any questions regarding 
this provision.  
 
  24.5   Level of Service.  Contractor will ensure the provision of timely and quality professional services by 
individuals, agencies, or other Subcontractors which will meet or exceed applicable licensing and regulatory and 
professional standards applicable to the service provided and will provide County relevant documentation of such 
licenses upon request. 
 
 24.6   Payment to Subcontractor(s).  Contractor shall make its best effort to pay Subcontractor(s) for 
undisputed claims for services rendered within five (5) business days of receipt of payments and/or advances from 
County corresponding to those services under the terms of this Contract.  This Section 24.6 refers only to obligations 
under this Contract between County and Contractor, and does not operate to contradict or change the provisions in 
Section 24.3. 
 
25.0   MONITORING 
 
 25.1   County Monitoring.  County, either directly or through TCHHSVS, reserves the right to perform 
periodic on-site monitoring of Contractor's (and Subcontractors') compliance/performance with the terms of this 
Contract, and of the adequacy, effectiveness and timeliness of Contractor's performance under this Contract. Such 
monitoring visit may include review of any and all performance activities as well as any and all records or other 
documentation maintained in relation to Contractor's performance under this Contract.  Within thirty (30) days of each 
monitoring visit, County shall provide Contractor with a written report of the monitor's findings.  If the report notes 

PS120032ML 
 
35 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

36 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

deficiencies in Contractor's performances under the terms of this Contract, it shall include requirements and deadlines 
for the correction of those deficiencies by Contractor.  Contractor shall take action specified in the monitoring report 
prior to the deadlines specified.  Failure to make required changes in a timely manner may result in termination of the 
Contract by County.  County may provide technical assistance to Contractor and may request changes in Contractor's 
accounting, administrative and management procedures in order to correct any deficiencies noted. 
 
26.0   NOTICES 
 

 26.1 Requirements.  Except as otherwise specifically noted in this Contract, any notice required or 
permitted to be given under this Contract by one Party to the other shall be in writing and shall be given and deemed to 
have been given immediately if delivered in person to the address set forth in this section for the Party to whom the 
notice is given, or on the third day following mailing if placed in the United States Mail, postage prepaid, by registered 
or certified mail with return receipt requested, addressed to the Party at the address specified as follows: 
  
 26.2   County Address.  The address of County for all purposes under this Contract shall be: 
 
  Sherri Fleming, Executive Manager  (or her successor) 
  Travis County Department of Health, Human Services,  
  and Veterans' Services 
  100 N. IH 35, Suite 3700 
  Austin, Texas 78701 
 

With copies to (registered or certified mail with return receipt is not required): 
 
   
 
  Honorable David Escamilla (or his successor in office) 
  Travis County Attorney 
  P.O. Box 1748 
  Austin, Texas 78767 
  ATTENTION:  Civil Transactions 
and 
  Cyd Grimes, Purchasing Agent (or her successor) 
  Travis County Purchasing  
  P. O. Box 1748 
  Austin, Texas  78767 
 
 26.4   Contractor Address.  The address of the Contractor for all purposes under this Contract and for all 
notices hereunder shall be: 
 
             Skillpoint Alliance 
  201 E. 2nd Street, Suite B 
                           Austin, Texas  78701 
 

PS120032ML 
 
36 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

37 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 26.5   Change of Address. Each Party may change the address for notice to it by giving notice of the 
change in compliance with Section 26.0.  Any change in the address, including a change in the Contractor's Executive 
Director or Chairperson of the Board of Directors, shall be reported to the Executive Manager and the Purchasing 
Agent within twenty (20) days of the change. 
 
 26.6   Change of Name and/or Identity.  Contractor shall notify the Purchasing Agent and TCHHSVS 
Executive Manager immediately in writing, and in advance where possible, of any significant change affecting the 
Contractor, including change of Contractor's name or identity, ownership or control, payee identification number and 
other.  Failure to provide such information in a timely manner may delay payment under this Contract or result in other 
action by County regarding Contractor's status under this Contract.  Notice shall include copies of relevant paperwork 
evidencing any change, including copies of new W-9 Form or other forms required to be filed to effect such change.  
No change in the obligation of or to Contractor will be recognized until it is approved by the Purchasing Agent and/or 
Commissioners Court (according to applicable statute and County policy).  Failure to timely provide notice under this 
Section 26.6 may result in delay of payment.  Where any change involves an assignment by Contractor of rights or 
obligations under this Contract, such assignment shall be approved by County pursuant to Section 28.0. 
 
27.0 PROHIBITIONS 
 
 27.1   County Forfeiture of Contract.  If Contractor has done business with a Key Contracting Person as 
listed in Exhibit "A" to Attachment G during the 365 day period immediately prior to the date of execution of this 
Contract by Contractor or does business with any Key Contracting Person at any time after the date of execution of this 
Contract by Contractor (including business done during any Renewal Term of this Contract) and prior to full 
performance of this Contract, Contractor shall forfeit all County benefits of this Contract and County shall retain all 
performance by Contractor and recover all considerations, or the value of all consideration, paid to Contractor pursuant 
to this Contract.  Contractor shall notify County of any change in the information submitted with this Contract as to the 
Ethics Affidavit within twenty (20) days of such change throughout the Initial Term and/or any Renewal Term. 
 
 
 
 27.2   Conflict of Interest.   
 
  27.2.1 General Conflict.  Contractor shall ensure that no person who is an employee, agent, 

consultant, officer, or elected or appointed official of Contractor, or member of Contractor's governing body, 
who exercises or has exercised any functions or responsibilities with respect to activities performed pursuant 
to this Contract or who is in a position to participate in a decision-making process or gain inside information 
with regard to these activities has or may obtain a personal or financial interest or benefit from the activity, or 
have an interest in any contract, Subcontract or agreement with respect to it, or the proceeds under it, either for 
him or herself or those with whom he or she has family or business ties, during his or her tenure or for one 
year thereafter. 

 
  27.2.2 Questionnaire.  If required by Chapter 176, Texas Local Government Code, the 

Contractor shall complete and file a Conflict of Interest Questionnaire with the County Clerk, Elections 
Division, 5501 Airport Blvd., Austin, 78751. The Contractor shall update this Questionnaire by September 
of each year for the duration of this Contract as required by Chapter 176 of the Local Government Code. In 

PS120032ML 
 
37 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

38 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

addition, if any statement on this submitted Questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate, the 
Contractor shall submit an updated Questionnaire. The Contractor should note that the law requires the 
County to provide access to this Questionnaire on the official Travis County Internet website. 

 
 27.3   Solicitation.  Contractor warrants that no persons or selling agency was or has been retained to 
solicit this Contract upon an understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bona 
fide employees or bona fide established commercial selling agencies maintained by Contractor to secure business.  For 
breach or violation of this warranty, County shall have the right to terminate this Contract without liability, or, in its 
discretion to, as applicable, add to or deduct from the Contract price for consideration, or otherwise recover the full 
amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee. 
 
 27.4   Gratuities.  County may cancel this Contract if it is found that gratuities in the form of 
entertainment, gifts, or otherwise were offered or given by Contractor or any agent or representative to any County 
official or employee with a view toward securing favorable treatment with respect to the performing of this Contract.  
In the event this Contract is cancelled by County pursuant to this provision, the County shall be entitled, in addition to 
any other rights and remedies, to recover from Contractor a sum equal in amount to the cost incurred by Contractor in 
providing such gratuities.   Contractor's employees, officers and agents shall neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors 
or anything of monetary value from Subcontractors or potential Subcontractors.  Contractor shall establish safeguards 
to prohibit its employees from using their positions for a purpose that is or gives the appearance of being motivated by a 
desire for private gain for themselves or others, particularly those with whom they have family, business or other ties. 
 
 27.5   Nepotism.  Contractor agrees that it will comply with the guidelines set forth for public officials 
under TEX. GOVERNMENT CODE ANN, Ch. 573, by ensuring that no officer, employee or member of the 
governing body of Contractor shall vote or confirm the employment of any person related within the second degree by 
affinity or third degree by consanguinity to any member of the governing body or to any other officer or employee 
authorized to employ or supervise such person without written approval by County. 
 
28.0   ASSIGNABILITY 
 
 28.1   Written Approval.  County will not recognize assignment by Contractor of any of the rights or 
duties created by this Contract without the prior written approval of such assignment by County.  This provision 
includes assignment, sale, merger or any other action resulting in any change in the status of Contractor.  Submission of 
a request for approval under this Section 28.1, "Assignment," shall be made in writing to the Purchasing Agent and the 
Purchasing Agent and Department shall submit to Commissioners Court for approval according to County procedures.  
Failure to secure the approval required in this Section 28.1 may result in delay of payment or other sanctions. 
 
 28.2   Binding Agreement.  Subject to Section 28.1, this Contract shall be binding upon the successors, 
assigns, administrators, and legal representatives of the Parties to this Contract. 
 
29.0   LEGAL AUTHORITY 
 
 29.1   Contractor Authority.  Contractor guarantees that Contractor possesses the legal authority to enter 
into this Contract, receive funds authorized by this Contract, and to perform the services Contractor has obligated itself 
to perform under this Contract. 

PS120032ML 
 
38 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

39 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 29.2   Signors.  The person or persons signing this Contract on behalf of Contractor, or representing 
themselves as signing this Contract on behalf of Contractor, do hereby warrant and guarantee that he, she or they have 
been duly authorized by Contractor to sign this Contract on behalf of Contractor and to bind Contractor validly and 
legally to all terms, performances, and provisions in this Contract. 
 
 29.3   Suspension.  County shall have the right to suspend or terminate this Contract if there is a dispute as 
to the legal authority of either Contractor or the person signing this Contract to enter into this Contract or to render 
performances under it.  Contractor and any person signing this Contract are liable to County for any money disbursed 
by County for performance of the provisions of this Contract, if County has suspended or terminated this Contract for 
breach of Section 29.1 or Section 29.2. 
 
30.0   INTERPRETATIONAL GUIDELINES 
 
 30.1  Computation of Time.  When any period of time is stated in this Contract, the time shall be 
computed to exclude the first day and include the last day of the period.  If the last day of any period falls on a 
Saturday, Sunday or a day that County has declared a holiday for its employees, these days shall be omitted from the 
computation. 
 
 30.2   Numbers and Gender.  Words of any gender in this Contract shall be construed to include any other 
gender and words in either number shall be construed to include the other unless the context in the Contract clearly 
requires otherwise.  
 
 30.3   Headings.  The headings at the beginning of the various provisions of this Contract have been 
included only to make it easier to locate the subject matter covered by that section or subsection, and are not to be used 
in construing this Contract. 
 
 30.4 Use of Terms.  The Parties agree that the terms "shall" and "will" are used interchangeably in this 
Contract. 
 
31.0   OTHER PROVISIONS 
 
 31.1   Exemption From County Purchasing Act.  Pursuant to TEX. LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE 
ANN. § 262 et seq., Commissioners Court hereby orders that this Contract is exempt from the requirements of the 
County Purchasing Act because it is a Contract for the purchase of personal or professional services or meets other 
requirement(s) for exemption pursuant to applicable law. 
 
 31.2   Survival of Conditions.  Applicable provisions of this Contract, as determined by County, shall 
survive beyond termination or expiration of this Contract until full and complete compliance with all aspects of these 
provisions has been achieved where the Parties have expressly agreed that those provisions should survive any such 
termination or expiration or where those provisions remain to be performed or by their nature would be intended to be 
applicable following any such termination or expiration date. 
 
 31.3   Non-Waiver of Default. One or more acts of forbearance by any Party to enforce any provision of 

PS120032ML 
 
39 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

40 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

this Contract or any payment, act or omission by any Party shall not constitute or be construed as a waiver of any 
breach or default of any other Party which then exists or may subsequently exist. 
 
 31.4   Reservation of Rights.  If any Party to this Contract breaches this Contract, the other Party(ies) shall 
be entitled to any and all rights and remedies provided for by the Texas law and any applicable Federal laws or 
regulations.  All rights of County, under this Contract are specifically reserved and any payment, act or omission shall 
not impair or prejudice any remedy or right to County under it.  The exercise of or failure to exercise any right or 
remedy in this Contract of County or the failure to act in accordance with law based upon the other Party's breach of the 
terms, covenants, and conditions of this Contract, or the failure to demand the prompt performance of any obligation 
under this Contract shall not preclude the exercise of any other right or remedy under this Contract or under any law, 
nor shall any action taken or not taken in the exercise of any right or remedy be deemed a waiver of any other rights or 
remedies. 
 
 31.5   Law and Venue.  This Contract is governed by the laws of the State of Texas and all obligations 
under this Contract shall be performable in the City of Austin, Texas or in Travis County, Texas.  It is expressly 
understood that any lawsuit, litigation, or dispute arising out of or relating to this Contract will take place in Travis 
County and the City of Austin. 
 
 31.6   Severability.  If any portion of this Contract is ruled invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the 
remainder of it shall remain valid and binding.  If federal, state or local laws or other requirements are amended or 
judicially interpreted so as to render continued fulfillment of this Contract, on the part of either Party, substantially 
unreasonable or impossible, and if the Parties should be unable to agree upon any amendment that would therefore be 
needed to enable the substantial continuation of the services contemplated in this Contract, the Parties shall be 
discharged from any further obligations created under the terms of this Contract, except for the equitable settlement of 
the respective accrued interests or obligations incurred up to the date of termination. 
 
 31.7   Political Activity.  Contractor shall not use any of the performance under this Contract or any 
portion of the Contract Funds for any activity related to influencing the outcome of any election for public office, or 
any election, or the passage or defeat of any legislative measure.   This prohibition shall not be construed to prevent any 
official or employee of Contractor from furnishing to any member of its governing body upon request or to any other 
local or state official or employee, or to any citizen, information in the hands of the employee or official not considered 
under law to be confidential.  No Contract Funds can be used directly or indirectly to hire employees or in any other 
way fund or support candidates for the legislative, executive or judicial branches of the government of Contractor, the 
State of Texas or the government of the United States. 
 
 31.8   Sectarian Activity.   
 
  31.8.1   Religious Influence.  Within the limits and understandings set forth in Section 31.8.2, 

Contractor shall ensure, and require all Subcontractors to ensure, that provision of services under this Contract 
shall be carried on in a manner free from religious influence. Contractor shall not execute any agreement with 
any primarily religious organization to receive Contract Funds from Contractor unless the agreement includes 
provisions such as those set forth in this Section 28.8 or as provided by County, to effectuate this assurance.  
Contractor shall submit such agreements to County prior to the release of Contract Funds to such 
Subcontractor. 

PS120032ML 
 
40 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

41 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  31.8.2   Civil Rights Act, Section 702 Application. Contractor and County agree to be bound by the 

following as to Subcontractor(s) and Contractor respectively, and Contractor shall include these requirements 
in any Subcontract under this Contract:   

 
  (a)  A religious organization that enters into a contract with County (or Subcontractor who 
enters into a Subcontract with Contractor) does not by so contracting lose exemption provided under Section 
702 of the Civil Rights Act (42 U.S.C., Section 2000E-1(a)) regarding employment practices. A religious or 
charitable organization is eligible to be a Contractor on the same basis as any other private organization.  
Contractor retains its independence from State and Local governments, including the Contractor's control over 
the definition, development, practice, and expression of its religious beliefs.   Except as provided by federal 
law, County shall not interpret this Contract to require a religious organization to alter its form of internal 
governance or remove religious art, icons, scripture or other symbols.   
 
  (b)  Neither the County's selection of charitable or faith-based Contractor of social services 
nor the expenditure of funds under this Contract is an endorsement of the Contractor's charitable or religious 
character, practices or expressions.  The purpose of this Contract is the provision of social services.  No 
expenditures have as their objective the funding of sectarian worship, instruction or proselytization. 
  
  (c)  No provider of social services for the County may discriminate against any Client on 
the basis of religion, a religious belief, or any Client's refusal to actively participate in a religious practice.  If 
a Client believes that their rights have been violated, that complaint should be discussed with a County 
representative immediately. 
 
  (d)  Neither the County's selection of charitable or faith-based Contractor of social services 
nor the expenditure of funds under this Contract is an endorsement of the Contractor's charitable or religious 
character, practices or expressions. 
 

  31.8.3 Client Advisement.  Contractor shall reasonably apprise all Eligible Clients of the 
requirements in this Section 28.8, and shall ensure the provision of services pursuant to these provisions:  

 
  31.8.4 Additional Rights.  Section 104 of the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity 

Reconciliation Act of 1996 (8 U.S.C. Section 604a) sets forth certain additional rights and responsibilities for 
charitable and faith-based providers of social services, certain additional rights of assisted individuals, and 
certain additional responsibilities of County to providers and assisted individuals.  This Contract is subject to 
those additional rights and responsibilities. 

 
 31.9   Publicity. In any publicity prepared or distributed by or for Contractor, the funding through County 
shall be mentioned as having made the project possible.  Prior to publication or any disbursement of such publicity, 
Contractor must provide a copy of the final form of the publicity and secure the approval of the Executive Manager.  
When appropriate as determined by Executive Manager, Contractor shall publicize the services and activities of 
Contractor under this Contract.  
  
 31.10 Disputes.    

PS120032ML 
 
41 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

42 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  31.10.1  Contract Issues.  At any time that Contractor has an issue, problem, dispute, or other 

question ("issue") concerning this Contract, Contractor may first contact County through County 
Department/Executive Manager.  Contractor shall provide written notice of the issue to County 
Department/Executive Manager, with such written notice including a specific written description of the issue 
as well as the Contractor's desired resolution of the issue.  Contractor and County will make a good faith effort 
to resolve the issue to their mutual satisfaction in a timely manner.  It is understood and agreed that any 
resolution of the issue which necessitates a change in any term or condition of this Contract, including a 
waiver of any term or condition, shall be handled only as a written amendment pursuant to Section 3.0 of this 
Contract.  Any issue not resolved satisfactorily to both Parties under Section 31.10.1 may be addressed 
pursuant to Section 31.10.2 - 31.10.3 of this Contract.  

 
  31.10.2 Dispute Resolution - Administration by Purchasing Agent.   When the Contractor and/or 

County have been unable to successfully resolve any question or issue related to this Contract presented to the 
County under this Section 31.10, the Contractor or County shall then present the matter to the Purchasing 
Agent by providing the Purchasing Agent with written notice of the dispute.  Such notice shall contain a 
specific written description of the issues involved as well as the Contractor's requested resolution of the 
dispute and any other relevant information which Contractor desires to include.  As of the receipt of such 
notice by the Purchasing Agent, the Purchasing Agent will act as the County representative in any further 
issuances and in the administration of this Contract in relation to the described dispute.  Unless otherwise 
stated in this Contract, any document, notice or correspondence in relation to the disputes at this stage not 
issued by or to the Purchasing Agent is may be considered void.  If the Contractor does not agree with any 
document, notice or correspondence relating to the dispute issued by the Purchasing Agent or other authorized 
County person, the Contractor must submit a written notice to the Purchasing Agent with a copy to the 
Executive Manager within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the document, notice or correspondence, 
outlining the exact point of disagreement in detail.  The Purchasing Agent will issue a written notice of the 
final resolution of the dispute to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of the initial written notice of 
dispute by the Purchasing Agent.  If this final resolution does not resolve the dispute to the Contractor's 
satisfaction, Contractor may submit a written Notice of Appeal to the Commissioners Court through the 
Purchasing Agent.  The Purchasing Agent will provide a copy of such response to the Executive Manager. 
This Notice of Appeal must be submitted within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the unsatisfactory final 
resolution.  Contractor then has the right to be heard by Commissioners Court and the Purchasing Agent will 
coordinate placing the matter on the Commissioners Court agenda.  

 
  31.10.3 Mediation.  If the Contractor is not satisfied with the resolution of the dispute pursuant to 

Section 28.10, Contractor shall notify the Executive Manager, and, if mediation is acceptable to both Parties in 
resolving the dispute arising under this Contract, the Parties agree to use the Dispute Resolution Center of 
Austin, Texas, or another mediation group as chosen by County and approved by Contractor, as the provider 
of mediators for mediation as described in the TEX. CIV. PRAC. AND REM. CODE, Section 154.023.  
Unless both Parties are satisfied with the result of the mediation, the mediation will not constitute a final and 
binding resolution of the dispute.  All communications within the scope of the mediation shall remain 
confidential as described in TEX. CIV. PRAC. AND REM. CODE, Section 154.073, unless both Parties 
agree, in writing, to waive the confidentiality.   

 

PS120032ML 
 
42 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

43 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 31.11 Coordination.  Contractor shall coordinate and share information with other Travis County Health 
and Human Services programs and CAN in any way that is appropriate as determined by County to maximize the 
benefit to Eligible Clients in City of Austin/Travis County and to avoid duplication of services. 
 
 31.12 County Public Purpose.  By execution of this Contract, the Commissioners Court hereby finds that 
the issues, problems and needs to be addressed by the services to be provided under the terms of this Contract, and 
specifically set forth in Attachment A hereto, constitute a significant public concern impacting members of the indigent 
population which the County serves.   The Commissioners Court further finds that the provision of services to be 
provided by Contractor pursuant to this Contract will further the public purpose of addressing those health and human 
services issues, problems and needs identified in this Contract (including Attachment A) for qualified individuals. 
 
 31.13 Force Majeure.  Neither Party shall be financially liable to the other Party for delays or failures to 
perform in Contract performance caused by force majeure (i.e. those causes generally recognized under Texas law as 
constituting impossible conditions).  Such delays or failures to perform shall extend the period of performance until 
these exigencies have been removed.  The party seeking to avail itself of this clause shall notify the other Party within 
five (5) business days or otherwise waive the right as a defense, unless notification is impractical under the 
circumstances, in which case notification shall be done in as timely a manner as possible.  Contractor agrees that breach 
of this provision entitles County to reduce or stop payments or immediately terminate this Contract. 
 
 31.14 Other Agreements.  It is understood and agreed by all Parties that the terms of this Contract do not 
in any way limit or prohibit current or future agreements between any of the Parties for the provision of additional 
services as mutually agreed to in writing by those Parties. 
 
BY THE SIGNATURES AFFIXED BELOW, the above Contract is hereby accepted as all the terms and conditions of 
this Contract. 
 
CONTRACTOR:    
Skillpoint Alliance 
 
By:                                                                             
 Its Duly Authorized Agent 
Printed Name:                                                            
Title:                                                                           Date:______________ 
 
TRAVIS COUNTY 
 
By:                                                                                                                                          
 Samuel T. Biscoe 
 County Judge  Date:                     
 
County Approvals: 
As to Legal Form: 
___________________________ 
Assistant County Attorney  Date:_____ 

PS120032ML 
 
43 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

44 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Funds Certified By: 
___________________________ 
Susan Spataro, County Auditor Date:_____ 
Purchasing: 
___________________________ 
Cyd Grimes, Purchasing Agent Date:_____ 

PS120032ML 
 
44 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

45 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A 
Program Cover Page - Form # 2 

 
    

PS120032ML 
 
45 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 

 
Skillpoint Alliance Form #2- 2011-2012 (15Mo.) 

 

Form # 2:                                   PROGRAM COVER PAGE                             Date prepared:  09/30/2011 
for 2012 Social Service Contracts funded by Travis County 

 
 

1. Agency Name as provided in Articles of Incorporation:   
Skillpoint Alliance 
 

 

2. Tax ID Number: 74-2704188 
 

 

3. Program Name:  (15 Month) Youth College & Career and Adult Workforce (Gateway)  
 

 

4. a) Physical Street Address (Street, City, State, Zip):   
201 E. 2nd Street, Suite B 
Austin, TX  78701-4009 
4. b) Mailing Address (if different from above): 
 
 
4. c) Payee Address (if different from above): 
 
 

 

5.  Board President/Chair: 
Name: Mike Midgley, Vice President of Instruction 
Workforce Education & Business Development 
Austin Community College  
Address: 5930 Middle Fiskville Road 
Austin, Texas 78752 
Email: midgley@austincc.edu 
 
Phone: (512) 223-7579 

 

6. Agency Executive Director (name): Margo Dover 
Phone:  (512) 323-6773 x110 
Fax:  (512) 323-5884 
Email:  mdover@skillpointalliance.org 

 

7. Name of person authorized to sign contracts for Agency:  
Margo Dover 

Phone:  (512) 323-6773 x110 
Fax:  (512) 323-5884 
Email:  mdover@skillpointalliance.org 

 

8. Program Director (name): 
Tom Serafin, Deputy Director 

Phone:  (512) 323-6773 x154 
Fax:  (512) 323-5884 
Email:  tserafin@skillpointalliance.org 

 

9. Agency Financial Officer (name): 
Bharat Ajuha, Director, Finance 

Phone:  (512) 323-6773, x121 
Fax:  (512) 323-5884 
Email:  bajuha@skillpointalliance.org 
 

 

10. Contact person for PROGRAM issues (name): 
Cat Newlands, Director-Adult Workforce 

Phone:  (512) 323-6773 x106 
Fax:  (512) 323-5884 
Email:  cnewlands@skillpointalliance.org 

 

11. Contact person for FINANCIAL issues (name):  
Bharat Ajuha, Director, Finance 

Phone:  (512) 323-6773, x121 
Fax:  (512) 323-5884 
Email:  bajuha@skillpointalliance.org 

 

12. Primary contact for Quarterly Program Performance 
Report issues (name):  
Cat Newlands, Director-Adult Workforce 

Phone:  (512) 323-6773 x106 
Fax:  (512) 323-5884 
Email:  cnewlands@skillpointalliance.org 

 

13. Person responsible for submitting Quarterly Program 
Performance Reports (name): 
Cat Newlands, Director-Adult Workforce 

Phone:  (512) 323-6773 x106 
Fax:  (512) 323-5884 
Email:  cnewlands@skillpointalliance.org 

14. Program funding amounts by source: 15.  Primary contact person for this contract packet (name): 
Tom Serafin 
Position Title:  Deputy Director 
  
Phone:  (512) 323-6773, x154 
Fax:  (512) 323-5884 
Email:  tserafin@skillpointalliance.org 
 

Travis County   
Soc Serv Contract-One Time 
All OTHER Sources 
 
TOTAL Program Funding 

 
 $    150,000 
 $ 1,876,587 
 
 $ 2,026,587 

 

PS120032ML 
 
46 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

46 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment B 
Program Work Statement - Form # 3 

    

PS120032ML 
 
47 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Skillpoint Alliance Form #3 Work Statement 2011-2012 (15 Mo).  pg. 1 of 5 

Form # 3:  PROGRAM WORK STATEMENT 
10/1/2011 to 12/31/2012 (15-Month) Social Service Contract funded by Travis County 

 
Date prepared:  09/30/2011 

 
Agency:  Skillpoint Alliance Program: Adult Workforce (Gateway) 
 
1. Program goals and objectives: 
Skillpoint Alliance is a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization that builds partnerships between industry, education, 
and the community that lead to life success for Central Texans while meeting employers’ need for a qualified 
workforce. Building long-lasting partnerships with area businesses, school districts, colleges and universities, 
city and county governments and community organizations, Skillpoint Alliance has a 17-year track record of 
developing and deploying innovative programs. Skillpoint Alliance’s Adult Workforce-Gateway programs 
provide underserved and underrepresented communities with a pathway to a self-sustained future by helping 
youth and adults meet workforce needs, establish a foundation for further education and acquire life skills 
that increase their confidence to excel. Skillpoint’s Gateway programs focus on the transitioning workforce 
providing critical entry-level skills to youth and adults with significant barriers to employment.  The 
Gateway program is in the midst of significant changes; expanding the training options available to 
applicants.  By the end of 2012 Gateway will offer at least eight training disciplines and program annual 
output will quadruple.  This one-time 15-month investment in Gateway by Travis County will assist in the 
program expansion and growth; resulting in more clients being served. 

Adult Workforce-Gateway Goals and Objectives 
Skillpoint Alliance exists to strengthen the community in which we live. Gateway reaches Central Texas 
residents who face significant barriers to success, providing these individuals with tools and life skills 
that will strengthen themselves, their families, and our entire community.  Gateway is a proven model 
that: 
 Provides rapid, in-depth career training; 
 Awards an industry-recognized certification to graduates upon course completion  
 Consistently achieves high completion rates and high employment rates upon course completion. 
 Provides professional development and employment services; and 
 Increases graduates’ self-esteem and self-worth. 

 
2. Program clients served: 

Skillpoint’s Gateway programs target unemployed and underemployed individuals who are: 
 At or below 200% of Federal poverty guidelines 
 Former offenders 
 Veterans 
 Homeless 
 Currently incarcerated youth 

 
3. Program services and delivery: 

Adult Workforce-Gateway Services 

Skillpoint’s Gateway training model will offer eight disciplines in the 15 month period beginning 
October 1, 2011, course offerings will include Construction Core, Electrical, Plumbing, Heating 
Ventilating & Air Conditioning (HVAC), Certified Nurse Aide, Certified Medication Aide, Office 
Administration and Bookkeeping.  The Gateway model ranges from three-to-eight weeks and is designed 
to train individuals with industry-relevant and job readiness skills. This model is intended to rapidly train 
participants for employment in an industries experiencing high demand. 

Each Gateway offering has a specialized curriculum taught through Austin Community College (ACC), 
our primary training partner.  ACC provides industry-related instruction for each Gateway program using 
a rapid training, three-to-eight week model, depending on the course. Based on the industry-specific 

PS120032ML 
 
48 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Skillpoint Alliance Form #3 Work Statement 2011-2012 (15 Mo).  pg. 2 of 5 

program, curriculum is taught through both a lecture-style and hands-on, project-based method. At 
Skillpoint Alliance, we understand that 77% of jobs in the next decade will require technology-based 
skills. 1Ingrained into Gateway curricula are technology skills that are necessary to succeed in the 
respective industry. 

The Gateway model of short-term training has produced high graduation rates for program participants.  
Average class size ranges from 12-19 participants in Construction, Health Care, and Electrical programs.  
It is anticipated that similar numbers will be achieved for additional Gateway courses.  
 
Facilities for Gateway programming include two Austin Community College campuses and the latest 
addition to Skillpoint’s resources, a Mobile Learning Center (MLC); a 42’ long wheelchair accessible 
mobile classroom with 21 computer workstations. With generous support from The Texas Pioneer 
Foundation, the MLC will enable Skillpoint to expand services to reach more participants in underserved 
areas and will provide training space for Gateway. 

Key Gateway program components include: 
 Providing program participants with skills necessary to obtain employment; 
 Curricula directly linked to industry standards and resulting in industry-recognized credentials; 
 An instructor to client ratio that provides participants with individualized attention; 
 Knowledge of what jobs are available and connecting to participants to these jobs; and 
 Introducing or enhancing participants' connection to technology and computer skills relevant to the 
needs of employers 
 
All Gateway programming incorporates the following: 
 Knowledge, skills, and habits of college success;  
 English and math skills; 
 Computer and professional skills;  
 First aid and CPR/AED;  
 Job-specific content knowledge and skills; and 
 21st century skills and work readiness training to impart the values, skills, and habits demanded by 
employers  

 

4. Service coordination and collaboration strategies: 

Coordination 

Gateway Programs: 

Partnerships with Workforce Solutions-Capital Area and with Austin Community College for recruiting 
and program delivery services are essential to program success.  In addition, many state agencies and 
community organizations are critical to outreach efforts.  To coordinate services, Skillpoint works with 
Workforce Solutions-Capital Area special projects such as WIA, Rapid Employment Model (REM), 
Project RIO, and with  TDCJ’s and TYC’s local probation/parole offices and transitional housing facility 
to coordinate training for clients within these programs who need skills in order to obtain viable jobs.  In 
addition, Skillpoint’s collaborative partners include LifeWorks, the Austin Area Urban League, 
American Youth Work’s Casa Verde Program, Goodwill Industries, Salvation Army Shelter, and the 
Austin Resource Center for the Homeless (ARCH), and Austin Transition Center.  Wherever clients 
already have case managers, Skillpoint’s Program Coordinator works with the case manager to 
coordinate the service plan with the other organization’s individual employment plan. 

Collaboration 

Gateway 
In Gateway, partnerships center on key activities in recruiting, training, and helping place participants in 
jobs.  For recruiting, Skillpoint partners with key agencies such as TYC and TDCJ Probation Divisions, 

                                                           
 

PS120032ML 
 
49 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Skillpoint Alliance Form #3 Work Statement 2011-2012 (15 Mo).  pg. 3 of 5 

Travis County Community Justice Center, Travis County Adult and Juvenile Probation, and Workforce 
Solutions-Capital Area to identify appropriate candidates for Gateway training.  In addition, Skillpoint 
looks to community-based organizations to provide both a pool of potential participants and assist in case 
management.  Such organizations include:  the ARCH, SafePlace, Caritas, Austin Area Urban League, 
Austin Transitional Center, Salvation Army, and LifeWorks.  Skillpoint’s training component is 
conducted through a long-standing partnership with ACC; job search and placement services are assisted 
by the Gateway Advisory Council, industry associations, industry specific staffing organizations. 

OUTPUT Performance Measures  

 
OUTPUT # 1 

Travis 
County 
Annual 
Goal 

All Other 
Funding Sources 

Annual Goal 

TOTAL 
(Travis County 

+ All Other) 
Annual Goal 

Number of unduplicated clients enrolled in 
job training (Gateway) 

32 406 438 
 

 

 
OUTPUT # 2  

Travis 
County 
Annual 
Goal 

All Other 
Funding Sources 

Annual Goal 

TOTAL 
(Travis County 

+ All Other) 
Annual Goal 

Number of clients who completed job 
training 

26 324 350 

 

 
OUTPUT # 3  

Travis 
County 
Annual 
Goal 

All Other 
Funding Sources 

Annual Goal 

TOTAL 
(Travis County 

+ All Other) 
Annual Goal 

Number of clients who obtained employment 
 

20 245 265 

 

 
OUTPUT # 4  

Travis 
County 
Annual 
Goal 

All Other 
Funding Sources 

Annual Goal 

TOTAL 
(Travis County 

+ All Other) 
Annual Goal 

Number of clients who obtained employment 
at a livable wage ($9.00/hr or more) 

15 186 201 

 
 
OUTPUT # 75 

Travis 
County 
Annual 
Goal 

All Other 
Funding Sources 

Annual Goal 

TOTAL 
(Travis County 

+ All Other) 
Annual Goal 

Number of clients who obtained and retained 
employment for 6 months 

15 182 197 

PS120032ML 
 
50 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Skillpoint Alliance Form #3 Work Statement 2011-2012 (15 Mo).  pg. 4 of 5 

 
5. OUTCOME Performance Measures  

 
Total Program Performance – OUTCOME # 1 

Total Program 
Annual Goal 

If not reported 
every Quarter, in 
which Quarter(s)? 

Number of clients enrolled in job training who successfully completed training 
(numerator) 

350  
 

Total number of clients enrolled in job training (denominator) 
 

438 

Percentage of clients enrolled in job training who successfully completed 
training (outcome rate) 

80% 

 
 
Total Program Performance – OUTCOME # 2 

Total Program 
Annual Goal 

If not reported 
every Quarter, in 
which Quarter(s)? 

Number of clients who obtained employment after successfully completing 
training (numerator) 

265  
 

Number of clients who successfully completed training (denominator) 
 

350 

Percentage of clients actively seeking employment who obtained employment 
(outcome rate) 

76% 

 
 
Total Program Performance – OUTCOME # 3 

Total Program 
Annual Goal 

If not reported 
every Quarter, in 
which Quarter(s)? 

Number of clients who obtained employment at a living wage ($9.00/hour or 
more) (numerator) 

201  
 

Total number of clients who obtained employment (denominator) 
 

265 

Percentage of clients who obtained employment at a living wage ($9.00/hour 
or more) (outcome rate) 

76% 

 
 
Total Program Performance – OUTCOME # 4 

Total Program 
Annual Goal 

If not reported 
every Quarter, in 
which Quarter(s)? 

Number of clients who obtained employment two (2) quarters prior and 
retained employment for 6 months (numerator) 

197  
 

Total number of clients who obtained employment two quarters prior 
(denominator) 

265 

Percentage of clients who obtained employment two (2) quarters prior and 
retained employment for 6 months (outcome rate) 

74% 

 
6. Community planning activities: 

Skillpoint Alliance plays a critical role in the community in helping to improve both public education and 
workforce development systems.  Staff currently participates on the following initiatives or community 
projects: 

 Capital Area Texas Alliance for Minorities in Engineering 
 Community Action Network –Assessment and Planning Team 
 Re-entry Roundtable initiatives 
 Montopolis Community and Business Leaders forum 
 Booker T. Washington Collaborative Outreach Partners 
 Ready by 21 Coalition 
 E3 Alliance 
 Texas Department of Criminal Justice Community Advisory Network 

PS120032ML 
 
51 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Skillpoint Alliance Form #3 Work Statement 2011-2012 (15 Mo).  pg. 5 of 5 

 State P-16 Council – Subcommittee on Educator Quality and Effective Preservice Teacher 
Preparation 

 Texas Education Agency’s Mathematics for English Language Learners Program 
 T-STEM (Texas Science Technology Engineering Mathematics) Center (2013) 
 Manor T-STEM Academy (“High Tech High”) Planning Group 
 Central Texas Engineers Week 
 Capitol BEST Robotics 
 Semiconductor Equipment Manufacturers International (SEMI) Steering Committee 
 Greater Austin Chamber of Commerce Task Force on Matriculation 
 Austin Area Urban League – High School Redesign Project 
 African American Men & Boys Conference 

 
7. Program Evaluation Plan 
 Performance evaluation: 

Skillpoint’s management works with program staff to capture data on programs (e.g., through client surveys) 
and to develop information for program improvement.  Industry and business councils provide feedback on a 
regular basis; Skillpoint is able to gauge the effectiveness of its efforts by the retention level and involvement 
of business partners.  In addition, Skillpoint develops an annual work plan detailing specific objectives per 
major goal.  Management tracks and reports progress on performance objectives quarterly.  At those times 
and during staff performance reviews, staff assesses both the quality of services delivered to date and the 
efficacy of those program targets.  In addition, Skillpoint staff members who direct programs provide 
Program Performance Reports, which are tied to performance on key objectives in the annual plan, to the 
Skillpoint Board of Directors on a bimonthly basis.  Apart from the Board as a whole, the Strategic Planning 
and Evaluation Committee of the Board meet on an as-needed basis (at least several times a year) to assess 
the congruence of organizational measurement with operations.  Based on these multiple assessments, 
Skillpoint leadership decides to modify or expand targets and services to best fit resources to the intended 
service population. 

 Quality improvement: 

Skillpoint strives to improve the quality of our programs through review of our performance evaluation 
measures, through staff feedback concerning the efficacy of program delivery, and through constant 
interaction with strategic partners.  In addition, as funding permits, Skillpoint retains external evaluators to 
assess specific program services and recommend changes to improve and expand our efforts. 
 

PS120032ML 
 
52 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

47 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment C 
Special Conditions (if applicable) 

    
 

PS120032ML 
 
53 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

48 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment D 
Program Budget  - Form # 4 

    

PS120032ML 
 
54 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Date prepared: 10/18/2011

Agency: SKILLPOINT ALLIANCE Program : Youth College & Career/Adult Workforce

PERSONNEL
 Requested 

COUNTY Amount 

 Amount Funded 
by ALL OTHER 

Sources 

  * TOTAL  Budget 
(ALL funding 

sources) 

Administrative Salaries - Regular Time 0

Direct Service Salaries - Regular Time 90,000 755,341 845,341

Administrative Salaries Overtime 0

Direct Service Salaries - Overtime 0

Benefits 30,000 259,936 289,936

A.  SUBTOTALS: PERSONNEL 120,000 1,015,277 1,135,277

General Operating Expenses 0 365,294 365,294

Insurance/Bonding 9,185 9,185

Audit Expenses (provide details for this line item in the 
Subcontracted Expenses form)

16,246 16,246

Consultants/Contractual (provide details for this line item in 
the Subcontracted Expenses form)

107,560 107,560

Staff Travel - within Travis County 7,000 7,000

Conferences/Seminars/Training - within Travis County 6,750 6,750

 ** Staff Travel - out of County 6,802 6,802

** Conferences/Seminars - out of County 6,073 6,073

B.  SUBTOTALS: OPERATING EXPENSES 0 524,910 524,910

Food/Beverage for Clients  (NOTE: Alcoholic beverage 
expenditures are not eligible or allowable)

0 13,600 13,600

Financial Assistance for Clients (e.g. rent, mortgage, utilities) 11,919 11,919

Tuition & Fees (Contracted Service-details for this line item 
also provided  in the Subcontracted Expenses form)

30,000 230,000 260,000

Other (Support services, supplies,event rentals) 80,881 80,881

C.  SUBTOTALS: DIRECT ASSISTANCE 30,000 336,400 366,400

 ** (specify equipment) 0 0 0

D.  SUBTOTALS: EQUIPMENT/CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 0 0

GRAND TOTAL (A + B + C + D) 150,000 1,876,587 2,026,587

PERCENT SHARE of Total for Funding Sources: 7.4% 92.6% 100.0%

DIRECT ASSISTANCE

EQUIPMENT/CAPITAL OUTLAY

FORM #4:  PROGRAM BUDGET
for 2012 Social Service Contracts funded by Travis County

Instructions: Provide whole dollar amounts for each applicable line item.  IMPORTANT: DO NOT INCLUDE ANY PROGRAM INCOME.

 ON THIS PAGE.    Note that the line items with asterisks **  will require prior approval - Refer to your Contract Language.

    IMPORTANT:  All $ amounts must be whole dollars only (no cents)

OPERATING EXPENSES

Copy of Copy of 4-Skillpoint Alliance 2011-2012Program Budget(15Mo)Re.xls

PS120032ML 
 
55 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

49 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment E 
Program Budget Narrative - Form # 5 

    
 

PS120032ML 
 
56 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



   

 Skillpoint Alliance  Form #5- 2011-2012 (15 Mo.) 

    FORM # 5:      Program Budget NARRATIVE                                 Date prepared: 09/30/2011 
                                for 2012 Social Service Contracts funded by Travis County 
 

Agency: Skillpoint Alliance        Program: (15 Month)  Adult Workforce 
 

Instructions:  Add details below (not to exceed 20 words per line item) to justify proposed expenses from your Program Budget 
form.  DO NOT INCLUDE ANY DOLLAR AMOUNTS OR PERCENTAGES ON THIS PAGE.  Delete the examples below 
and replace them with your narrative.  

PERSONNEL  NARRATIVE  

Salaries - Regular time  
Includes direct and indirect allocated salaries for staff associated 
with programs funded by this program 

Salaries – Overtime    

Benefits 

Includes usual payroll taxes – FICA, unemployment insurance, 
workman comp., 401(K), Medical, Dental & Vision insurance plans. 
Rate is more than 25% because of higher costs of medical 
insurance plan  

OPERATING EXPENSES   

General Operating Expenses  

Includes direct and indirect costs related to office facilities, 
communication, office & facility rentals, office supplies, program 
supplies and small equipment. 

Insurance/Bonding 
Includes general commercial liability, employee crime policy, D&O 
liability insurance. 

Audit Expenses   Regular annual financial audit 
 
Consultants/Contractual Details provided on Subcontracted  Expenses form #8 

Staff Travel  Routine travel associated with responsibilities 

Conferences/Seminars/Training Training and professional development for program staff 

** Staff Travel  - out of County 

Mileage allowance to staff for travel to school districts outside of 
Travis County 
 

** Conferences/Seminars/Training–out of County

Staff mileage allowance and reimbursed travel expenses to attend 
workforce conferences and seminars outside of Austin and Travis 
County 

DIRECT ASSISTANCE    
Food/Beverage for Clients  (NOTE: Alcoholic 
beverage expenditures are not eligible or 
allowable) 

 Food and beverage for clients – orientations, workshops and 
graduation ceremonies 

Financial Assistance for Clients (e.g. rent, 
mortgage, utilities) 

Transportation assistance (bus passes) for clients, Assistance with 
purchasing tools required by employers, Certification Licenses 

Other Tuition and Support Services 

 Includes tuition & fees to ACC for Gateway programs, occasional 
support on case by case basis for support services to assist 
Gateway clients in completing the intensive 5-8 weeks training 
programs. 

EQUIPMENT/CAPITAL OUTLAY   

** (Specify)  Please refer to contract for capital outlay/equipment 
guidelines. 

 

** These line items require prior approval – Refer to your Contract Language. 

PS120032ML 
 
57 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

50 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment F 
Total Program Staff Positions and Time - Form # 6 

 `   
 

PS120032ML 
 
58 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 Skillpoint Alliance Form #6-2011-2012 (15 Mo.) 

 
   Form # 6:    Total Program STAFF POSITIONS & TIME  
                              for 2012 Social Service Contracts funded by Travis County  
 
                                   Date prepared:  09/30/ 2011  
    
     
Agency:  Skillpoint Alliance_____________________________________________   
   
Program: (15 Month) Adult Workforce-Gateway___________________________   
     
TOTAL PROGRAM STAFF: INDIVIDUAL POSITIONS & TIME ASSIGNED 
 
AGENCY:  List below all program staff individually by their position titles only (do not include their 
names), indicate whether each is direct service staff or administrative staff and indicate the percentage of 
their total time which is assigned to this specific program.  IMPORTANT: If two or more staff 
members with the same position title work on this program, be sure to list each position separately, 
with their individual percentages of total time for this program. 
     
 
List ALL Program Positions Individually by Titles 

Percent of Time 
for this Program 

Executive Director 68% 
Deputy Director 85% 
Director of Finance 84% 
Director of Marketing 65% 
Accounting Assistant 60% 
Grant Coordinator 45% 
Director of Adult Workforce 100% 
Program Manager 100% 
Workforce Development Director 75% 
Program Coordinator 100% 
Director of Education Services 100% 
Director TEEC 100% 
Workforce Coordinator 70% 
STEM Program Coordinator 100% 
Adult workforce  Program Assistant 50% 
Adult Workforce Program Assistant 100% 
DMC Coordinator 100% 
Gateway Program Coordinator 100% 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

PS120032ML 
 
59 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

51 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment G 
Total Program Funding Summary - Form # 7 

    
 
 
 

PS120032ML 
 
60 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



    FORM # 7:       PROGRAM FUNDING SUMMARY Date prepared: 9/30/2011

                                     fofor 2012 Social Service Contracts funded by Travis County

Agency Name: Skillpoint Alliance Program Name: 

Funding Sources Funding Period

Travis County 10/1/2011 -12/31-2012

Travis County 10/1/2011 -12/31-2012

Travis County 10/1/2011 -12/31-2012

City of Austin 10/1/2011 -12/31-2012

City of Austin 1/1/2012 -12/31-2012

City of Austin

Federal 10/1/2011 -12/31-2012

Federal 10/1/2011 -12/31-2012

Federal 9/1/2011 -8/31-2012

Federal
Texas Engineering Experiment Station, Univ 
of Texas, San Antonio TX

1/1/2012 -12/31-2012

State 10/1/2011 -12/31-2012

State 10/1/2011 -12/31-2012

1/1/2012 -12/31-2012

Greater Austin Chamber of 
Commerce

YCC 10/1/2011 -12/31-2012

TEEC 1/1/2012 -12/31-2012

YCC Expo
YCC Expo Sponsorships and Booth 
Registration Fees

1/1/2012 -12/31-2012

Contributions 10/1/2011 -12/31-2012

Dell Foundation Digital Media Council 10/1/2011 -12/31-2012

Program Income/ Fees 10/1/2011 -12/31-2012

Texas Pioneer 
Foundation

10/1/2011 -12/31-2012

STEM Council Members 10/1/2011 -12/31-2012

Skillpoint Alliance 10/1/2011 -12/31-2012

State 10/1/2011-12/31/2011

Other (Specify)

TOTAL PROGRAM FUNDING:  

The University of Texas at Austin $4,159

Gateway High School

$30,000

One-Time 15 Month Investment

$11,240

$200,000

$50,000

$3,500

$17,500

$500,000

$19,250

$50,000

Social Service Contract (City of Austin prgm. budget)

Texas State University

Texas Workforce Commission

T STEM

Edvance

(15 Month) YCC/Adult Workforce-Gateway

Grant/Contract Name

Social Service Contract (Travis County prgm. budget)

REM/Workforce Solutions

Funding Amount

$306,206

$75,000

$6,463

FLL/Robotics Grants

WERC-Workforce Solutions

WIA/Workforce Solutions

$150,000

$114,226

$70,000

Indivdual and Corporate

Sponsorship and Booth Fees, registration fee for 
Workshops

DVISD-Gateway High School

STEM COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP/SPONSORSHIPS

Foundations and other sources

$2,026,587

$27,775

$122,350

$6,462

$141,000

$115,206

$6,250

Copy of Copy of 7-Skillpoint Allaince2011-12(15mo)- Program Funding S.xls

PS120032ML 
 
61 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

52 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment H 
Subcontracted Expense Form - Form # 8 

    
 

PS120032ML 
 
62 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



   

 Travis County Form #8 updated April 2011   

Form #8: SUBCONTRACTED EXPENSES FORM 
for 2012 Social Service Contracts funded by Travis  County 

 
 Date prepared: 10/19/2011 

 

Agency: Skillpoint Alliance Program:  Youth College & Career/Adult Workforce-Gateway 
 

Please provide TOTAL PROGRAM information for all of this program’s subcontractors whose professional services will be 
charged to this program.  Include all  subcontracts regardless of funding source.  
 

SUBCONTRACT #1 
 

Name of Subcontractor 
Lockart, Atchley, and Associates 

Term of Subcontract 
October 1, 2011 to December 31, 2012 

Services to be Subcontracted 
Annual financial audit 

Number of Clients to be Served (if applicable) NA 

Dollar Amounts by Funding Source: 

TRAVIS COUNTY amount 
$00.00 

ALL OTHER Sources amount TOTAL 

$ 16,246 $ 16,246 

 

SUBCONTRACT #2 
 

Name of Subcontractor Varies: Skillpoint Alliance’s YCC programs typically pay 
stipends to teachers & students in the execution of certain 
events and activities

Term of Subcontract 
Term is usually per occurrence 

Services to be Subcontracted 
Assisting with program execution & delivery 

Number of Clients to be Served (if applicable) Expected to serve approximately 100 students and 50 
teachers

Dollar Amounts by Funding Source: 

TRAVIS COUNTY amount 
$00.00 

ALL OTHER Sources amount TOTAL 

$ 107,560 $ 107,560 

 

Line Item Budget for Subcontract #2 Funds 

  Travis County 
Amount 

ALL OTHER 
Sources Amount 

TOTAL 
 

Consultants (Grant Writers, Software & IT, Curriculum Development)  $00 $ 12,500 $ 12,500

Contract Service Labor (Educator Institute Instructors)  $00 $ 20,000 $ 20,000

Stipends‐Teachers  $00 $ 3,750 $ 3,750

Stipends‐Students  $00 $ 67,250 $ 67,250

Stipends‐Interns  $00 $ 4,060 $ 4,060

TOTALS: Subcontract #2  $00 $ 107,560 $ 107,560

PS120032ML 
 
63 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



   

 Travis County Form #8 updated April 2011   

 

SUBCONTRACT #3 
 

Name of Subcontractor 
Austin Community College 

Term of Subcontract 
October 1, 2011 to December 31, 2012 

Services to be Subcontracted 
Education & Training 

Number of Clients to be Served (if applicable) 
438 Gateway clients 

Dollar Amounts by Funding Source: 

TRAVIS COUNTY amount 
$30,000 

ALL OTHER Sources amount TOTAL 

$ 230,000 $ 260,000 

 
 
 
 
 

PS120032ML 
 
64 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

53 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment I 
Performance Report Definition Tool - Form # 9 

   

PS120032ML 
 
65 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Type Performance Measure Calculation Method
What is the Data Source for 

this Measure?
Notes

Who Produces 
this Measure

Output #1 - 
Gateway

Number of unduplicated clients enrolled in 
job training (Gateway)

CTK Database report; classes are identified 
by year and number.  Note:  All database 
queries are performed by the Program 
Coordinator; 

Gateway program application 
and ACC Continuing 
Education Registration Form 
COED.002.0810, client 
information entered into 
custom database.

Gateway clients are considered to be 
enrolled in job training when they are 
enrolled in the ACC course that delivers 
the curricular content for the program.

Tom Serafin, 
Deputy Director 
based on 
information 
provided by the 
Gateway program 
staff

Output #2 - 
Gateway

Number of clients who completed job 
training

CTK Database report detailing clients who 
satisfactorily completed the course.

Client designated as a 
program graduate after 
satisfactory completion of 
coursework, information 
entered into custom database 

Gateway clients are considered to have 
completed the job training successfully if, 
in the collective judgment of Program 
Coordinator and ACC instructors, they 
have earned passing grades.  Clients 
who have successfully completed the 
program receive Continuing Education 
credit hours from ACC, 10-Hour OSHA 
Safety Certification and 1st Aid, 
CPR/AED Certification.

Same as above

Output #3- 
Gateway

Number of clients who obtained 
employment

CTK Database report - on employment, 
selecting for individuals by class for the 
period of interest

Data sources are:  (1) Client 
self-report of employment; (2) 
Query via Social Security 
Number through TWIST, 
which connects to the TWC 
system; (3) Employer 
contacts (e.g., telephone calls 
to employers by the Program 
Coordinator)  

Data entered into CTK database by the 
Program Coordinator.

Same as above

Output #4-
Gateway

Number of clients who obtained 
employment at a livable wage ($9.00/hr or 
more)

CTK Database report - details of client 
employment status and hourly wage

Same as Output #5 See note to Output #5. Same as above

Output #5-
Gateway

Number of clients who obtained and 
retained employment for 6 months

CTK Database report - details of client 
employment status and hourly wage six 
months following start of employment. 

Same as Output #5 See note to Output #5.  The Program 
Coordinator records updates in the CTK 
Gateway database on an ongoing basis.  
Several weeks prior to quarterly 
reporting, the Program Coordinator 
updates the employment status of the 
clients served 6 months previously. 

Same as above

Outcome #1a 
(numerator)

Number of clients enrolled in job training 
who successfully completed training

Equals count generated from Output #2 Custom database (Name: 
Gateway 'Construction)

Tom Serafin, 
Deputy Director 
based on 
information 
provided by the 
Gateway program 
staff

Outcome #1b 
(denominator)

Total number of clients enrolled in job 
training

Equals count generated from Output #1 Custom database (Name: 
Gateway 'Construction)

Same as 
numerator

Date Report was Generated: 09/30/2011

Form #9:  Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service Department
2011-2012 Performance Report Definition Tool (15-Month Contract)

Skillpoint Alliance - Adult Workforce (Gateway)

OUTPUT MEASURES:

OUTCOME MEASURES: 

To assist you in completing this form, the red triangles located in the upper right-hand side of some cells provide additional instructions related to the information requested.

Copy of 9-Skillpoint Alliance 15-Month 2011-12 PM_Definition_Tool.xls

P
S

12
00

32
M

L 
 66

 o
f 7

7

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Outcome Rate 
#1c

Percentage of clients enrolled in job 
training who successfully completed 
training

Divide Outcome #1a by Outcome #1b; then 
multiply by 100.

Same as 
numerator

Outcome #2a 
(numerator)

Number of clients who obtained 
employment after successfully completing 
training

Equals count generated from Output #3 Custom database (Name: 
Gateway 'Construction)

Tom Serafin, 
Deputy Director 
based on 
information 
provided by the 
Gateway program 
staff

Outcome #2b 
(denominator)

Number of clients who successfully 
completed training

Equals count generated from Output #2 Custom database (Name: 
Gateway 'Construction)

Same as 
numerator

Outcome Rate 
#2c

Percentage of clients actively seeking 
employment who obtained employment

Divide Outcome #2a by Outcome #2b; then 
multiply by 100.

Same as 
numerator

Outcome #3a 
(numerator)

Number of clients who obtained 
employment at a living wage ($9.00/hour 
or more)

Equals count generated from Output #4 Custom CTK Gateway 
database 

Tom Serafin, 
Deputy Director 
based on 
information 
provided by the 
Gateway program 
staff

Outcome #3b 
(denominator)

Total number of clients who obtained 
employment

Equals count generated from Output #3 Custom CTK Gateway 
database 

Same as 
numerator

Outcome Rate 
#3c

Percentage of clients who obtained 
employment at a living wage ($9.00/hour 
or more)

Divide Outcome #3a by Outcome #3b; then 
multiply by 100.

Same as 
numerator

Outcome #4a 
(numerator)

Number of clients who obtained 
employment two (2) quarters prior and 
retained employment for 6 months

Equals count generated from Output #5 Custom CTK Gateway 
database 

This performance indicator will, by 
definition, always reflect outcomes for 
clients served prior to the current quarter.  
For example, for the 2nd quarter of the 
calendar year (April - June), the reported 
measure is based on the individuals who 

received training 6 months before the 2nd 

quarter (counting back from the beginning 

of the quarter), i.e., during the 3rd quarter 
of the previous year (July - September) 
and who were reported during that 
quarter as having obtained employment.

Tom Serafin, 
Deputy Director 
based on 
information 
provided by the 
Gateway program 
staff

Outcome #4b 
(denominator)

Total number of clients who obtained 
employment two quarters prior

Equals count generated from Output #3 
from two quarters prior

Custom CTK Gateway 
database 

Same as 
numerator

Outcome Rate 
#4c

Percentage of clients who obtained 
employment two (2) quarters prior and 
retained employment for 6 months

Divide Outcome #4a by Outcome #4b; then 
multiply by 100.

Same as 
numerator

Gender, Race, 
and Ethnicity

Number of unduplicated clients by their 
gender, race, and ethnicity

Gateway:  Database query - on gender, 
race/ethnicity

Custom CTK Gateway 
database 

Tom Serafin, 
Deputy Director 
based on 
information 
provided by 
program staff

Age Number of unduplicated clients by their 
age at start of program and grouped into 
age categories

Gateway:  Database query - on age Custom CTK Gateway 
database 

Same as above

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ZIP CODE REPORT

Copy of 9-Skillpoint Alliance 15-Month 2011-12 PM_Definition_Tool.xls

P
S

12
00

32
M

L 
 67

 o
f 7

7

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Income Status Number of unduplicated clients by their 
income status at start of program and 
grouped into income categories

Gateway:  Database query - on income Custom CTK Gateway 
database 

Same as above

Zip Code Number of unduplicated clients by their 
zip code at start of program

Gateway:  Database query - on zip code Custom CTK Gateway 
database 

Same as above

Copy of 9-Skillpoint Alliance 15-Month 2011-12 PM_Definition_Tool.xls

P
S

12
00

32
M

L 
 68

 o
f 7

7

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

54 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment J 
Insurance Requirements 

   

PS120032ML 
 
69 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



PS120032ML 
 
70 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



PS120032ML 
 
71 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



PS120032ML 
 
72 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 

 

55 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment K 
Ethics Affidavit 

 
 
 

PS120032ML 
 
73 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



PS120032ML 
 
74 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



PS120032ML 
 
75 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



PS120032ML 
 
76 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



PS120032ML 
 
77 of 77

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: November 8, 2011 
Prepared By: Joe Arriaga Phone #:854-7562 
Division Director/Manaer: Ann owl in , Division Director, Development Services 

Department Head: Steven M. Manil ,P.E., CountyExecutive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Huber, Precinct Three 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action regarding a plat for 
recording: The Reserve at Lake Travis, Revised Plat of Lots 53A and 54A, Block A 
and Lot 17, Block C, Revised Plat Lots 53-56 & 103, Block Aand Lots 5-9, 13-14, 
Block C and Lots 46-52, 57-67 & 102-B, Block A in Precinct Three. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OFRE'QUEST: 
The applicant is requesting to revise several lots in a recorded subdivision -The 
Reserve at Lake Travis on 98.6 acres. This revised plat is intending to move lot lines 
through out the subdivision to make some lots larger and some smaller. It is not 

~ increasing the number of lots. Water will be provided by individual water wells and 
The Coves Water Supply Corporation, a private water supply provider. Wastewater 

. will by individual private onsite sewer systems. The subdivision is subject to parkland 
requirements and the developer was responsible for $33,464.00 in fees because of 
the additional 19 units. This plat is not subject to the county's temporary suspension 
of plats using the Trinity Aquifer as a water source because this subdivision was 
approved prior to the effective date of the rule. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
As the application request meets all requirements, TNR staff recommends approval 
of the revised plat. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
TNR staff has not received any calls or inquiries from anyone on this request. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
N/A 

ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 
Location Map, Original Plats, Proposed Plat, and Precinct Map. 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

I Cynthia McDonald I Financial Manager ITNR 1854-4239 

Item 14
Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request
 

Meeting Date: November 8, 2011 
Prepared By: Don Perryman Phone #: 974-2786 
Division Director/Manager: Anna Bowlin, Division Director, Development Services 

~ @~~L rfJt<-: 
Department Head: Steven M. ManiIIU~, County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Huber, Precinct Three 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action on the Greyrock
 
Ridge Preliminary Plan [Preliminary Plan - 393 Total Lots (386 Single Family lots, 6
 
open space/water quality pond lots, and 1 amenity lot) - 177.853 acres] State
 
Highway 45 in Precinct Three.
 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:
 
This preliminary plan consists of 393 total lots (386 single family lots, 6 open
 
space/water quality pond lots, and 1 amenity lot) on 177.853 acres. The lots will take
 
access via an internal street connecting at State Highway 45/South Mo-Pac
 
intersection. Water and wastewater service will be provided by the City of Austin.
 
Parkland dedication or fees in lieu of dedication will be satisfied prior to approval of
 
each final plat. The preliminary plan has been reviewed and approved by the Travis
 
County Fire Marshal's Office.
 

The applicant has requested and received two administrative waivers from the
 
Single Office: 1) a waiver from Title 30-2-158(B)(2), which requires new subdivisions
 
connect to two different external streets, and 2) a waiver from Title 30-2-153(A) for
 
block length in excess of 1,200 linear feet.
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:
 
This preliminary plan meets all Single Office regulations and was approved by the
 
City of Austin Zoning and Platting Commission on September 20, 2011; Single Office
 
staff recommends approval of the preliminary plan.
 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:
 
Staff has not been contacted by any interested parties.
 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:
 
N/A
 

ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS:
 
Precinct map
 

Item 15
Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Location map 
Proposed preliminary plan 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TI\IR 854-4239 
Steve Manilla County Executive TNR 854-9429 

cc:

1----------11---
DP:AB:mh
 
1101 - Development Services·
 

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



'"Note: For le~biIity purposes, not all State 
Maintained roadways are ShOVdl in red. 

Source(s): City of Austin Roade ~ COA 2008, 
Unincorporated Roads. rrevle County 
JanwlIY 2009, Creeks- NHO '05, Perks
Travia County 2008, COA Parkl-
COA 1212008, Commissioner Precincts· 
Travis County Voter Registrar 2002. 

. Cr",k 

WaltrBody 

Pari< or Preserve 

~~~~,~2T~ :1,ns~rp~;~:.tedAr~, 
-----:_-cOU-?:~'BOu;darY 

CommJ...lo,,~r; Precl.,ct 

Precind2 

InCorporated 

NotMalntilln.d 

Pr1vat. 

Rejection of Oedicalion 

Undedl~I';d, Pr1val. 

Legend 
Ro.~w"Y1'fpa 

'Slate M.I~tained 

Map Oilldaimer: Thill map was ctl!l~tad for lhe Trsvia Map Prepared by. Travis County, 
County Sigll Crew for Identifying Travis County'l o 1 Dept. of Tranllponation & Natural
maintained roadways. The data II provided Meai'" I r I Resources. Date: 1n12009 
..... th no w~rrential 01any kin~. For questJons, cont,ct MlluTravis County Roadways, Map D http://WW''if.co.travis.bc.uaJmaps
tfte rravre County GIS Coordinator at (512) 854-9383. I

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



'RELIMINARY PLAN
 

PROJECT 
LOCATION 

LOCATION MAP
 
(N.T.S.)
 

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



400 200 o 
1--1 ! 

2 3 , 

" 
\ 

~3 22 ,21 2~ -,
0, \- ... 
-\ 
-\ 

<,\. e 
~3' 5 6 7 9 10 1"1

"' 22 '21 -ac 
2 -, 

_ 30 29 28 i7 26 25 i2_'!. 23 

" -,e ' 

5 6 

21 2lJ 19 

OVERALL.DWG 
GREYROCK RIDGE LJA, Engineering & Surveying, Inc.l #j 

5316H~hway 290West 14Suite 150 Phone 512,439,4700 

Austin, Texas 78735 Fax 5124394716
FRN - F-1386 OVERALL EXHIBIT 1 OF 1 

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Item 16
Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  November 8, 2011 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Melissa Velasquez, Judge’s Office, x49557 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:  Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION TO SET A PUBLIC 
HEARING ON TUESDAY, NOVEMBER , 2011 TO RECEIVE 
COMMENTS ABOUT TRAVIS COUNTY ELECTING TO LEVY AN AD 
VALOREM TAX ON GOODS-IN-TRANSIT, AND DENY THE EXEMPTION 
FROM THIS TAXATION ON THESE GOODS-IN-TRANSIT BOTH AS 
PROVIDED IN TEXAS TAX CODE, SECTION 11.253 EFFECTIVE FOR 
THE TAX YEAR 2012 AND ALL SUBSEQUENT YEARS. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
In 2007 Travis County had previously approved an order Making Tax 
Levies and Denying the Exemption on Goods-In-Transit.  Senate Bill 1 
passed in the 81st Session of the Texas Legislature nullifies prior decisions 
of political subdivisions to tax Goods-In-Transit for tax years after 2011.  If 
the Court wishes to continue to tax these items, the Court must hold a 
public hearing and then take official action to tax.  If not, these items will be 
eligible for exemption on January 1, 2012.  Attached is a letter from Patrick 
Brown, Chief Appraiser, Travis Central Appraisal District regarding the 
effect of not taxing goods in transit. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Approve. 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
Leroy Nellis, PBO 
Nelda Wells Spears, Tax Assessor Collector 
Dusty Knight, Tax Office 
Patrick Brown, Chief Appraiser, Travis Central Appraisal District 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 17
Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.

velasqm
Typewritten Text
22



 

 

 

 
August 24, 2011 

 
To:     All Urban Counties 
From: John B. Dahill, General Counsel 
 
Re: Action Required for Goods-in-Transit Property Tax  
 by December 31, 2011 
Counties that wish to tax goods-in-transit in 2012 must act to do so by 
December 31, 2011, even if they previously opted to tax goods-in-transit. 
Failure to act may mean the loss of significant personal property tax revenue. 
"Goods-in-transit" means tangible personal property acquired in or imported 
into Texas to be forwarded to another location in Texas or outside Texas (i.e., 
goods in both intrastate and interstate commerce) not later than 175 days 
after the date of acquisition in or importation into Texas. Pursuant to Article 
VIII, Section 1-n, Texas Constitution, and Section 11.253, Tax Code, goods-
in-transit are generally exempt from local property taxes. Political 
subdivisions, however, may elect to tax those goods.  
Senate Bill 1 by Duncan/Pitts (1st Called Session) nullifies prior decisions of 
political subdivisions to tax goods-in-transit for tax years after 2011. (There is 
an exception where taxes imposed on goods-in-transit have been pledged for 
the payment of a debt of the political subdivision, and those taxes may 
continue until the debt is discharged without further action of the governing 
body of the political subdivision.) 
A county that wishes to tax goods-in-transit after January 1, 2012, must hold 
a public hearing and take official action imposing the tax on or after October 
1, 2011 and before January 1 of the year for which the tax is to be in effect. 
Therefore, for a tax on goods-in-transit to be effective for 2012, a county must 
take action on or after October 1, 2011 and before January 1, 2012. 
Senate Bill 1 also clarifies that "goods-in-transit" includes only those goods 
stored under a contract of bailment by a public warehouse operator.  This 
provision is to give effect to the constitutional requirement that goods-in-
transit be detained at a location in Texas not owned or under the control of 
the property owner.  
There is some overlap in the definitions of "goods-in-transit" and "freeport" 
goods exempt from taxation under Article VIII, Section 1-j, Texas Constitution, 
and Section 11.251, Tax Code.  Freeport goods include tangible personal 
property acquired in or imported into Texas to be forwarded out of Texas (i.e., 
interstate goods only) not later than 175 days after the date of acquisition in 
or importation into Texas.  

Chairman 
Commissioner 
Mike Cantrell 
Dallas County 

Chair Elect 
Commissioner  
Eddie Arnold  

Jefferson County 

Immediate Past Chair 
Judge 

Mike Bradford 
Midland County 

Vice-Chairmen 
Comm. Tommy Adkisson 

Bexar County 
Comm. Bobbie Mitchell 

Denton County 
Judge Veronica Escobar  

El Paso County 
Comm. Fred Nardini 
San Patricio County 

Judge Dan Gattis  
Williamson County 

 

Executive Director 
Donald Lee 

 

Member Counties 
Bell ~ Bexar 

Brazoria ~ Brazos 
Cameron ~ Chambers 

Collin ~ Comal 
Dallas ~ Denton 
Ector ~ El Paso 

Fort Bend ~ Galveston 
Grayson ~ Gregg 

Guadalupe ~ Harris 
Hays ~ Hidalgo 
Hunt ~ Jefferson 

Johnson ~ Kaufman 
Lubbock ~ McLennan 

Midland ~ Nueces 
Randall ~ Rockwall 

San Patricio ~ Smith 
Tarrant ~ Travis 

Webb ~ Williamson 
Wise 

 
500 West 13th Street 

Austin, TX 78701 
 

Phone: 512.476.6174 
Fax: 512.476.5122 

w w w . c u c . o r g  
 

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Urban Counties 
August 24, 2011, Page 2 of 2  

 

 

Although freeport goods are generally exempt from taxation, a county that elected prior 
to April 1, 1990 to tax freeport goods may continue to do so. If a county rescinds its prior 
action to tax freeport goods, it forever loses the right to again tax freeport goods.  
Because goods-in-interstate commerce may qualify for either the freeport or goods-in-
transit tax exemptions, there is a concern that a failure of a county to act to tax goods-
in-transit may result in changes to business practices to take advantage of the goods-in-
transit tax exemption.  If a county currently taxes goods in interstate commerce that 
would fall within the freeport exemption, the handling of those goods may be changed to 
take advantage of the goods-in-transit tax exemption unless the county acts to tax 
goods-in-transit. 

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.

velasqm
Rectangle

velasqm
Typewritten Text
Previous order from 2007



Item 18
Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Item 19
Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  November 8, 2011 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Cheryl Aker, x49558 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  County Judge Sam Biscoe 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:  County Judge Sam Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON REQUEST FOR TRAVIS 
COUNTY APPOINTMENT OF A REPRESENTATIVE TO THE TECHNICAL 
ADVISORY GROUP OF THE WALLER CREEK CONSERVANCY TO AID THE 
COMPETITION JURORS IN EVALUATING DESIGN PROPOSALS.  
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
See attached. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 20
Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



October 25, 2011

The Honorable Sam Biscoe
Travis County Judge
PO Box 1748
Austin, TX 78767
Via electronic mail

Dear Judge Biscoe:

On November 8, 2011 the Waller Creek Conservancy will open registration for
Design Waller Creek: A Competition. I know that Melba Whatley, President and
Founder of the Waller Creek Conservancy met with you and presented the scope of
our effort and the design competition. We are asking that the Travis County
Commissioners Court appoint a representative to our Technical Advisory Group to aid
the competition jurors in evaluating design proposals. Currently the process identifies
two key times for the Technical Advisory Group to convene in May and September of
2012. Other time requirements would be kept to a minimum.

The Waller Creek Conservancy values the expertise and knowledge of Travis
County professionals. We hope that you will identify a representative to serve on the
Technical Advisory Group in the near future so that they are kept abreast of activities
throughout the competition. I have spoken to Peter Einhorn, Policy Director for
Commissioner Eckhardt, and he has recommended I get in direct contact with you and
request an appointment from Travis County.

Please let me know if you have additional questions or need additional
information about Design Waller Creek: A Competition to aid in your appointment.
The Waller Creek Conservancy looks forward to continuing to work with you and
Travis County as our vision for the future of the creek becomes a reality.

Sincerely,

Stephanie Lee McDonald
Executive Director

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: Nov 8, 2011 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Issac Flynn 854-1722 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Joe Alvarado Accounting 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and take appropriate action on Constable 1, Constable 2, 
Constable 3, Constable 4 and Constable 5 Equitable Sharing Agreement 
and Certification, Chapter 59 Asset Forfeiture' Report. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Equitable Sharing Agreement and Certification, Chapter 59 Asset Forfeiture 
Reports needs to be submitted each year to the state. These reports show 
the if there is any funds held from forfeited cash property, proceeds and 
any interest earned by participating law enforcement agencies. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Please email Issac Flynn to come pick up documents after signed. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
NA 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
NA 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
Issac Flynn 854-7722 Accounting Justice of the Peace & Constables 
Joe Alvarado 854-0018 Accounting Justice of the Peace & Constables 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 

I 

pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, CheryI.Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
-~~-for~tl:le-r:lext-week~-meetir:lg.,~ .. =. ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

;1 

Item 21
Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: November 8, 2011 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Gillian Porter, Commissioners Court 
Specialist, 512-854-4722 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Dana DeBeauvoir, Travis County 
Clerk 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: Approve the Commissioners Court Minutes for the 
Voting Session of October 25, 2011. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item C3
Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



 Minutes for the  
 Travis County Commissioners Court 
 Tuesday, October 25, 2011  

 Voting Session 

Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

October 25, 2011 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 1 

Call to Order 

Meeting called to order on October 25, 2011, in the Ned Granger Building, Commissioners 
Courtroom, 1st Floor, 314 W. 11th St., Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County Clerk, was represented 
by Deputy Gillian Porter. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present   
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Absent   
Sarah Eckhardt Precinct 2, Commissioner Present   
Karen L. Huber Precinct 3, Commissioner Present   
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 

Citizens Communication 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive, Travis County Health, Human Services, and Veterans’ 

Services (TCHHS&VS) 
Ronnie Gjemre, Travis County Resident  
Dr. John K. Kim, Travis County Resident  

Clerk's Note: The County Judge noted that HRMD will be hosting an Open House at their new 
offices in 700 Lavaca on Friday, October 28, 2011 from 1–3 PM. HRMD will be selling ice-
cream sandwiches to aid the Travis County Combined Charities Campaign. 

Special Item 
 
1. Consider and take appropriate action on an order concerning outdoor burning in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Hershel Lee, Fire Marshal 
Daryl Lofton, Travis County Resident 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Clerk's Note: The County Judge announced that by taking no action, the prohibition against 
outdoor burning stays in place. 

Resolutions and Proclamations 
 
2. Approve a Resolution to support the Ending Community Homelessness Coalition’s 100 Homes 

Campaign. 

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



October 25, 2011 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 2 
 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Ann Howard, Executive Director, Ending Community Homelessness (ECHO) Coalition 
Hillary Dockray, Student, School of Social Work, University of Texas at Austin 
Tim Bailey, Student, School of Social Work, University of Texas at Austin 
Jessie Aric, Project Coordinator, 100 Homes Campaign, ECHO 
Ed McHorse, Chair, Board of Directors, ECHO 

 
MOTION: Approve the Resolution in Item 2. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Administrative Operations Items 
 
3. Review and approve the immediate release of reimbursement payment to United Health Care 

for claims paid for participants in the Travis County Employee Health Care Fund for payment of 
$882,462.44 for the period of October 7 to October 13, 2011. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
4. Consider and take appropriate action on proposed routine personnel amendments. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
5. Consider and take appropriate action on annual Brown Santa 5K, Kid’s K and Decker Challenge 

on Sunday, December 11, 2011. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Donna Parker Stirman, Risk Management, Human Resources Management Department 

(HRMD) 
 
MOTION: Approve Item 5, and include a waiver of fees for the chairs and tables 

associated with the event. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
6. Consider and take appropriate action on request from Purchasing Board for market salary 

survey of the Travis County Purchasing Agent position. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Todd Osburn, Compensation Manager, HRMD 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 6. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
7. Consider and take appropriate action on the proposed Travis County Equal Employment 

Opportunity Plan. 

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



October 25, 2011 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 3 
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 7 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Dana Hess, Employment Specialist, HRMD  
David Escamilla, Travis County Attorney 
Dr. John K. Kim, Travis County Resident  
John Hille, Assistant County Attorney 
Barbara Wilson, Assistant County Attorney 

 
MOTION: Adopt the proposed policy but indicate our intention to bring the matter back 

in a month to address outstanding legal issues.  
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
 
WITHDRAWAL 
OF MOTION  
MADE BY: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
RESULT: NO VOTE TAKEN 

MOTION: Request a review of the policy by the County Attorney's Office and bring 
back an interim plan for adoption in a month. 

MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
 
Clerk’s Note: The Motion died for lack of a Second. 

MOTION: Adopt the proposed policy and indicate our intention revisit the matter as 
soon as possible. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Karen L. Huber, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Justice and Public Safety Items 
 
8. Consider and take appropriate action on request to approve Fiscal Year 2011 Chapter 59 Asset 

Forfeiture Report from the Travis County Fire Marshal’s Office. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Clerk's Note: The Court noted that there were no asset forfeitures by the Fire Marshal's Office in 
Fiscal Year 2011. 

Purchasing Office Items 
 
9. Pursuant to Section 263.151 of the Texas Local Government Code, declare certain lot of 

modular furniture as surplus property and sell at public auction. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Ronnie Gjemre, Travis County Resident  

MOTION: Approve Item 9. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



October 25, 2011 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 4 
 

MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
10. Declare a certain boat as surplus and sell at public auction, pursuant to Section 263.151 of the 

Texas Local Government Code. 
 
RESULT: PULLED 

 
11. Declare global positioning device (GPS) as surplus and authorize trade-in for new (GPS) 

devices, pursuant to Section 263.152 of the Texas Local Government Code. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
12. Approve contract award for electrical services time and materials, IFB No. B110300-NB, to the 

following bidders;   
 

a. Z-Non Electric, Inc. - primary contractor; and   
 
b. Elk Electric, Inc. - secondary contractor. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
13. Approve Change Order No. 3 to Contract No. 11K00142JW, G. Creek, Inc., for firing range lane 

addition at Travis County Correctional Complex. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
14. Approve contract award for Bee Creek Road Improvement Project, RFQ No. Q1101115-LP, to 

the highest qualified firm, Klotz Associates, Inc. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR) 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 14. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Karen L. Huber, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Karen L. Huber, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis, Sarah Eckhardt 

Clerk's Note: The Court noted that the funding will be from 1997 and 2001 Bond savings. 
 
15. Approve pre-qualified list of professional architectural and engineering firms and associated 

procedures for utilization on small projects in Travis County, RFQ No. Q110243-LP. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
16. Approve Modification No. 2 to Contract No. 10T00191LD, SCS Field Services, for 290 East 

landfill operation and maintenance services. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
17. Consider and take appropriate action on the following:   
 

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



October 25, 2011 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 5 
 

a. Approve contract award for stop loss insurance, RFP No. P110296-EC, to the highest 
qualified respondent, Sun Life Financial; and    

 
b. Increase individual stop loss deductible from $200,000 to $225,000. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Dan Mansour, Risk and Benefits Manager, HRMD 
Bonnie Floyd, Assistant Purchasing Agent 

 
MOTION: Approve Items 17.a–b. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Transportation, Natural Resources and Facilities Dept. Items 
 
18. Consider and take appropriate action regarding the proposed Travis County Emergency Energy 

Conservation Policy in response to ERCOT emergency notifications. (Commissioner Eckhardt) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
19. Consider and take appropriate action on extending the temporary subdivision, plat approval 

requirements regarding the availability and protection of groundwater from the Trinity Group 
Aquifers in Chapter 82, Travis County Code to allow for rule adoption. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 
Anna Bowlin, Engineering Services Director, TNR 
 

MOTION: Approve Item 19, to extend the deadline through January 31, 2012. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Karen L. Huber, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
20. Consider and take appropriate action regarding License Agreement for Holland, LLC to hold 

bike races at East Metropolitan Park. (Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
21. REVISED: Consider and take appropriate action on the following requests:    
 

a. Land conservation program guidelines;    
 
b. A Resolution to conserve natural and cultural resources in Travis County; and    
 
c. Setting a Public Hearing to receive comments regarding the land conservation program 

guidelines and the adoption of the Resolution. (Commissioner Davis) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED Reset for: 11/1/2011 

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



October 25, 2011 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 6 
 

 
22. Consider and take appropriate action on the following requests in precinct three:    
 

a. Acceptance of the dedication of the public street and drainage facilities within the replat of 
Lot 43, 44, 45, Block A, Lot 40, Block B, Lot 199, Block E and Lot 150 Block A of Rocky 
Creek Ranch, Section 1; and    

 
b. Amend the Rocky Creek Ranch, Section 1 and Section 1, Phase A License Agreement to 

include additional private improvements within the public rights-of-way within the 
aforementioned replat of Rocky Creek Ranch, Section 1. (Commissioner Huber) 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Planning and Budget Dept. Items 
 
23. Consider and take appropriate action on budget amendments, transfers and discussion items. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Diana Ramirez, Budget Analyst, Planning and Budget Office (PBO) 

 
MOTION: Approve Amendments A1–A3 in Item 23. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Diana Ramirez, Budget Analyst, PBO 

 
MOTION: Approve Transfer Items T1–T5 in Item 23. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Karen L. Huber, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Clerk's Note: The Court considered Discussion Items D1–D2 from Item 23. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Diana Ramirez, Budget Analyst, PBO 
Judge Yvonne Williams, Justice of the Peace, Precinct 1 

 
MOTION: Fund the two temporary positions through September 30, 2012 and 

coordinate with Criminal Justice Planning (CJP), the Justices of the Peace, 
and the County Attorney's Office regarding management of the toll road 
cases coming from Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT). 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Sarah Eckhardt, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



October 25, 2011 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 7 
 

Clerk's Note: Please note that for this Item, references to A1–A3, T1–T5, D1, and D2 refer to 
numbered items in separate budget document, not these minutes. See supporting 
documentation. 

 
24. Review and approve requests regarding grant programs, applications, contracts and 

permissions to continue:    
 

a. New application to the Texas Parks and Wildlife Department for Transportation and Natural 
Resources to receive funding for renovations for the Little Webberville Park boat ramp;   

 
b. New application to the Texas Parks and Wildlife Department for Transportation and Natural 

Resources to receive funding for renovations for the Webberville Park boat ramp;   
 
c. New application to the Texas Parks and Wildlife Department for Transportation and Natural 

Resources to receive funding for a boat ramp and other improvements at Dink Pearson 
Park;   

 
d. Acceptance of the 2012 Target & Blue Law Enforcement Grant for the Travis County 

Sheriff’s Office to receive a small one-time grant to support the Shattered Dreams Program 
event at Vandergrift High School;   

 
e. Annual contract with the Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice Division, to continue the 

Juvenile Services solicitation for the Front End Therapeutic Services Program in the 
Juvenile Probation Department; and    

 
f. Annual contract with the Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice Division, to continue the 

Travis County Eagle Resource Project in the Juvenile Probation Department. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
25. REVISED: Consider and take appropriate action on request to approve Amendment One to 

contract for Depository Services between Travis County and J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. 
related to safekeeping and custody of securities purchased by Travis County and Amendment 
Two related to correction of scriveners errors. 
 
RESULT: POSTPONED  

Health and Human Services Dept. Items 
 
26. Consider and take appropriate action on items related to the Program Year 2010 Consolidated 

Annual Performance Evaluation Report for the Community Development Block Grant provided 
by the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD):   

 
a. Request to approve December 1, 2011 through December 15, 2011 as the 15-day public 

comment period for the public to review and comment on the draft;   
 
b. Request to approve a public hearing date on December 6, 2011, at the Travis County 

Commissioners Courtroom at 9:00 A.M. to receive public comment; and   
 
c. Request to approve the advertisement announcing the public hearing date and 15-day 

public comment period in newspapers of general circulation: Austin Chronicle, Manor 
Messenger, Pflugerville Pflag, Hill Country News, Lake Travis View, North Lake Travis Log, 
Oak Hill Gazette, Westlake Picayune, Ahora Si, and El Mundo. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



October 25, 2011 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 8 
 

Clerk's Note: The County Judge requested that in Item 26.c measures be taken to cover all 
small newspapers in the relevant area. 

 
27. Consider and take appropriate action on the following items for the Ending Community 

Homelessness Coalition:    
 

a. Update on the organization’s goals, accomplishments and future plans; and   
 
b. Request for monetary and staff resources to achieve mutual goals. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Ed McHorse, Chair, Board of Directors, ECHO 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive, TCHHS&VS 

 
MOTION: Approve $50,000.00.  Funding will be from Health and Human Services. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Sarah Eckhardt, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
28. Consider and take appropriate action on items related to the analysis of impediments to fair 

housing choice, related to the Community Development Block Grant Program available through 
funds from HUD:   

 
a. Update on the request for services (RFS) for the analysis of impediments; and   
 
b. Overview of the scope of services to be included in the RFS for the analysis of 

impediments. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive, TCHHS&VS 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 28. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Karen L. Huber, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
29. Consider and take appropriate action on reappointment of Rebecca Lightsey as Travis County 

appointee to the Travis County Healthcare District Board of Managers. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Other Items 
 
30. Receive briefing on the Lake Travis Economic Impact Report regarding the fiscal and economic 

impacts of low lake levels. (Commissioner Huber) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Todd LaRue, Principal, RCLCO 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



October 25, 2011 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 9 
 

31. REVISED: Consider and take appropriate action on Resolution authorizing the Allegre Point 
Partners, Ltd., to submit an application for Texas Department of Community Affairs Home 
Funds for the Allegre Point Project, a 184-unit new construction multifamily project located at 
IH-35 and Fleischer Road in the Wells Branch area of Travis County. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Andrea Shields, Manager, Travis County Corporations 
Mark Musemeche, Director, M Group Developers 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 31. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
32. Consider and take appropriate action on request to approve a change in the contract between 

Department of Motor Vehicles (formerly Texas Department of Transportation) and the Travis 
County Tax Office. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
33. Consider and take appropriate action on the District Attorney’s Fiscal Year 2011 Chapter 59 

Asset Forfeiture Report. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
34. Consider and take appropriate action on the reappointment of Phil Barnes to the Board of 

Directors of the Housing Authority of Travis County, effectively immediately through September 
30, 2013. (Commissioner Huber) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
35. Consider and take appropriate action on the reappointment of Ofelia Elizondo to the Board of 

Directors of the Strategic Housing Finance Corporation of Travis County, effective immediately 
through July 31, 2012. (Commissioner Huber) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
36. Consider and take appropriate action on the appointment of personnel for the Central Counting 

Station, Receiving Substation Managers and Presiding Judge and Alternate Presiding Judges 
for the early voting ballot board and early voting ballot board members for the November 8, 
2011 Joint General and Special Elections. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Executive Session Items 

The Commissioners Court will consider the following items in Executive Session. The 
Commissioners Court may also consider any other matter posted on the agenda if there are issues 
that require consideration in Executive Session and the Commissioners Court announces that the 
item will be considered during Executive Session. 
 
Note 1: Gov’t Code Ann 551.071, Consultation with Attorney 
Note 2: Gov’t Code Ann 551.072, Real Property 
Note 3: Gov’t Code Ann 551.074, Personnel Matters 
Note 4: Gov’t Code Ann 551.076, Security 
Note 5: Gov’t Code Ann 551.087, Economic Development Negotiations 

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



October 25, 2011 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 10 
 

 
37. Consider and take appropriate action on request for financial incentives for Project Saturn. 5 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 37 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov't. Code Ann 551.087, Economic Development Negotiations. 

RESULT: DISCUSSED Reset for: 11/1/2011 
 
38. Receive briefing from County Attorney and/or take appropriate action in Eddie Hall v. Quincy 

Lamont Stiles.1 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 38 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED Reset for: 11/1/2011 

 
39. Receive briefing, appoint Commissioners Court representative for mediation and/or take 

appropriate action in Nathan Green v. Jodie McGarity. 1 and 3 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 39 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney and Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.074, Personnel 
Matters. 

MOTION: Appoint Dan Mansour, Risk and Benefits Manager, HRMD, to represent 
Travis County at a mediation conference in this matter. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
40. Receive legal briefing and take appropriate action regarding Travis County involvement in legal 

action objecting to congressional redistricting by the Texas Legislature. 1 
 
RESULT: POSTPONED  Reset for: 11/1/2011 

 
41. Consider and take appropriate action regarding the termination of County water outlet in 

southeast Travis County. 1 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 41 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Daryl Lofton, Travis County Resident 
Ms. Archer, Travis County Resident 
Jeffrey Archer, Travis County Resident 

MOTION: Commit to the following actions as directed by the Texas Commission on 
Environmental Quality (TCEQ):  
○ Immediately indicate that the water available at the outlet in south-east 

Travis County is non-potable, which means not fit for human 
consumption, and have signs posted in English and Spanish 

○ Install a fence to provide security for the outlet  
○ Immediately secure bi-lingual staff for the outlet  

 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] Reset for: 11/1/2011 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



October 25, 2011 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 11 
 

SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Clerk's Note: The Court also noted that items will be placed on the Agenda regarding: 
○ A permanent water solution for Las Lomitas and other issues 
○ Reassessment of the rate charged for water at the outlet 

Consent Items 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Ronnie Gjemre, Travis County Resident  
Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive, TCHHS&VS 
Donna Parker Stirman, Risk Management, HRMD 

 
MOTION: Approve the following Consent Items: C1–C4 and Agenda Items 3, 4, 8, 11, 12.a–

b, 13, 15, 16, 18, 20, 22.a–b, 24.a–f, 26.a–c, 29, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36, and A1. 
RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Karen L. Huber, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 
 
C1. Receive bids from County Purchasing Agent. 
 
C2. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest County funds. 
 
C3. Approve the Commissioners Court Minutes for the Special Voting Session of September 30, 

2011. 
 
C4. Approve the Commissioners Court Minutes for the Voting Sessions of September 27, October 4 

and 11, 2011. 

Added Items 
 
A1. Consider and take appropriate action on an addendum to the Election Services Agreement 

between Travis County and the City of Austin, to purchase additional election equipment for the 
City’s May 2012 election. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 

 

Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: November 8, 2011 
Prepared By: Paul Scoggins Phone #: 854-7619 ~ 
Division Director/Manager: Anna Bowlin, Division Director of Development lV 
Services 

Department Head: Steven . . ant la, P.E., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Huber, Precinct Three 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Approve setting a public hearing on Tuesday, November 
29, 2011 to receive comments regarding a request to authorize the filing of an 
instrument to vacate a 29,283 square foot section of Cypress Ranch Boulevard 
located in West Cypress Hills Phase One, Section One - Precinct Three. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 
TNR staff has received a request to vacate a 29,283 square foot section of Cypress 
Ranch Boulevard right-of-way located along the south lot line of Lot 46, Block 4 of 
West Cypress Hills Phase One, Section One. The subject section of right-of-way is 
dedicated per plat and accepted for maintenance by Triavs County . 

. The utility companies known to be operating in the area have stated that they have 
.. no objection to vacating the subject right-of-way. Staff foresees no opposition to this 

request. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
The request has been reviewed by TNR staff and staff finds the vacation request 
meets all Travis County standards. As such, TNR staff recommends setting the 
public hearing. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
According to the request letter, vacating this section of the right-of-way will allow the . 
property owner to re-align Cypress Ranch Boulevard as part of West Cypress Hills 
Phase One, Section 4A. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
None. 

Item C4
Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: November 8, 2011 
Prepared By: Paul Scoggins Phone #: 854-7619 
Division Director/Manager: Arma Bowlin, Division Director of Development 
Services 

Department Head: Stev ani a, P.E., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Huber, Precinct Three 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Approve setting a public hearing on Tuesday, November 
29, 2011 to receive comments regarding a request to authorize the filing of an 
instrument to vacate two five foot wide public utility easements located along the 
common lot line of Lots 14 and 15 of Hidden Hills 1 - Precinct Three. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 
TNR staff has received a request to vacate two five foot wide public utility easements 
(PUEs) located along the common lot line of Lots 14 and 15 of Hidden Hills 1. The 
easements are dedicated per plat note. The subject lots front on Crosswind Drive, a 
street maintained by Travis County. 

The utility companies known to be operating in the area have stated that they have 
no objection to vacating the subject easements. Staff foresees no opposition to this 
request. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATI.ONS: 
The request has been reviewed by TNR staff and staff finds the vacation request 
meets all Travis County standards. As such, TNR staff recommends setting the 
public hearing. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
According to the request letter, vacating the easements will allow the property owner 
to construct a single family residence on the two subject lots, which will include the 
actual structure along with a septic system. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
None. 

Item C5
Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  November 8, 2011 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Melissa Velasquez, Judge’s Office, x49557 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:  Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION TO SET A PUBLIC 
HEARING ON TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 22, 2011 TO RECEIVE 
COMMENTS ABOUT ELECTING TO LEVY AN AD VALOREM TAX ON 
GOODS-IN-TRANSIT, AND DENY THE EXEMPTION FROM THIS 
TAXATION ON THESE GOODS-IN-TRANSIT BOTH AS PROVIDED IN 
TEXAS TAX CODE, SECTION 11.253 EFFECTIVE FOR THE TAX YEAR 
2012 AND ALL SUBSEQUENT YEARS. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
In 2007 Travis County had previously approved an order Making Tax 
Levies and Denying the Exemption on Goods-In-Transit.  Senate Bill 1 
passed in the 81st Session of the Texas Legislature nullifies prior decisions 
of political subdivisions to tax Goods-In-Transit for tax years after 2011.  If 
the Court wishes to continue to tax these items, the Court must hold a 
public hearing and then take official action to tax.  If not, these items will be 
eligible for exemption on January 1, 2012.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Approve. 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
Leroy Nellis, PBO 
Nelda Wells Spears, Tax Assessor Collector 
Dusty Knight, Tax Office 
Patrick Brown, Chief Appraiser, Travis Central Appraisal District 

Northwest Travis County Road District No. 3 

Item 1
Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  November 8, 2011 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Melissa Velasquez, Judge’s Office, x49557 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:  Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION TO SET A PUBLIC 
HEARING ON TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 22, 2011 TO RECEIVE 
COMMENTS ABOUT ELECTING TO LEVY AN AD VALOREM TAX ON 
GOODS-IN-TRANSIT, AND DENY THE EXEMPTION FROM THIS 
TAXATION ON THESE GOODS-IN-TRANSIT BOTH AS PROVIDED IN 
TEXAS TAX CODE, SECTION 11.253 EFFECTIVE FOR THE TAX YEAR 
2012 AND ALL SUBSEQUENT YEARS. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
In 2007 Travis County had previously approved an order Making Tax 
Levies and Denying the Exemption on Goods-In-Transit.  Senate Bill 1 
passed in the 81st Session of the Texas Legislature nullifies prior decisions 
of political subdivisions to tax Goods-In-Transit for tax years after 2011.  If 
the Court wishes to continue to tax these items, the Court must hold a 
public hearing and then take official action to tax.  If not, these items will be 
eligible for exemption on January 1, 2012.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Approve. 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
Leroy Nellis, PBO 
Nelda Wells Spears, Tax Assessor Collector 
Dusty Knight, Tax Office 
Patrick Brown, Chief Appraiser, Travis Central Appraisal District 

Travis County Bee Cave Road District No. 1 

Item 1
Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Item 1
Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 11/3/11, 3:15 p.m.


	Item 02
	Item 04
	Item 05
	Item 06
	Item 07
	Item 08
	Item 09
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 12
	Item 13
	Item 14
	Item 15
	Item 16
	Item 17
	Item 18
	Item 19
	Item 20
	Item 21
	Item C3
	Item C4
	Item C5
	NW TCRD Item 01
	TC BCRD Item 01
	TCHFDC Item 01



